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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONSOLIDATED)

(%in Crores)

PARTICULARS 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Sales 3,404.97 1,857.49 1,987.75 2,197.63 2,161.22
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 16.98 9.90 -16.39 18.81 26.57
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1.15 4.71 9.05 12.16 19.78
Depreciation 19.89 0.12 456 5.03 556
Cash Accruals 36.87 10.01 -11.83 23.84 3214
Share Capital 26.38 26.38 26.38 26.38 26.38
Reserve and Surplus 250.63 254.07 246.76 259.07 278.58
Total Net Worth 277.01 280.45 27314 285.44 304.96
Total Liablities 806.11 784.20 366.00 321.25 29159
Total Capital Employed 303.97 308.82 27416 286.20 310.08
Fixed Assets 253.99 234.04 73.25 70.55 74.82

Net Current Assets 4515 4813 168.46 183.45 208.34
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

BALVANTSINH RAJPUT

Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to present the 27thAnnual Report
and Performance of your Company.

Despite being the 4thlargest oilseed producing country in the
world, the country is still an oil deficient economy. There is a
demand and supply mismatch of edible oil. Consumption of edible
oilin India has increased from less than 6 kg per capita in 1992-93 to
19 kg in recent years. The growth in consumption is predominantly
driven by increasing income, urbanisation, changing food habits,
and deeper penetration of processed foods. Domestic oilseed
industry hasn’t been able keep pace with the rising demand owing
factors such as limited size of land, dearth of technological
improvements in the field, vagaries of weather, etc.

Total Oilseeds production in the country during FY 2019-20 is
estimated at 34.19 Mntonneswhich is higher by 2.67 Mntonnes than
the production of 31.52 Mntonnes during FY 2018-19. Further, the
production of oilseeds during FY 2019-20 is higher by 4.54
Mntonnes than the average oilseeds production.

Moreover, the availability of cheap palm oil from South Asian
countries is also an important contributory factor. Presently, India
imports close to 70% of its total edible oil requirements from various
countries.

New Challenges have emerged in the form of COVID 19 that has
affected every sector of the economy in the form of various
challenges such as production challenge, demand and supply
challenges ,logistical challenges etc.Your Company is capable of
handling such challenges.

During the year under review consolidated revenue from operation
was Rs.2,16,121.68 lakh against Rs 2,19,762.67 lakhs in the previous
year on consolidated basis.This show a decrease in total revenue by
1.66% as compared with previous year.

Consolidated Net profit after tax is Rs. 1978.08 Lakhs for year ended
31.03.2020 as against Net profit of Rs. 1215.58 lakhs in previous year.
Hence the net profit after tax is increased by Rs. 62.73 % in FY
2019-20 as compared with previous year.

Export sales for the FY 2019-20 was Rs.84137.27 Lakhs against
79325.97 Lakhs in the previous year which is increase in 6% from the
previous year.

Global Economy and GDP outlook for 2020-21

Global Economic Prospects describes both the immediate and
near-term outlook for the impact of the pandemic and the
long-term damage it has dealt to prospects for growth. The baseline
forecast envisions a 5.2 percent contraction in global GDP in 2020,
using market exchange rate weights—the deepest global recession
in decades, despite the extraordinary efforts of governments to
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counter the downturn with fiscal and monetary policy support. Over
the longer horizon, the deep recessions triggered by the pandemic
are expected to leave lasting scars through lower investment, an
erosion of human capital through lost work and schooling, and
fragmentation of global trade and supply linkages.

The crisis highlights the need for urgent action to cushion the
pandemic’s health and economic consequences, protect
vulnerable populations, and set the stage for a lasting recovery. For
emerging market and developing countries, many of which face
daunting vulnerabilities, it is critical to strengthen public health
systems, address the challenges posed by informality, and
implement reforms that will support strong and sustainable growth
once the health crisis abates.

Over the years our products have ruled a number of kitchens in the
country, but our efforts (beyond our business) have nourished lives
ofmany more. We continue to go head-strong in our actions
towards healthcare, education and empowerment of women, which
embrace oursocial values and principles. Where we stand today are
the perseverance and efforts undertaken by your Directors and the
entire family of Gokul Group. | would like to express my gratitude to
the entire family of Gokul Group and their effortsand hard work that
has made “Gokul” the prominent and renowned brand. | am
confident and excited that the Gokul family will excel great heights
inthe years to come.l would like to take this opportunity to thank our
dedicated and motivated employees who are the greatest asset of
the Company and with their passion, hard work and commitment
taken us to this level and also appreciate the guidance from the
members of Board from time to time.

We also thank our stakeholders, clients, vendors, bankers, investors,
Governments, Government Agencies and partners in growth for
reposing their confidence and faith in the Company. Despite corona
pandemic Gokul group was able to deliver because of your support
and confidence in us. It is your trust and commitment that inspires
us to set high standards of growth and performance and continue to
deliver high returns to our stakeholders.We look forward to
continue our journey on the path of excellence and profitable
growth in the coming years.

Sincerely
Yours

Balvantsinh Rajput
Chairman
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AGM Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of the members of Gokul Refoils and
Solvent Limited will be held on Monday, the 28™ September, 2020, at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company at State Highway No 41, Nr. Sujanpur Patia, Sidhpur — 384151, North Gujarat, to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt :

a) the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020, and the reports of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput (DIN: 03050088), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ahmedabad
31* August, 2020

By Order of the Board
Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary
ACS No. 22613
Registered office
State Highway No. 41,
Nr. Sujanpur Patia,
Sidhpur -384 151

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “meeting”) is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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2. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by
appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable, issued on behalf of the nominating
organization.

3. The explanatory statements pursuant to Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013 relating to special
business are annexed.

4. The information required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 on Directors’
reappointment/ appointment are given below and form part of the Notice.

5. Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip along with their copy of Annual Report to
the Meeting.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during
business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

7. Members can avail the nomination facility by filing Form No. SH-13, as prescribed under Section
72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (1) of the Companies (Share Capital and debentures)
Rules 2014 with the Company. Blank forms will be supplied on request.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and other applicable provisions, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as
amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide to its members facility to exercise their
right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the Meeting by electronic means. The
members may cast their votes using an electronic voting system from place other than the
venue of the Meeting (‘remote e-voting’). In addition, the facility of voting through Ballot Paper
shall also be made available at the AGM and the Members attending the AGM who have not
cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote at the AGM.

9. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular May 05, 2020, the Notice of AGM
along with Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories Member may note that
Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.gokulgroup.com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the stock
exchanges i.e BSE Limited and National Stock Exchanges of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively and AGM Notice is also available on the website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-voting facility)i.e www.evotingindia.com.

10. Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered:

i A Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the Company can now
register the same by visiting the link https://linkintime.co.in/EmailReg/Email_Register.html.
Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register their e-mail addresses
with their Depository Participant(s) only, In case of any queries, members may write to
ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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i It is clarified that for permanent registration of email address, the members are however
requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the
Depository through the concerned Depository Participants and in respect of physical
holdings with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private
Limited.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

The voting period begins on Thursday 24" September, 2020 @ 09.00 a.m and ends on Sunday,
27" September, 2020 @ 05.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
Friday 18" September, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
Click on Shareholders / Members
Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted

on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number which is printed on Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details

e |f both the details are not recorded with the depository or company

OR Date of please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
Birth (DOB) field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

(viii)

(ix)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)
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of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the Electronic Voting Sequence Number (EVSN)) 200901010 for Gokul Refoils and
Solvent Limited .

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store
respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your

mobile.
Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section
or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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Members can call on toll free no.: 18002005533 or contact Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, Marathon
Futurex, A-Wing, 25th floor, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013, Email -
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com for grievances connected with e-Voting.

Other Instructions:

I.  The remote e-voting period commences on Thursday 24th September, 2020, @ 9.00 a.m. and
ends on Sunday, 27th September, 2020, @ 5.00 p.m. During this period, Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday 18th
September, 2020, may cast their vote through remote e-voting. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Il.  The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on Friday 18" September, 2020.

Il Mr. Yash H Mehta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: 45267; CP No:16535), has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

IV.  The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting,
first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and
make, not later than three days from the conclusion of the meeting consolidated Scrutinizer’s
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the
Company.

V.  The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s
website www.gokulgroup.com and on the website of CDSL www.evoting.cdsl.com within two
days of the passing of the resolutions at the 27" AGM of the Company held on Monday, 28"
September 2020, and communicated to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the brief profile of Director eligible for appointment and re-appointment is as

follows:
Name of Director Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput
Date of Birth 11" September, 1989
Date of Appointment 10" June, 2016
Qualification BE (Mechanical)

Expertise in specific Functional | Overall responsibilities of Strategic Management and
Areas policy formulation.

Names of listed entities in which | Nil
the person also holds the
directorship

Membership/Chairmanship of | Nil
Committees of listed entities

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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Number of Shares held in the
Company

1,52,93,818

Relationship with any Director(s) of
the Company

Son of Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput, Chairman and MD of the
Company.

Ahmedabad
31.08.2020

Registered office
State Highway No. 41,
Nr. Sujanpur Patia,
Sidhpur -384 151

Annual Report 2019-2020

By Order of the Board

Abhinav Mathur

Company Secretary
ACS No. 22613
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To,
The members,

BOARD’S REPORT

GOKUL

Your Directors are pleased to present the 27" Annual Report of the Company along with the Audited
Financial Statements for year ended 31* March, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarized standalone and consolidated results of your Company and its subsidiaries are given in

the table below:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Standalone Consolidated
S.No. Perticular As on Ason As on As on

31st March,20 | 31st March, 2019 | 31st March,20 | 31st March, 2019

1 |Revenue from operations 1,757.13 802.39 216,121.68 219,762.67

2 |Otherincome 1,127.16 1,184.69 2,294.37 2,265.82

3 |Total Revenue 2,884.29 1,987.09 218,416.05 222,028.49
Profit / (Loss) before interest, Depreciation,

4 |Exceptional items and Taxes (PBIDTA) 1,332.59 525.74 6,044.42 5,623.72

5 |Interest and Finance costs 0.69 64.21 2,857.21 3,225.41

6 |Depreciation and amortization expense 23.36 17.87 556.22 502.61

7 |Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,306.57 447.70 2,657.30 1,881.13

8 |Exceptional items - 32.35 - -

9 [Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (PBT) 1,306.57 415.35 2,657.30 1,881.13
Provision of Taxation including Deferred Tax

10 [liability/(Assets) 564.80 142.31 679.21 665.55

11 |Profit/ (Loss) from ordinary activities after tax 741.77 273.04 1,978.08 1,215.58

12 |Total comprehensive income for the year 743.75 269.00 1,951.77 1,230.16

2. DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources and to strengthen the financial position of the company and to
meet long term fund requirement and future contingencies, your Directors do not recommend any

dividend for the year under review.

3. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Standalone Basis

During the year under review, total revenue from operation was Rs.1,757.13 Lakhs against Rs.
802.39 Lakhs in the previous year. There has been Increase by 118.99 % in total income.

Net Profit after tax is Rs.741.77 Lakhs for year ended 31.03.2020 as against Net Profit after tax of
Rs.273.04 lakhs in previous year. There has been Increase by 171.67 % in Net Profit.

Consolidated Basis

During the year under review total revenue from operation was Rs.2,16,121.68 lakh against
Rs 2,19,762.67 lakhs in the previous year. This show an decrease in total revenue by 1.66% as

compared with previous year.

Annual Report 2019-2020
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Net profit after tax is Rs.1978.08 Lakhs for year ended 31.03.2020 as against Net profit of Rs.
1215.58 lakhs in previous year. Hence the net profit is increased by Rs.62.73 % in FY 2019-20 as
compared with previous year.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year under
review.

4. Business performance of Subsidiaries:
Subsidiary
Gokul Agri International Limited

Gokul Agri International Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has its production facility
at Sidhpur, District- Patan, Gujarat, India and is engaged in the business of seed processing, solvent
extraction, refining of edible oils and non-edible industrial oil such as castor oil. The Sidhpur Plant
currently processes various types of oils including Kachi Ghani oil, Mustard oil, Refined Cottonseed
oil, Soyaben Refined oil, Palmolein and Castor oil. It is also trading in agro commodities including
spices in domestic and international market.

During the year under review, total revenue from operation was Rs.2, 14,444.29 Lakhs against Rs.
2,19,005.62 Lakhs in the previous year. This shows an decrease of 2.13% over the previous year.

Net profit after tax is Rs. 1326.48 Lakhs for year ended 31.03.2020 against Rs. 898.85 lakhs in
previous year. This shows an increase of 47.58 % in over previous year.

5. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting financial position between end of
the financial year and the date of the report.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31* March, 2020 was Rs. 2637.90 Lakhs. There has been no
change in capital structure of the Company during the year under review.

7. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 the report on performance and financial position of subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture companies is attached as an annexure in Form AOC-1 prepared under section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the consolidated Financial Statements of the Company which forms part of
this report.

The Company has kept the separate audited financial statements in respect of each of subsidiaries
at the Registered Office of the Company and available upon the request by any shareholder of
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Company. The said financial statements are also available on the website of your Company at
www.gokulgroup.com. The Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved may be
accessed on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php.

8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Consolidated
Financial Statements form part of this Annual Report. The Consolidated Financial Statements are
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Retire by Rotation

Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Directors recommend for his re-
appointment.

As required under regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, particulars of Director seeking re-
appointment at the ensuing AGM are annexed to the notice convening Twenty Seventh AGM

Appointment / Resignation

e Mr. Shaunak Mandalia, has been appointed as a Director w.e.f. 20.01.2020.
e Mr. Bipinkumar Thakkar, Whole time Director-Legal, has resigned from his office from the
close of office hours on 20.01.2020.

Criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Independent Directors of your Company have given the certificate of independence to your
Company stating that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149 (6) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors,
conducted during the year, have been provided under the Corporate Governance Report.

Evaluation of Board Performance

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the performance
evaluation of the Board and its Committees was carried out during the year under review. More
details on the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Director, and also remuneration for Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees can be viewed at the Company’s website at weblink
http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php
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DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules and no complaint has been received on sexual harassment during the financial year
2019-20.

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 [14 of 2013]

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy for directors and employees to
report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of
the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The details of the said Policy is explained in the
Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises Directors namely Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas (Chairman), Mr.
Karansinh Mahida, Prof. (Dr). Dipooba Devada and Mr. Shaunak Mandalia.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board and
implemented accordingly. The details of term of reference of the Audit Committee member, dates
of meeting held and attendance of the Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance
Report.

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. The
Company has a robust risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as also
identify business opportunities.

Further, the Company identifies risks with its degree and control systems are instituted to ensure
that the risks in business process are mitigated. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk
Management Policy periodically. In the opinion of the Board there has been no identification of
elements of risk that may threaten the existence of the Company.

MEETINGS OF BOARD

The Board of Director met five times during the year 2019-20. The Details of the Board Meetings and
the attendance of the Directors are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions Section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state

that:-

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures;

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2020 and the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) That proper internal financial controls are in place and that the financial control are adequate
and are operating effectively; and

f) The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such a systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

i) STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under, M/s. M. M. Thakkar & Co. Chartered Accountants, Rajkot having Firm Registration No.
110905W were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company from conclusion of the 24™ Annual
General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 29" AGM to be held in the year 2022.

M M Thakkar & Co, Chartered Accountants have furnished a declaration confirming their
independence as well as their arm’s length relationship with the Company and that they have not
taken up any prohibited non-audit assignments for the company.

The Auditor’s Report to the shareholders for the year under review does not contain any
qualification.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 other than
those which are reported to the central government:
During the year under consideration, there were no such instances.

ii) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Yash Mehta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as
ANNEXURE-I to this Report.

iii) COST AUDITORS

The Company doesn’t fall under the purview and requirement to get the cost audit done for FY
2020-21 pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, hence the Company has not appointed Cost Auditors for FY
2020-21.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput as the Chairman, Mr.
Piyushchandra Vyas and Prof.(Dr.) Dipooba Devada as the members.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, company is not required to spend
any amount in CSR activities for the financial year 2019-20 as company’s average profit during the
three immediately preceding financial years does not exceed Rs.5 Crores

The Report on CSR activities is given in ANNEXURE-II forming part of this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 a separate section on Corporate
Governance forms part of this report and Certificate from a Company’s Auditor regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is as ANNEXURE-III.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a
statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in
excess of the limits set out in the said rules is attached as ANNEXURE-IV which forms part of this
report.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is attached as ANNEXURE-V which forms part of this report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO

The rules regarding conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not applicable to the
Company as company does not have any production unit at present. However, the information
pertaining to Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 2019-20 Year ended 2018-19
1) Total foreign exchange | NIL Nil
used
2) Total foreign exchange | NIL 53.12
earned
Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the
year, the company had not entered into any contract or arrangement or transactions with related
parties which could be considered ‘material’ (i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during the financial year) according to the policy of the
Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions. Accordingly, there are no transactions that
are required to be reported in form AOC-2.

However, you may refer to Related Party transactions, as per the Ind AS, in Note No.37 of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as
approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link:-
http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act read with the applicable Rules and the circular issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs on 28" August, 2020 the extract to the Annual Return of the Company can be
accessed on the Company's website at the link http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial
Controls (IFC) within the meaning of the explanation to section 134(5)(e) of the Act. For the year
ended on March 31, 2020, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has sound IFC
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its business operations. The IFC operates
effectively and no material weakness exists. The Company has a process in place to continuously
monitor the same and identify gaps, if any, and implement new and / or improved internal controls
whenever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on the Company’s operations,
Managing the Risks of fraud, corruption.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD UNDER SUB SECTION (1)OF SECTION 148 COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
The Company doesn’t fall under the purview and requirement of maintenance of cost records as

specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board meetings and Annual General Meetings.

BUYBACK OF EQUITY SHARES

On June 16, 2020, the Board approved a proposal to buyback up to 3,29,00,000 (Three Crores
Twenty Nine Lakhs) equity shares of the Company for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.
39,48,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Nine Crores Forty Eight Lakhs only). The Equity Shares proposed to be
bought back constitute 24.94% of issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Capital of the Company at a
price of Rs.12/- (Rupees Twelve) per equity share.

Subsequently, the shareholders approved the buyback of equity shares through postal ballot
through remote e-voting, the result of which were declared on July 28, 2020. The buyback is
proposed to be made from all the existing Members of the Company as on August 14, 2020, being
the record date for this purpose, on a proportionate basis under the tender offer route in
accordance with the provisions contained in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of
Securities) Regulations, 2018 and the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:-

1) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

4) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any
commission from the Company and not disqualified from receiving any remuneration or
commission from any of subsidiaries of the Company.

5) No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and the Company’s future operations.

APPRECIATIONS
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support received from
the Members, customers, suppliers, bankers, various statutory bodies of the Government of India

and the Company’s employees at all levels.

For, Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited

Date: 31% August 2020 Sd/-
Place: Ahmedabad Balvantsinh Rajput

Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN:00315565)
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Annexure to Directors’ Report
ANNEXURE-I
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GOKUL REFOILS AND SOLVENT LIMITED

CIN: L15142GJ1992PLC018745

STATE HIGHWAY NO 41 NR. SUJANPURA PATIA,
SIDHPUR, GUJARAT- 384151 INDIA.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by GOKUL REFOILS AND SOLVENT LIMITED (“Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions
of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder -
However, there were no instances of FDI, ODI or ECB during the year under review.

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

During the year under review, there were following interse transfer of equity shares
amongst Promoter and Promoter Group along with PAC.

Date of | Name of | No of shares | Name of | % of share | Whether all
Transfer Transferor transferred Transferee transfer- required
red Disclosures
made

17.09.2019 | Manjulaben 109,65,000 Bhikhiben Rajput 8.31% Yes
Thakkar

19.09.2019 | Manjulaben 75,00,000 Dharmendrasinh 5.69% Yes
Thakkar Rajput

25.09.2019 | Kanubhai 62,52,349 Dharmendrasinh 4.74% Yes
Thakkar Rajput

24.12.2019 | Jayeshkumar 6,23,765 Dharmendrasinh 0.47% Yes
Thakkar Rajput

03.12.2019 | Jashodaben 65,75,000 Profitline 4.99% Yes
Commodities Securities Private
LLP Limited

(c)

(d)

The Disclosures required under Regulations 10(5), 10(6), 10(7), 29(1) and 29(2), were filed
with the Stock Exchange within due course of time to the extent applicable.

The Company has also complied with filing of Annual Disclosures under Regulation 30(1)
and 30(2) of the said Regulations.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

The Company has received required disclosures under Regulation 7(1) and 7(2) of the said
Regulations during the year under review and further submitted disclosures received under
Regulation 7(2) to Stock Exchange within due course of time.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;
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The Company has not issued equity shares or any other securities during the year under
review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015;

The Company has complied with filing of required documents under the various
regulations, to the extent applicable to the Company, during the year under review.

Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Orders, Notifications and Directives issued under the above

statue to the extent applicable.

The following other laws applicable to the Company:

(a) Laws specifically applicable to the company:

(1)

(2)

The Food Safety Standards Act, 2006 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
and their amendments from time to time;

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and the rules and regulations made thereunder and
their amendments from time to time;

(b) Other laws applicable to the company:

i

ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
vi.
vii.
viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xXiii.
Xiv.

The Factories Act, 1948;

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952;

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,

The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946;

The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923;

The Apprentices Act, 1961,

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1956;
The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules,
2008;

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to the Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review; therefore
Secretarial Standards on Dividend (SS-3) was not applicable.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

We further state that, it is our responsibility to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable
laws and maintenance of records based on the audit.

The audit was conducted in accordance with applicable Standards and we have complied with statutory
and regulatory requirements and the Audit was planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance
about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of Records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is
an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the
composition of Board that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance of
the provisions of Act. Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings at
least seven days in advance in due compliances of law. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were also
sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of Board of Directors / Committees of the Company were carried through on
the basis of majority. We were informed that there were no dissenting views by any members of Board /
Committee in the meetings held during the year under review that were required to be captured and
recorded as part of minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company to commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that there were following major instances happened during the year under review:

1. Appointment of Mr. Abhinav Mathur as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 07.08.2019 in
place of resignation of Mr. Vijay Kalyani as Company Secretary of the Company.

2. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 27.09.2019 approved re-
appointment of Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas (DIN: 01260934) as an Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 11" September, 2019 up to
10" September, 2024.

3. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 27.09.2019 approved re-
appointment of Mr. Karansinh Mahida (DIN: 02237323) as an Independent Director of the Company
for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 11" September, 2019 up to 10"
September, 2024.

4. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 27.09.2019 approved re-
appointment of Prof.(Dr) Dipooba Devada (DIN: 01849583) as an Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 11" September, 2019 up to
10" September, 2024.
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5. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 27.09.2019 approved
alteration of the Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company by appending the
following sub clause (5) after sub clause (4) of clause Ill (A) (The Main Object) of the Memorandum
of Association of Company as follows:

“(5) To carry on the business / profession of consultants / suppliers/ providers of all types of man
power such as contractual, skilled, semi skilled, unskilled, trained workers/labour / staff / managerial
personnel/ technical personnel.”

6. Mr. Bipinkumar Thakkar resigned as Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 20.01.2020.
7. Mr. Shaunak Mandalia was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 20.01.2020.

8. The members of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28.02.2020 approved
alteration of the Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company by appending the
following sub clause (6) after sub clause (5) of clause Ill (A) (The Main Object) of the Memorandum
of Association of Company as follows:

“(6) To act as financial consultants, management consultants, and to provide advice, services,
consultancy in various fields, referral services, to act as intermediaries, and generally to advise and
assist in all financial, fiscal, investment and revenue matters and to carry out all functions and
responsibilities and such other activities which are incidental or ancillary to carry out the aforesaid
business.”

9. The members of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28.02.2020 approved
regularization of appointment of Mr. Shaunak Mandalia (DIN- 06649347), as a Director (Non
Executive) of the Company.

There were no other instances of:

a)Public issue / Right issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity etc.
b) Redemption / Buy — Back of Securities.
c)Merger / amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.

Except Striking off name of M/s. Gokul Refoils Pte Ltd — Singapore (wholly owned foreign
subsidiary of the Company) during the year under review.

d) Foreign Technical Collaboration.

FOR YASH MEHTA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
YASH MEHTA

PROPRIETOR

Date :24.08.2020 ACS: 45267
Place :Ahmedabad COP: 16535

UDIN: A045267B000607719
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms an
integral part of this report.

“ANNEXURE A”

To,

The Members,

GOKUL REFOILS AND SOLVENT LIMITED

CIN: L15142GJ1992PLC018745

STATE HIGHWAY NO 41 NR. SUJANPURA PATIA,
SIDHPUR, GUJARAT - 384151 INDIA.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible
assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we follow provide a responsible basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.
FOR YASH MEHTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
YASH MEHTA
PROPRIETOR
Date :24.08.2020 ACS: 45267
Place :Ahmedabad COP: 16535
UDIN: A045267B000607719
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ANNEXURE-II

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the company’s CSR
policy, including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programmes

The Company has framed the CSR Policy in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the CSR Policy enumerating the activities /
programs proposed to be undertaken by the Company can
be viewed at
http://www.gokulgroup.com/Portals/0/Users/Corporate%
20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf.

Composition of the CSR Committee

1. Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput - Chairman
2. Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas - Member
3. Dr. Dipooba Devada — Member

Average net Profit/(Loss) for last 3
financial years

Rs. (2534.87)Lakhs

Prescribed CSR expenditure (two
percent of the amount as in item 3
above)

Nil

Details of CSR spent during the financial year

A) Total amount to be spent for the | Nil

financial year;

B) Amount unspent, if any*; N.A

C) Manner in which the amount | N.A

spent during the financial year
Balvantsinh Rajput Piyushchandra Vyas
Chairman CSR Committee Independent Director
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ANNEXURE-III
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members
Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Gokul Refoils and Solvent
Ltd (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2020 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

FOR, M. M. THAKKAR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Date: Ahmedabad
Place: 16.06.2020 D. M. Thakkar
Partner

Membership No.103762

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.



o

GOKUL

ANNEXURE-IV

Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31* March, 2020.

A. Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year:

Name & Age in Designation | Date of Gross Total Last % age of
Qualification Years Employment Remuneratio | Experience | Employment | equity

n

(No. of shares held
p.a.
years) by
(Rs. in Lakhs)
employee
Praveen 41 Chief 01.04.2010 60.00 18 K S Qils Ltd. | NIL
Khandelwal Executive
-CA, CS Officer
*Dharmendrasinh | 30 Executive 11.09.2012 24.00 08 - 11.6%
Director

Rajput - BE.
(Mechanical)
Shaunak 46 Chief 22.04.2016 20.23 18 - NIL
Mandalia Financial
-CA Officer
Vijay Kalyani-CS | 61 Company 01.06.2016 4.06 37 Sadbhav NIL
(up to o7t Secretary Engineering
August, 2019) Ltd
Bipinkumar 51 Whole time 9.46 25 Disha Ltd NIL
Jayantilal Director-
Thakkar—M.sc Legal

(Agriculture),
MBA

(Finance), LLB,
DCP (Up to 20™
January, 2020
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Anil  Mohanlalji | 42 GM-Audit 25-11-2015 9.15 20 Adani NIL
Mundra Wilmar Ltd
Sureshkumar 39 HR- 01-06-2013 8.38 14 DB Group NIL
Gamanbhai Manager
Rathod
Ranjitsinh 39 Purchase 01-06-2004 7.88 17 Surat NIL
Laxmansinh Manager Electricity
Rajput
Abhinav Mathur | 41 Company 07.08.2019 11.00 13 Torrent Nil
(w.e.f. Secretary Power Ltd
07.08.2019)
Babubhai 66 Manager 17-01-2011 7.13 40 Government | 0.002%
Joitaram Patel Land Employee

Revenue
Rakeshkumar 33 SAP Basis 21.09.2015 6.30 9 Vodafone NIL
Jamanadas
Solanki

Notes:

1. Remuneration includes Salary, Contribution to Provident and other funds and perquisites (including
medical, leave travel and leave encashment on payment basis and monetary value of taxable

perquisites) etc.

2. *Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput-Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput-Executive
Director are relative each other.

3. The nature of employment in all cases is Permanent basis.

B. Employees who are employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs.

1.02 Crore ( one crore and two lakh rupees)/- or more per annum: NIL

C. Employees who are employed part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8.50
Lakhs (Eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month)or more per month: NIL
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ANNEXURE-V

Details under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the company for the financial year 2019-20;

(i)

Name of the | Designation Remuneration of | Median Ratio of
Directors the directors remuneration remuneratio
_ n of the
(Rs. in Lakhs) of the employees directors  to
(Rs. in Lakhs) the median
remuneratio
n of the
employees
Mr. Balvantsinh | Managing --- --- -
Rajput Director
Mr. Executive 24.00 7.50 3:1
Dharmendrasinh Director
Rajput
Mr. Bipinkumar | Whole Time | 9.46 7.50 1:1
Thakkar (Up to | Director -
20.01.2020) Legal
Mr. Shaunak | Director 20.23 7.50 3:1
Mandalia
(Appointment
w.e.f.20.01.2020

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

Name of the | Designation Percentage increase Comparison of the
Directors, Chief in remuneration each remuneration
Financial Officer, Chief of the Key Managerial
Executive Office, Personnel against
Company Secretary, the performance of
Manager the company

Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput | Managing Director NIL Profit/(Loss) after tax
Mr.Bipinkumar Whole Time Director- | 8% was Rs. 741.77 Lakhs in
Thakkar (Up to | Legal F.Y 2019-20 against Rs.
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20.01.2020) Rs.273.04 Lakhs in the
Mr. Dharmendrasinh | Executive Director NIL F.Y.2018-19.

Rajput

Mr. Praveen | CEO NIL

Khandelwal

Mr. Shaunak Mandalia | CFO NIL

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2019-
2020;

The median remuneration of employee in the financial year 2019-20 was Rs. 7.50 Lakhs (Rs. 8.38
Lakhs in financial year 2018-19). There was decrease of 10% in median remuneration of employee.

(iv) There were 14 numbers of employees on the rolls of company as on March 31, 2020.
(v) Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2019-20 was 8% whereas the increase in the managerial

remuneration for the same financial year was Nil.

(vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Development:

India is one of the top three consumers of edible oils in the world. To fulfil the domestic edible oil
consumption needs, the country however largely relies on imports which account for about 70% of the
total domestic edible oil requirements.

Lower availability of edible oils domestically is the prime reason that pushes India towards imports. The
production of domestic edible oils is stagnant and has remained range-bound.

Edible oils are a basic necessity in household cooking in India. One of the reasons promoting the growth
of edible oils is the fact that the consumption of edible oils varies across the different regions of the

country, due to taste preferences.

The rapid population growth has also raised the demand for edible oil. Modern grocery retailers, such as
hypermarkets and supermarkets, are expected to increase their share of sales in store-based retailing

for edible oils with offers on bulk purchases and discounts on average unit prices.

In-store promotions will continue to attract many price-conscious consumers to utilize such
opportunities and further promote the growth in sales of edible oils. However, factors that affect the

supply of raw materials restrain the growth of the edible oil market.

Significant Changes

Castor seed production has increased from 11.97 lakh tonnes in 2018-19 to 20.60 lakh tonnes 2019-
20.Consumption increased from 13.00 to 13.20 lakh tonnes. This increase in production may lead for
increasing in carryout stock to 11.86 lakh tonnes for the year 2020-21.

Edible oil products market in India is forecast to grow from around $ 21.5 billion in 2019 to $ 35.2 billion
by 2025 due to growing consumption of branded edible oils and ditching ‘loose oil’ sold by the
neighborhood grocery stores. The consumption of loose oil or which are not branded is expected to
decline due to higher cholesterol content in them, which results in the bad quality of food. Increasing
health consciousness coupled with expanding youth population across the country are also expected to
augment consumption of edible oil until 2025.

The distribution channel of India edible oil market is categorized into modern grocery retail, traditional
grocery retail, online retail, and direct/institutional sales. Traditional grocery retail accounted for the
majority share in India edible oil market in 2019-20, followed by modern grocery retail. However, during

the forecast period, the share of traditional grocery retail is expected to decline on account of increasing
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focus of companies to make their products reach through modern grocery retail and online retail
channels. Urban areas remain the dominant consumption markets, however, deeper penetration in

rural areas is expected to drive volume growth in the coming years.

Due to increasing importance of hygiene due to corona pandemic, consumers are beginning to prefer
packed and branded edible oils in place of loose oil purchase.Leading players are focusing on expanding
their edible oil product portfolios to maintain sustainable growth in the market. The companies are also

expanding their distribution reach to further penetrate the market.

Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

Increasing demand for edible oils owing to the burgeoning population and improving economic
conditions after corona pandemic is anticipated to remain the key growth driving factor over the

forecast period.

The industry in India presents massive potential for growth since the government has allowed 100% FDI
in plantation and has also pledged huge financial aid to farmers in upcoming years. This development is
likely to encourage domestic cultivation landscape and generate greater profit margins and
opportunities for companies.

Gradually increasing domestic production owing to investments through foreign private entities and
government funding is expected to propel cultivation in upcoming years. Besides this, ease in
investment policies and increasing acreage are few other government mechanisms aimed at boosting
domestic production.

Also for medium and small scale edible oil manufacturing industries, covid pandemic provided a good
opportunity to increase its reach and distribution in the country due to supply and distribution
constraints faced by the big edible oil manufacturing industries.

Threats

The industry is facing two major challenges.

1.There is a big drop in consumption of palm oil due to the lockdown and corona pandemic and this is

resulting in less consumption of palm oil by the consumers.
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2.Besides, the sector is witnessing labour shortage due to home return of migrant labourersdue to

corona pandemic.

Covid-19 pandemic

Covid-19 pandemic has created havoc among the economies of the world and industries and still
continue to do so. This has created much problem in the normal functioning of industries as they face
various issues such as lockdowns, logistical and supply chain disruption, demand etc. Industries are
slowly finding ways to overcome this.

Gokul Group business

Launch of double filtered Groundnut oil

The group has launched a new edible oil variety of groundnut oil in addition to the already existing line
of Mustard Oil, Kachi Ghani Oil, Refined Cottonseed Qil, Refined Soyabean Qil, and Palm Qil and refined
sunflower oil.

Castor Oil

Castor oil and its derivatives have applications in the manufacturing of soaps, lubricants, hydraulic and
brake fluids, paints, dyes, coatings, inks, cold resistant plastics, waxes and polishes, nylon,
pharmaceuticals and perfumes. Castor meal, the byproduct of the oil extraction process is mainly used
as fertiliser.

The major castor producing States in India are Gujarat, Rajasthan and Andhra Pradesh. Together, these
States account for more than 90 per cent of total domestic production with Gujarat being the largest
castor oil seed producing State. Gujarat also leads in terms of productivity with a yield of 1.71 mt/ha.
The major districts where castor is cultivated in Gujarat are Banaskantha, Gandhinagar, Kutch, Mehsana,
Patan, Rajkot and Surendranagar.

During the year 2019-20, the total exports of India of castor oil was 539962 mt(previous year 571985mt)
of Rs. 5709.83 crores (Rs.5561.60 ) crores value.
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Gokul Group castor business
GOkul Group Castor business in MT
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Castor group 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Castor oil and Castor derivatives | 72934 85763 246230
Castor doc 46501 52129 74225
Edible Oils

Edible oil sale for the FY 2019-20 was Rs.106315.63 Lakhs while in the previous year , it was 131918.04
Lakhs .

Non edible oils and by product

Sale of non-edible oils and by product for the FY 2019-20 was Rs. 107776.25 Lakhs while in the previous
year it was Rs. 86009.13 Lakhs.

Outlook

India’s vegetable oil consumption has been increasing — and it is expected to grow by 3 percent CAGR
and to exceed 34m tonnes by 2030, as a base case from 23m tonnes in 2017.
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Increasing income, urbanisation, changing food habits, and deeper penetration of processed foods will
be key drivers of future consumption growth. Because of current stagnant domestic vegetable oil
supplies, vegetable oil import volumes will continue to fill the majority of the supply-and-demand gap
over the next decade. Palm oil, soy oil, and sunflower oil are expected to penetrate regional markets
further in the future, with the packaged edible oil segment leading the way for future growth of the
industry.

However, vegetable oil consumption growth has been putting a lot of pressure on India’s trade balance
and budget due to the high dependence on imports. The Indian government might need to step up its
efforts to increase domestic oilseed production or pursue other options, such as opening up to imports
of GM oilseeds in order to cater to the country’s rising vegetable oil demand.

Risks and concerns

The key determinants of business risk profile of edible oil companies are their ability to overcome the
regulatory risk and agro-climatic conditions. Other operational factors include operating efficiency,
product diversity, market position, and ability to secure raw material as well as the commodity price and
forex-risk management systems. Risk financial position and returns metrics, capital structure, ability to
generate positive cash flows from operations and the adequacy of the same in relation to its contractual
debt service obligations. ICRA also assesses the entity’s management for its growth plans, risk appetite
and financial policies.

The main areas of concerns are:

1. The overall scenario is also impacted by volatility in commodity and currency prices. Your
Company makes use of forward cover/ hedge mechanism to manage these risks. The Company’s
raw materials as well as finished products are traded in futures market which gives opportunity
to hedge the price risks related to raw material and finished goods.

2. Government policies play an important role in the businesses of your Company. The policies
announced by the Government have been progressive and are expected to remain likewise in
future, and have generally taken an equitable view towards various stake holders, including
domestic farmers, industry, consumers etc.

3. Ocean freight, port congestions, storage infrastructure could contribute to challenges faced by
your  Company, as substantial part of the international operations of your Company is within
the Asian region, and given the growing import and export activities of your Company, the
element of freight is not likely to cause any adverse effect on the operational performance. Your
Company has a pro-active information and management system to address the issues arising
out of port congestions to the maximum extent possible and has also made sufficient
arrangements for storage infrastructure at the ports.

4. Domestic availability of oil seeds also depends upon weather and monsoon conditions Your
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Company has two processing facilities one at port location and another at Sidhpur which is
near seed producing belt and therefore, the business model of your Company is designed to
carry-on a majority of its production  operations in situations of extreme changes in weather
conditions.

5. Your Company is exposed to risks arising out of changes in rates of foreign currencies, the
exposures on this account extends to products imported for sale in domestic markets,
exported to other territories. Your Company utilizes the hedging instruments available in the
markets on an ongoing basis and manages the currency exposures pro-actively.

6. Fuel prices continue to be an area of concern as fuel is widely used in manufacturing and
distribution operations and has a direct impact on total costs.

Risk Management

The Company has set in place the policy for corporate risk assessment and mitigation Business Risk
Assessment procedures and for self-assessment of business risks, operating controls and compliance
with Corporate Policies. There is an ongoing process to track the evolution of the risks and delivery of
mitigating action plans.

Gokul, like any other enterprise having national as well global business interests, is exposed to business
risks which may be internal as well as external. In the broadest sense, we define risk as the eventuality
of not achieving our financial, operative, or strategic goals as planned. To ensure our long-term
corporate success, it is therefore essential that risks be effectively identified, analyzed and then
mitigated by means of appropriate control measures. We have a comprehensive risk management
system in place, which enables us to recognize and analyze risks early and to take the appropriate
action. This system is implemented as an integral part of our business processes across the entire Gokul
operations and includes recording, monitoring, and controlling internal enterprise business risks and
addressing them through informed and objective strategies.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

In view of the management, the Company has adequate internal control system for the business
processes followed by the Company. External and internal Auditors carry out periodical review of the
functioning and suggest changes if required. The Company has also a sound budgetary control system
with frequent reviews of actual performance as against those budgeted.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets periodically to review various aspects of performance of the
Company and also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and suggests
improvement for strengthening them from time to time. External Auditor also attends this Meeting and
conveys their views on the business process and also of the policies of financial disclosures. When found
necessary, the Committee also gives suggestions on this matter.
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Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

Consolidated Financial Highlights

Total revenues

During the year under review total revenue from operation was Rs. 216121.68 lakhs as against
Rs.219762.67 lakhs in the previous year. This shows an decrease in total revenue by 1.66% as compared
with previous year .Out of this about 99.22% revenue is from wholly owned subsidiary viz.GokulAgri
International Ltd. Gokul Agri International Limited has its production facility at sidhpur, Distinct —Patan,
Gujarat, India and is engaged in the business of seed processing, solvent extraction, refining of edible
oils and non edibles industrial oil such as castor oil. The Sidhpur Plant currently processes various types
of oils including Kachi Ghani Qil, Mustered oil, Refined Cottonseed oil Soyabean Refined Qil, Palmolein,
Castor oil and sunflower oil.

Profits and margins

The EBIDTA (Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Taxation and Amortisation and exceptional items)
increased by 7.48% to Rs. 6044.42 lakhs from Rs. 5623.72 lakhs in previous year.

Net profit after tax

Net profit after tax stood at Rs. 1978.08 lakhs as against Rs.1215.58 lakhs in previous year which is an
increase of 62.73% from the previous year.

Equity

Consolidated equity attributable to equity holders of the parent Company increased to Rs30496.23
lakhs, at the end of March 2020, from Rs. 28544.46 as at the end of March 2019. Out of this, other
equity, which comprises reserves and retained earnings amounted to Rs.27858.23 lakhs, at the end of FY
2019-20 as against Rs. 25906.56 lakhs last year. The book value per share increases to Rs. 23.12 as on
March 31, 2020 from Rs.21.64 as on March 31, 2019.

Debt

The consolidated net debt (adjusted for cash and bank balances and liquid investments) of the Group as
on March 31, 2020 stood at Rs. 20716.01 lakhs, as against Rs. 24929.12 lakhs last year. Net debt-equity
ratio was 0.68 as on March 31, 2020, against .87 as on March 31, 2019.

Fixed Assets and Capital Expenditure

The consolidated Net block (including capital work in progress) at the end of the year was
Rs.7481.55increase by about Rs 426.35 lakhs from Rs. 7055.20 lakhs last year. The net capital
expenditure including capital work in progress during the year was Rs.262.16 lakhs. The capex during the

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.

33



o

GOKUL

year was incurred mainly for acquire lease hold land from holding company and up gradation and
expansion of existing ancillary facilities.

Capital employed and operating efficiency

The total Capital Employed (CE), at the end of the year was Rs.31007.79 lakhs Increased from
Rs.28,620.41 lakhs at the end of the previous year. Return on Capital Employed (ROCE = Adjusted
earnings before interest net oftax / Average CE) stood at 17.70% for the year.

“Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in key financial ratios, along with explanations therefor, including:
Financial Ratio Consolidated Change | Reason for change

s %

FY 2019-2020 | FY 2018-19

Debtors Turnover 22.48 22.76 (1.21)% | Due to reduction in Avg.
outstanding Debtors

Inventory Turnover 13.49 12.33 9.40% NA
Interest Coverage 1.92 1.59 20.98% | Due to provision for investment
Ratio in subsidiary
Current Ratio 1.73 1.57 9.84% NA
Debt Equity Ratio 0.68 0.87 (22.22 NA
%)
Operating Profit 2.54% 2.33% 8.97% NA

Margin (%)

Net Profit Margin (%) | 0.90% 0.56% 61.33% | NA

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year
along with a detailed explanation thereof

RONW 6.40% 4.31% 2.09% | NA

Green Initiative- Wind Energy

The world is seriously concerned with the matter of global warming and the consequential impact on
the global economy and the environment. It would be, therefore necessary for your Company to
undertake initiatives to support the global movement combating the adverse impact.
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As corporate citizens, we ensure that we conduct our business in a responsible and sustainable way.
Energy savings, green power generation, waste recycle and pollution reduction are some of the key
areas where we ensure strict internal control. We are carbon neutral and sensitive to sustainable
development for the next generation. We strive to facilitate an environment policy framework that
enables sustainable development. Today Group has 3 Wind Turbine Generators (WTGs) with a total
power generation capacity of 3.75 MW in the states of Gujarat. The investment in green power is with a
single aim to create a cleaner and pollution free environment.

As a step ahead towards Green business, we are also using castor de-oiled cake as a fuel to generate
steam for our Sidhpur plant operations.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people
employed.

Human Assets

At Gokul, people are our most important asset and a source of competitive advantage. Gokul is
committed to creating an open and transparent organization that is focused on people and their
capability, and fostering an environment that enables them to deliver superior performance. The Human
Resources strategy is aimed at talent acquisition, development, motivation and retention. The HR
function acts as an effective lever for driving the company’s strategic initiatives and helps in integrating
and aligning all people practices to Gokul’s business priorities. The company has an unrelenting focus on
talent development. Total Number of Employees of the group as on 31st March, 2020was 309.

Sustainability in Challenging Times

Successful businesses are sustainable businesses —in good times and even more so, in periods of
uncertainty. In good times, such companies thrive and set new performance benchmarks. In times of
challenge, they possess the inner resilience and the robust systems that help them navigate through
cross currents and pull through to the future. Tough times pose searching questions about the caliber of
an organization’s people, policies and practices.

Gokul’s success in addressing and overcoming challenges is a ‘live’ and continuing demonstration of the
quality of its systems and the caliber of its people and processes.

Opportunities

There is potential to expand capacity of high earning segments. Promoters of the Company have a long
experience in the industry and also the product have a good brand name and standing. There is vast
geographical reach of the products and there are continued efforts to expand it. The Company has been
taking measures to keep its brands relevant to the customers and also ensuring that they remain
competitively priced. It is also exploring all possible avenues to reduce costs of inputs and raw materials
without compromising on the quality of the product.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.

35



o

GOKUL

A Way Forward

We have seen the volatile business environment many times since inception. In the backdrop of the
trade in which the Company is dealing, the place from where it operates, the destinations where it does
business, the Company needs to and is vigilant and informed on changing scenario and do its best to
adapt to changing business situation. We are positive on monsoon and economic growth thereby
contributing to both raw material supply and demand and thus should be good for Company operations
in current financial year.

To meet the challenges amidst growing industry size and the need to consolidate, Group has initiated
several measures on proactive basis, which will allow group to build-on its current presence and market
share in the edible oil and Industrial products like castor oil and meals. Group will continue to
strengthen itself in areas of sourcing raw materials from points of origin, reducing inefficiencies in
supply chain and logistics, capabilities to process at multiple locations, improvements in product quality
and increased sales of branded products in retail segment.

Cautionary Statement

Statements on the Management Discussion and Analysis and current year’s outlook are Management’s
perception at the time of drawing this report. Actual results may be materially different from those
expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations includes
demand and supply conditions, availability of inputs and their prices both domestic and global, changes
in government regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such
as litigation and industrial relations.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of highest level of
transparency, integrity, equity, openness, fairness and accountability in all faces of its functioning and its
interactions with shareholders, employees, suppliers, government, regulatory bodies and community at
large. The Company recognized good corporate governance practices as a key driver to sustainable
growth and long-term value creation and thus encourages timely and accurate dissemination of
information to all their stakeholders.

The Company is committed to achieve the good standards of Corporate Governance on a continuous
basis by laying emphasis on ethical corporate citizenship and establishment of good corporate cultures,
which aim at a true Corporate Governance. In so far as, compliance with the requirement of Regulation
17 to 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 as amendment
from time to time with the Stock Exchanges, Company has complied with all the mandatory norms and
disclosures that have to be made on Corporate Governance front.

1. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises 6 (Six) directors as on March 31, 2020 its composition and
category are as under:

Composition
Name of |Designation Category No of [No of [No of
Directors Directorship | Chairmanshi | Members
in other |, of Comm |hip of
Indian . .
. ittees of | Committe
Public
Limited other es of
Companies companies |other
companie
S
Mr. Balvantsinh | Chairman & [Non- 2 Nil Nil
Rajput Managing Independent
Director and Executive
Mr. Executive Non- 1 Nil Nil
Dharmendrasinh | Director Independent
Rajput and Executive
Mr. Shaunak |Non Executive |Non- 1 Nil 1
Mandalia Director Independent
and Non
Executive
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Mr. Independent Independent Nil 1
Piyushchandra Director Director
Vyas
Prof.(Dr.) Independent Independent Nil 1
Dipooba Devada |Director Director
Mr.  Karansinh |Independent Independent 1 Nil
Mahida Director Director
Notes:

1) As required under Regulation 26(b) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) the
Chairmanship and Memberships in Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee are only considered. Other directorships do not include directorships held in
private limited companies. The Company is in compliance with the composition of Board of
Directors in terms of the Listing Regulations.

2) Relationship between directors inter se: Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput is the son of
Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput. Except that, none of the directors are related to any other Board
Member in terms of definition of ‘relative’ as per Companies Act, 2013.

3) None of the non executive directors held shares in the Company.
4) No Directors of company hold Directorship in other listed company
Board Meeting and Attendance

The Board meets at least once in a quarter and the maximum time gap between any two meetings is
not more than one hundred twenty (120) days. The information as required under Regulation 17 (7)
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) is made available to the Board.

During the Financial Year 2019-20 Five Board Meetings were held on the following dates:
May 27, 2019, August 07, 2019, November 13, 2019, January 20, 2020 and February 12, 2020.

Attendance at Board meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Name of Directors No of Board Meeting attended |Attendance at last
AGM

Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput 5 Y

Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput 5 Y

*Mr. Shanuak Mandalia 2 Y

(Appointment
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w.e.f.20.01.2020)

Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas 5 Y
Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba Devada 5 Y
Mr. Karansinh Mahida 5 Y

* Mr. Shaunak Mandalia, has been appointed as a Member w.e.f. 20.01.2020
Evaluation of Board Performance

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well
as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise
was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards
functioning such as composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies,
performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc. Separate exercise was carried
out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Board Chairman who were
evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise,
independent judgment, safeguarding of minority shareholders interest etc.

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and that of the
Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors were carried out by the Independent Directors.

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement of
the Board and its Committees with the Company.

Skills/expertise/competencies of the Board of Director

The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors
as required in the context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available with the
Board Members:

i) Knowledge on Company’s businesses, policies and culture (including the Mission, Vision and
Values) major risks / threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which
the Company operates

ii) Behavioral skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute
effectively to the growth of the Company

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management,
Administration, Decision Making,

iv) Financial and Management skills

v) Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:-

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and with
Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, a
separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 30, 2019 to
review:

e Evaluation of the performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as
a whole;

e Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors;

e Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting.

Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions
specified in these regulations and are independent of the management.

Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors:-

Your Company has conducted the familiarization programme for Independent Directors of the
Company. The programme was designed to familiar the directors with their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company etc. Detailed presentations on the Company’s business segments were made
at the separate meetings of the Independent Directors held during the year.

The details of Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors are available on the Company’s
website at web link :- http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php

Committees of the Board:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the statutory and internal auditors and the Board of
Directors. Its purpose is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring
financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for
internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit
activities.

The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations with
regard to the composition of the Audit Committee.
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All the Members of the Audit Committee have the requisite qualifications for appointment of the
Committee and possess sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls.

The Statutory Auditors are inviting in meeting as when required, for interacting with members of
committee regarding the accounts of company. Audit Committee Meeting is attended by the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer and the Internal Auditor of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board to the Audit Committee are as contained in Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, as amendment from time to time are as
under:

Powers of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall have powers, which should include the following:

1) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2) To seek information from any employee.

3) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1) Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company;

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a.Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013

b.Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

¢. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management

d.Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

e.Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions

g.Qualifications in the draft audit report

5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the board for approval;
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6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up
steps in this matter;

7) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy
of the internal control systems;

13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

18) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

21) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as
on the date of coming into force of this provision

Review of information by Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee),
submitted by management;

3) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

4) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
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5) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be

subject to review by the Audit Committee.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, Four Audit Committee Meetings were held on the following

Dates:

May 27, 2019, August 07, 2019, November 13, 2019, and February 12, 2020.

The Composition of this Committee and the attendance details are as under:

Name of Member Category No of Meeting
Attendance

Mr Piyushchandra R Vyas - Chairman Independent 4

*Mr. Shaunak Mandalia — Member Non-Independent and Non 2

(Appointment w.e.f.20.01.2020) Executive

Mr. Karansinhji Mahida — Member Independent 4

Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba Devada — Member Independent 4

* Mr. Shaunak Mandalia, has been appointed as a Member w.e.f. 20.01.2020

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

are as contained in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as

amendment from time to time are as under:

1)
2)

3)
4)

5)
6)

7)

Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down

Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal,

Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors

Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, Three meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

were held on the following Dates:
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May 27, 2019, August 07, 2019, January 20, 2020.

The composition of this Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given below:

Name of Member Category No. of meeting
Attended

Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba Devada — Independent and Non- 03

Chairperson Executive

Mr. Karansinh Mahida — Member Independent and Non- 03
Executive

Mr. Piyushchandra R Vyas — Member Independent and Non- 03
Executive

Criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors:

Performance of evaluation of Independent Director shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,

excluding the director being evaluated.

Independent Director being evaluated shall be evaluated on the basis of Role and Functions
performed and duties discharged by him during the year. Their role, functions and duties are
evaluated on the basis of criteria such as attendance and contribution in the meeting, exercise of
Independent Judgment, Managing Relationship with fellow Board Members, their knowledge and
skill, assist the Company in implementing best corporate governance practice and its monitor , level
of confidentiality and ethical standards of integrity and probity.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place the policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees of the Company. The detailed remuneration policy of the Company
forms part of the Board’s Report.

Details of Remuneration Paid to the Directors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 and other
terms of appointment of Directors-

Name of Directors Salary (Rs. in Sitting fees Terms of No. of equity
Lakhs) (Rs. in Appointme shares held as
Lakhs) nt on 31st March,
2020
Mr. Balvantsinh 00 - 5 years
Rajput 3,29,44,515
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Mr. Dharmendrasinh 24.00 - 5 years 1,52,93,818
Rajput

*Mr. Shaunak 20.23 - - -
Mandalia

Mr. Piyushchandra - 0.40

Vyas

Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba - 0.50

Devada

Mr. Karansinh Mahida - -

* Mr. Shaunak Mandalia, has been appointed as a Member w.e.f. 20.01.2020

Apart from the above remuneration, no Director is entitled for any other benefit, Bonus, Severance
fees or Performance Linked Incentives for the financial year 2019-20.

The Company has not issued any stock option to its Employees or Directors.

There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis
the Company.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as
contained in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 .

During the Financial Year 2019-20 four Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings were held
on the following dates:

May 27, 2019, August 07, 2019, November 11, 2019, February 12, 2020

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given below:

Name of Member Category No. of Meeting
Attended
Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba Devada — Independent and Non- 04
Chairperson Executive
Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.

45



GOKUL

*Mr. Shaunak Mandalia — Member Non-Independent and 1
Non Executive

Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput- Member Non-Independent and 04
Executive

* Mr. Shaunak Mandalia, has been appointed as a Member w.e.f. 20.01.2020

The total number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders during

the year under review was Nil (0).

No complaints were pending as on March 31, 2020.

Company Secretary of the company is appointed as Compliance Officer.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

In terms of the requirement of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has
constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee comprising of 3 (three) Directors of

which 2 (two) are non-executives.

The terms of reference and scope of work is same as prescribed in Section 135 of the Act and the

Rules framed thereunder.
The Committee has met one time during the year on August 07, 2019.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on March 31, 2020:-

Name of Member Category No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput — Chairman Non Independent 01
Prof. (Dr.) Dipooba Devada — Member Independent 01
Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas — Member Independent 01

3. General Body Meetings:

Details of last three Annual General Meetings held are as under;

AGM Venue Date Time

24" AGM State Highway No. 41, Nr. Sujanpur | September 27, | 11.00 a.m
Patia, Sidhpur -384 151, Gujarat. India | 2017
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25" AGM State Highway No. 41, Nr. Sujanpur | September 29, | 11.00 a.m
Patia, Sidhpur -384 151, Gujarat. India | 2018

26" AGM State Highway No. 41, Nr. Sujanpur | September 27, | 11.00 a.m
Patia, Sidhpur -384 151, Gujarat. India | 2019

The details of Special Resolutions passed by Company in last three Annual General Meetings are as

under:
Date of AGM Special Resolution Passed
September 27, NIL
2017
September 29, 1. To re-approve the appointment of Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas,
2018 as an Independent Director of the Company
2. Alteration of the Object Clause of Memorandum of
Association of the Company
September 27, 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas (DIN:
2019 01260934) as an Independent Director.
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Karansinh Mahida (DIN: 02237323)
as an Independent Director
3. Re-appointment of Prof.(Dr) Dipooba Devada (DIN:
01849583) as an Independent Director
4. Alteration of the Object Clause of Memorandum of
Association of the Company

Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) :

Details of Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the year 2019-20 as under;

EOGM Venue Date Time

EOGM Luxura Hotel, 1, GIDC Estate, | February, 28, | 11.00 a.m
Ahmedabad Abu Highway Road, | 2020
Sidhpur, Gujarat-38415 1,

No resolution was passed through postal ballot and there was no proposal to pass resolution
through postal ballot during 2019-20.
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4. Means of Communication:

a) Quarterly Results: The quarterly, half yearly and annual results are published in widely
circulating national and local dailies such as “Financial Express” in English and Gujarati. These
results are not sent individually to the shareholders but are displayed on the Company’s
Website www.gokulgroup.com.

b) News Releases, Presentations, etc: Official news releases, detailed presentations made to
media, institutional investors, etc are displayed on the Company’s website
www.gokulgroup.com. Official media releases are sent to the Stock Exchanges.

c) Website: The Company’s website www.gokulgroup.com contains a separate section for
“Investor Relations” where shareholders information is available. The Annual report of the
Company is also available on the website in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

d) Annual Report: Annual Report containing, interalia, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated
Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors Report and other important information is
circulated to members and other entitled thereto.

e) No presentations were made to the institutional investors or to the analysts.

5. General Shareholders Information

a) Date, time and venue of the 27" Annual General Meeting:

Day & Date Time Venue
September 11.00 a.m State Highway No. 41, Nr. Sujanpur Patia, Sidhpur
28,2020 -384 151, Gujarat. India

b) Financial year: 1* April, 2019 to 31* March, 2020.
c) Dividend Payment Date: N.A.
d) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Company’s shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges with effect from 4™ June,
2008.

BSE Limited
25" Floor, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Fort, Mumbai — 400 001
Stock code: 532980
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C-1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai—400 051.
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Stock code: GOKULEQ
ISIN No. of Equity Shares: INE020J01029

Note: Annual Listing Fees for the year 2019-20 have been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE.
e) Market Price Data: (Face Value of Rs.2)

The details of Monthly High and Low price(s) on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai, during the
Financial Year 2019-20 are as under:

Month NSE High NSE Low(Rs.) BSE High (Rs.)| BSE Low (Rs.)
(Rs.)

April, 2019 8.1 7.3 8.19 7.31

May, 2019 13.1 12.45 13.75 13.05
June, 2019 13 12.5 13.36 12.86
July, 2019 12.95 11.75 13.02 12.31
August, 2019 12.08 11.85 12.94 12.4
September, 2019 12.55 14.55 15.03 14.54
October, 2019 12.35 11.4 12.05 11.85
November, 2019 15 14.15 14.89 14.35
December, 2019 14.05 13.8 14.15 13.54
January, 2020 10.7 10.05 10.41 10.08
February, 2020 9.35 8.55 9.47 8.85
March, 2020 8.5 8.1 8.6 8.6

f) Performance of the Share Price of the Company in Comparison to BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty:

I Gokd BSEHigh MM Gokul BSE Low A— Semsex High +—  SemsaxLow M GowulNSEHigh M Gokul NSE Low & Nitty High Nifty Low
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g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:
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Name : Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
R&T Address: Link Intime India Private Limited

5" Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Center - | (ABC-1),
Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner Off C G Road, Ellisebridge, Ahmedabad 380006
Tel : +91 79 26465179 /86 / 87

E-mail : ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in

Website : www.linkintime.co.in

h) Share Transfer System:

i)

In order to expedite the process of share transfers, the Board has delegated the power to
approve share transfers to senior executives, who attend to share transfer formalities
fortnightly. The Company has appointed Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. as Registrar and Share

Transfer Agents for

physical

rematerialization of securities.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020:

transfer of securities as well

as dematerialization/

NUMBER % OF
OF TOTAL
SHAREHO | SHAREHOL | TOTAL SHARES FOR
SR.NO. SHARES RANGE LDERS DERS THE RANGE % OF ISSUED CAPITAL
3929
80.5288 610795 0.4631
1 1|to| 500
457
9.3667 395713 0.3000
2 501 | to | 1000
225 4.6116 354509 0.2688
3 1001 | to | 2000
69 1.4142 178074 0.1350
4 2001 | to | 3000
38 0.7788 137701 0.1044
5 3001 | to | 4000
42 0.8608 203774 0.1545
6 4001 | to | 5000
49 1.0043 358277 0.2716
7 5001 | to | 10000
98.3026
10001 1.4347 129656157
to
8 | above 70
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j) Categories of shareholders as on March 31, 2020:
Demate
Demate d Physical | Physical Total Total_Per
Category Shares Holders | Shares | Holders Shares Total Value cent

Corporate Bodies
(Promoter Co) 17062500 2 0 0 17062500 | 34125000 | 12.9364
Clearing Members 4296 16 0 0 4296 8592 0.0033
Other Bodies
Corporate 23688500 71 0 0| 23688500 | 47377000 | 17.9601
Financial Institutions 1000000 1 0 0 1000000 2000000 0.7582
Hindu Undivided
Family 410218 134 0 0 410218 820436 0.311
Non Resident
Indians 82581 41 0 0 82581 165162 0.0626
Non Resident (Non
Repatriable) 807202 12 0 0 807202 1614404 0.612
Office Bearers 10 2 0 0 10 20 0
Public 9072006 4594 5415 2 9077421 18154842 6.8823
Promoters 79762272 4 0 0| 79762272 | 159524544 | 60.4741
TOTAL : 131889585 4877 5415 2 | 131895000 | 263790000 100

k) Dematerialization of shares:

The Company has established connectivity with both the depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to handle
dematerialization of shares. As on March 31, 2020, a total of 131889585 equity shares which
form 99.99% of the share capital stand dematerialized.

I) Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible instruments;

The Company has not issued Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipt or

Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

m) Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging:

Information with respect to ‘Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging
Activities’ is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis’ in the Report.

Exposure of the listed entity to commodity and | Nil
commodity risks faced by the entity

throughout the year:

Total exposure of the listed entity to Nil
commodities in INR
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Exposure of the listed entity to various Nil
commodities
Commodity risks faced by the listed entity NA
during the year and how they have been
managed.

n) Address for Correspondence :
Any query on Annual Report :
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited (Secretarial Department)
Gokul House, 43, Shreemali Co. Op.- Soc Ltd,
Opp. Shikhar Building, Navrangpura — 380009.
Ahmedabad.
Exclusive e-mail ID of the grievance redressal division : investor relations@gokulgroup.com
Corporate website: www.gokulgroup.com

o) “list of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any
scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad.”
-NIL

6. Disclosures:

a) There are no Materially Significant related party transactions made by the Company with its
promoters, directors or management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential
conflict with the interest of Company at large.

b) During the last three years, there were no strikes or penalties imposed by SEBI or Stock
Exchanges or any statutory authority, for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital
markets.

c) Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has established a vigil mechanism called ‘“Whistle Blower Policy’, for directors and
employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected,
fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.

Accordingly, the Company has established a mechanism for employees vide ‘Whistle Blower
Policy which seeks (i) to ensure greater transparency in all aspects of the Company’s functioning
by formulating a procedure to bring to the attention of Company incidents of improper-activities
or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct & Ethics for Board Members and Senior
Management, and (ii) to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism.

All Employees of the Company are eligible to make Protected Disclosures under the Policy. The
Protected Disclosures may be in relation to matters concerning the Company.

d) Subsidiary Companies
All the subsidiary companies of the Company (including step down subsidiaries) are managed
with their Boards having the rights and obligations to manage such companies in the best
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interest of their stakeholders. As a majority of shareholders, the Company nominates its
representative on the Boards of subsidiary companies and monitors the performance of such
companies, inter alia, by the following means —
® Financial Statements, in particular the investment made by the subsidiary companies are
reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee of the Company.
e All the minutes of the meeting of subsidiary companies are placed before the Company’s
Board regularly.
e A statement containing all significant transactions and arrangements entered in to by the
subsidiary companies is placed before the Company’s Board.
® In terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR), 2015, The policy on
Material Subsidiaries as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at
the web link (http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php).

Disclosure of Related Party Transactions:

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and
Listing Regulation during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arms’ length pricing basis. The transactions with related parties are disclosed in Notes to the
accounts .The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the
Company’s website at the web link (http://www.gokulgroup.com/investor.php)

Management Discussion and Analysis

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report and includes
discussions on various matters specified under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In preparation of financial statements, the Company has followed the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Code of Conduct

The Board has formulated a code of conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management of
Company which has also been posted on the website of Company. All Board members and
senior management personnel have affirmed their compliance with code. A declaration to this
effect signed by the Chief Executive Officer of Company is given elsewhere in the Annual Report.
Legal Compliances

The Company has formalised a system for legal compliances applicable to the Company. The
Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared
by the Company. Status of legal compliances and steps taken to rectify non-compliances, if any,
are placed before the Board of Directors at its meetings.

There were no instances of material non-compliances during the year under review. No
strictures or penalties were imposed on the Company by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

CEO- CFO certification
The CEO and CFO of the Company have certified to the Board of Directors inter-alia, the

accuracy of financial statements and adequacy of internal controls for the financial
reporting as required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended
31° March, 2020. They also give quarterly certificate on financial results while placing the
financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.

Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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k) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). - NIL

I)  Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding appointment and continuation of
directors.

The Company has obtained the Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying that
none of the directors of the Company are debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of Company by SEBI / MCA or any such authority.

m) During the financial year 2019-20, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its
Committees.

n) Total fees for all services paid by the company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to
the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory
auditor is a part is given below:

Rs.in Lakhs
Payment to Statutory Auditors FY 2019-20
Audit Fees 14.29
Tax Audit Fees 1.50
Other Services 3.50
Reimbursement of expenses ---
Total 19.29

o) “disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

number of complaints filed during Nil
the financial year
number of complaints disposed of Nil
during the financial year
number of complaints pending as Nil
on end of the financial year”

7. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulation. The

Company has adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well, as discussed under
relevant headings.

Adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Board

Since the Company does not have a Non-Executive Chairman, it does not maintain such office.
Shareholder Rights

Half yearly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the website
of the Company like quarterly results.
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Audit Qualifications

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the
Company’s financial Statements.

Separate posts of Chairman and CEO

The post of the Chairman of the Company and the CEO are held by different persons.

Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor of the Company is a permanent invitee to the Audit Committee Meeting
and regularly attends the Meeting for reporting their findings of the internal audit to the Audit
Committee Members.

8. There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance
Report.

9. The Company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in Reg. 17 to 27 and
clause (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46.

10. Unclaimed Shares lying in Demat Suspense Account:

In terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR), 2015:

Sr. Particulars Number of Number
No. shareholders of Equity
Shares
i Aggregate number of shareholders and the 9 2215
outstanding shares in the suspense account
lying at the beginning of the year.
ii Number of shareholders who approached Nil Nil
issuer for transfer of shares from suspense
account during the year.
iii Number of shareholders to whom shares Nil Nil
were transferred from suspense account
during the year.
iv Aggregate number of shareholders and the 9 2215
outstanding shares in the suspense account
lying at the end of the year
% The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of
such share claim the shares.
Annual Report 2019-2020 Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.
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Annual Compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2019-20

Pursuant to the Schedule V (Part D) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, | hereby confirm that the Company
has received affirmations on compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March
31, 2020 from all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel.

For, Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited
Praveen Khandelwal

CEO
Date:- 31% March, 2020
Place:- Ahmedabad
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M.M.THAKKAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1, Galaxy Commercial Centre, First Floor, Jawahar Road, Rajkot-360001
Phones: (0281) 222429029824212481¢ e-mail: dmthakkar @hotmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members,
Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in equity, the Cashflow Statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Significant
Accounting policies and other explanatory information.( (hereinafter referred to as the standalone financial
statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended (" Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the standalone financial statements

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communticated in our report.

The Key Audit Matter :

Valuation of Investments:

The Company has investments in subsidiaries and associates. These investments are accounted for at cost
less any provision for impairment. The Company evaluates the indicators of impairment of the said
investments regularly by reference to the requirements under Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets.

The Company carries out impairment assessment for each investment by:

* Comparing the carrying value of each investment with the net worth of each company based on latest
financial statements.

* Comparing the performance of the investee companies with projections used for valuations and approved
business plans
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The recoverable amounts of the above investments are estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss. As impairment assessment involves significant assumptions and judgment, we regard this
as a key audit matter. Refer to note 3 “Investments” of the standalone financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Assessed the indications of impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates. We have also
examined the basis of estimates of the recoverable amounts of these investments, the assumptions used in
making such estimates, and the allowance for impairment, if any.

* Compared the carrying values of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries and associates with their
respective net asset values and assessed the performance and their outlook.

* Evaluated key assumptions in the Company’s valuation models used to determine recoverable amount
including assumptions of projected EBITDA, growth rate, room occupancy, room rate, projected capital
expenditure, discount rates. We involved our internal valuation experts to help us in evaluation of key
assumptions and valuation methods. We also evaluated the forecasts based on historical performance.

We assessed the related disclosures in Note 3 of the standalone financial statements.

Information other than the Standalone financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governace report and shareholder's information but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
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Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2 Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) in our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law, so far as appears
from our examination of the books.

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the afrosaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :-

(a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in its
financial statements as referred to in note 35 to the Financial Statements.

(b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For, M. M. Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110905W

Darshak M Thakkar
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 16th June, 2020 Membership No.103762

UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited
ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of "report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even

date.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explainations given to us
during the course of out audit, we report that.

(1) a.

b.

(ii)

(iii)

a.

b.

C.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and location
of the fixed assets.

As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified all the fixed assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of

the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in Note no-2 "Property Plants and Equipments"
are in the name of the company.

As explained to us, due to nature of business carried on by the company during the year under reveiw the
comapny did not hold physical inventories. Hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of grant
of such loans are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

As per the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loan granted, repayment of principal amount
and payment of interest have been regular as per stipulations.

There are no overdue amounts as at the year-end in respect of both principal and interest.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisins of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investment and guarantee made/granted. The
Company has not given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with such loan.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from the public
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder to the extent notified.

(vi) According to information and explanations provided by the management, the provisions of maintenance of cost
records specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the company during the year under reference.
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(vii) a. The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees' state insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and services tax, duty of
customs, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

b. According to information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the
particulars of dues of Income tax,VAT/CST/GST, Entry tax, duty of customs / drawback, service tax and
Municipal Tax as at 31st March, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of dispute are as follows.

Sr. Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amt Period to which the | Forum Where
No. (Rs.in amount relates dispute is
Lakhs) pending
2012-13,2013-14,
West Bengal Tax on Entry Entry Tax 5,547.00| 201415, 2015-16, | Kolkata High
1 of Goods in to Local Areas
Act 2012 2016-17 & 2017- court
Interest 5,930.00 18(Q1)
Customs,
Excise and
2 Custom Act, 1962 Custom Duty / Duty 17.17 Service Tax
Drawback Appellate
Tribunal,
Ahmedabad
WBCT
3 | West liengi Vfg&Added VAT 55.35 2009-10 Appellate &
ax Act Revisional
Joint
Central Sales Tax Act Commissioner
4 1956 CST 115.28 2012-13 of Sales Tax.
Mumbai
Assistant
5 Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11.1412015-16 to 2017-18 | Commissioners
office

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, banks or Government or has not
issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) In our opinion and according to information provided to us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (Including Debt Instruments) and term loans during the year hence reporting under
clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. .

(x) During the course of our examination of books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees
have been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the Management.



(xi ) In our opinion and according to information provided to us, the company has paid/provided managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to information and explanations provided by the management, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the companies act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Therefore the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon.

(xv) According to information and explanations provided by the management, the company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as specified under Section 192 of the companies Act,
2013. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and not commented
upon.

(xvi) According to information and explanation provided by the management, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon.

For, M. M. Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110905W

Darshak M Thakkar
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 16th June, 2020 Membership No.103762

UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138
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M.M.THAKKAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1, Galaxy Commercial Centre, First Floor, Jawahar Road, Rajkot-360001
Phones: (0281) 222429009824212481¢ e-mail: dmthakkar @hotmail.com

ANNEXURE B: TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GOKUL REFOILS & SOLVENT LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Gokul Refoils
& Solvent Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal Financial Control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A company's Internal Financial Control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

('1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Companys;

("2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and

('3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For, M. M. Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110905W

Darshak M Thakkar
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 16th June, 2020 Membership No.103762

UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2020

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Note As on As on
No. 31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
1 ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 747.82 83.68
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 222.90 55.54
(c) Intangibles 2 3.70 6.76
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
a) Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates 3 8,602.42 8,616.54
b) Other Investments 3.1 0.95 0.95
(ii) Loan 4 3,234.89 2,978.62
(iii)  Other Financial Assets 5 6.62 6.62
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 6 246.37 740.52
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 7 103.77 118.10
13,169.45 12,607.34
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 - 0.23
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 3,499.14 3,703.62
(ii) Trade receivables 10 723.25 2.71
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 851.17 12.40
(iv)  Other Bank balance 12 45.35 5.48
(v) Loans 13 1,210.30 1,210.30
(vi)  Others Financial Assets 14 63.83 69.87
(c) Other current assets 15 7,346.78 9,068.09
13,739.83 14,072.71
Total Assets 26,909.28 26,680.05
2 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 16 2,637.90 2,637.90
(b)  Other equity 17 23,135.10 22,391.35
Total equity 25,773.00 25,029.25
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 18 23.65 24.46
23.65 24.46
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 19 108.18 293.41
(ii) Other Financial liabilities 20 0.95 0.95
(b) Other current liabilities 21 967.34 1,265.35
(c) Provisions 22 13.15 28.23
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 23.00 38.39
1,112.62 1,626.34
Total Liabilities 1,136.27 1,650.80
Total Equity and Liabilities 26,909.28 26,680.05
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 2To 46

As per our report of even date attached

For and On Behalf of the Board

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner

Membership No:103762
UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

Balvantsinh C Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited
Standalone Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March,2020

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Note No. Ason As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
INCOME
Revenue from operations 24 1,757.13 802.39
Other income 25 1,127.16 1,184.69
Total Income 2,884.29 1,987.09
EXPENSES
Cost Of Materials Consumed - -
Purchase of Stock in Trade 26 1,046.35 790.96
Changes In Inventories Of Finished
Goods, Work-In-Progress And Stock-In- 27 - -
Trade
Employee benefits expense 28 217.58 208.47
Finance costs 29 0.69 64.21
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 23.36 17.87
Other expenses 30 289.75 457.88
Total Expenses 1,577.72 1,539.38
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,306.57 447.70
Exceptional items 31 - 32.35
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,306.57 415.35
Tax expense:
Current tax 58.49 110.80
Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 6 493.51 60.22
Adjustment of Tax for earlier years 12.79 -16.31
Less: MAT credit entitlement - -12.40
Income tax expense 564.80 142.30
Net Profit/(Loss) from ordinaty activities after tax 741.77 273.05
Other comprehensive income / (Expenses)
A) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
(i) Bemeasurer’nent gains (Io§ses) on 32 562 621
defined benefit plans (Gratuity)
Income Tax re‘la?ted to |terTws that will 6 0.64 217
not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Other comprehensive income for the year 1.98 -4.04
Total comprehensive income for the year 743.75 269.01
Earning per equity share: 40
Earning per equity share
(1) Basic In Rupees 0.56 0.21
(2) Diluted In Rupees 0.56 0.21
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 2To 46

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner

Membership No:103762
UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

Balvantsinh C Rajput

For and On Behalf of the Board

Chairman and Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal

Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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Gokul Refoils And Solvent Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2020

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars

For the year ended on
31st March, 2020

For the year ended on
31st March, 2019

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit after Taxation (Total Comprehensive Income) for the year 743.75 269.01
Adjustment For :-

Income Tax Expenses 565.44 140.13
Other comprehesive Income -2.62 6.21
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23.36 17.87
Loss/(Profit) On Impairment/extinguishment of Investment - 32.35
Interest Income -633.48 -635.65
Interest Expenses - other 0.34 62.40
Provision for Bad Debts - 39.70
(Profit)/Loss From Partnership Firm -68.47 -62.73
Provision For Retirement Benefits 13.41 -4.66
Total -102.01 -404.37
Operating Profit ( Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 641.74 -135.36
Adjustment For :-

( Increase)/ Decrease In Other Non Current Assets 14.32 -33.05
( Increase)/ Decrease In Inventories 0.23 -0.23
( Increase)/ Decrease In Trade Receivables -720.54 587.17
( Increase)/ Decrease In Other Bank balance -39.87 1,306.51
( Increase)/ Decrease In Current Financial Loan - 27.13
( Increase)/ Decrease In Current Others Financial Assets 6.04 1.62
( Increase)/ Decrease In Others Current Assets 1,721.31 -484.35
Adjustment For :-

Increase / (Decrease) In Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables -185.23 -911.08
Increase / (Decrease) In Current Financial Liabilities - Other Liabilities -15.39 -0.14
Increase / (Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities -316.58 86.58
Cash Generated From Operations 1,106.02 444.79
Direct Tax (Paid) /Received -72.35 -538.50
Retirement Benefits paid -7.29 -7.76
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Iltems 1,026.38 -101.47
Extraordinary Items - -
Net Cash From Operating Activities Total 1,026.38 -101.47
Net Cash Flow From Investment Activities

Sales Proceeds from Disposal of Gokul Refoils Pte. Ltd. 14.12 -
Purchase Of Fixed Assets -851.79 -8.54
(Increase)/Decrease Of Current Investment 667.50 -202.14
Interest Received 0.01 90.74
Loan To Subsidiary /Associates -17.45 -79.10
Net Cash From Investment Activities -187.61 -199.03
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Interest Paid - -
(Repayment)/Acquisition of Long term Loans (Net) - -
(Repayment)/Acquisition of Short term borrowings - -
Net Cash From Financial Activities - -
Net Increase /(-) Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents 838.77 -300.50
Opening Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents 12.40 312.90
Closing Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents 851.17 12.40
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with Balance sheet

cash and cash equivalent as per Balance sheet 851.17 12.40
Less: Fixed Deposites Having Maturity of More than Three Months not considered as cash and cash

equivalent ) )
Add: Current investment in Mutual Funds considered as part of cash and cash equivalent - -
Closing Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents as per Balance sheet 851.17 12.40

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner Chief Executive Officer

Membership No:103762
UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

Balvantsinh C Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal

For and On Behalf of the Board

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

(Rs. In Lakh)

(a) Equity Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 131,895,000 2,637.90 131,895,000 2,637.90
Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 131,895,000 2,637.90 131,895,000 2,637.90
(b) Other Equity

Securities
Particulars Premium General Reserve | Retained Earning Total

Account
Balance at 1st April, 2018 379.05 6,238.84 15,504.45 22,122.34
Depreciation on Revalued Assets - - - -
Profit for the year - - 273.05 273.05
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -4.04 -4.04
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 269.01 269.01
Balance at 31st March, 2019 379.00 6,239.00 15,773.00 22,391.35
Profit for the year 741.77 741.77
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 1.98 1.98
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 743.75 743.75
Balance at 31st March, 2020 379.00 6,239.00 16,516.75 23,135.10

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner

Membership No:103762
UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

Balvantsinh C Rajput

Chairman and Managing |

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

For and On Behalf of the Board

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BACKGROUND
Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company engaged in the business of trading in oil seeds and
edible/non-edible oils and agro commodities. During the year, Company started business of supply of services. The Company is listed on
the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Company’s registered office is at
State Highway No.41, Near Sujanpur Patia, Sidhpur, 384 151, Dist.Patan, Gujarat.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

a)

b)

c)

d)

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies
are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financials.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention basis, except for the following:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.
ii) Assets held for sale- Measured at the lower of (a) carrying amount and (b) Fair Value less cost to sell.

(
(
(iii) Net defined benefit plans- Plan assets measured at Fair Value less present value of defined benefit obligation.

(iv) Determining the Fair Value

While measuring the Fair Value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values

are categorised into different levels in a Fair Value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the Fair Value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the Fair Value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the Fair Value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

Use of Estimates and Judgement

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or materialised.The most significant
estimates and assumptions are described below:

(i) Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the significant effect on amounts recognised in the
financial statement are as below:

- Leases identification- Whether an agreement contains a lease.

- Classification of lease - Whether Operating or Finance

(ii) Assumptions and Estimations
Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment are as
below:

1. Impairment test of non-financial assets
For the purpose of assessing recoverability of non-financial assets, assets are grouped at the lower levels for which there are
individually identifiable cash flows (Cash Generating Units).

2. Allowance for bad debts
The Management makes estimates related to the recoverability of receivables, whose book values are adjusted through an
allowance for Expected losses. Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable, customers ‘creditworthiness, current
economic trends and changes in customer’s collection terms when assessing the adequate allowance for expected losses,
which are estimated over the lifetime of the debts.

3. Recognition and measurement of Provisions and Contingencies
The Company’s Management estimates key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
based on available information and the assumptions and methods deemed appropriate. Wherever required, these estimates
are prepared with the assistance of legal counsel. As and when additional information becomes available to the Company,
estimates are revised and adjusted periodically.
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e)

f)

g)

4. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
The Management makes estimates as regards to availability of future taxable profits against which unabsorbed depreciation/
tax losses carried forward can be used.

5. Measurements of Defined benefit obligations
The measurements are based on key actuarial assumptions.

6. Impact of COVID 19
The Company has considered the possible impact that may arise from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the carrying amount
of its assets including inventory and receivables. In developing the assumptions relating to the impact of possible future
uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these
financial results has used internal and external sources of information including economic forecasts. The Company based on
current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

Application of New Accounting Pronouncements
The company has applied the following Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019. The effect is described below:

1. Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted modified retrospective approch as per para C8(C)(ii) of Ind AS 116 -Leases
to its leases, using cumulative effect method. There is no material impact on adoption of the standard on these financial
results.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (not exceeding
twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Act

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

1.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

b)

Property, Plant and Equipmrnt
Recognition and measurement

The Company had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. 1st
April, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence regarded thereafter as historical cost.

Free hold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost (which includes capitalised
borrowing costs) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant
and Equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by the management.

¢) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciated accordingly. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

Depreciation, Estimated useful life and estimated residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method, pro rata to the period of use, taking into account useful lives and
residual value of the assets. The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule Il
to the Act. Depreciation is computed with reference to cost or revalued value as per previous GAPP as the case may be. The assets
residual value and useful life are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on
disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

A Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
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b)

(i)

Internally generated intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Trade Marks, Technical Know-how Fees and other similar rights are amortised over their estimated useful life.

Capitalised cost incurred towards purchase/ development of software is amortised using straight line method over its useful
life of five years as estimated by the management at the time of capitalisation.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An item of intangible asset initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset [calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options.

Financial Assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options.

a)

b)

ii)

iii)

c)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-[FVTOCI], or Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss-[FVTPL] and - those measured at Amortised Cost.[AC]. The classification depends on the Company’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of investments

In Equity instruments

- For subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures - Investments are measured at cost and tested for impairment periodically.
Impairment (if any) is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- For Other than subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture - Investments are measured at FVTOCI.

In Mutual fund
Measured at FVTPL.

In Debt instruments

The Company measures the debts instruments at Amortised Cost. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest [SPPI] are measured at amortised cost. Gain or loss
on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of the hedging relationship, is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the Effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset, or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset and has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised.

Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained the control of the financial asset.
Where the Company retains the control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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d)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and
bank balance.

b) Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

- For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

(ii)  Financial Liabilities

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Classification

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL and
- those measured at Amortised Cost (AC)

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL or AC.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at Fair Value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximate to fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, only if the
criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, Fair Value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit or loss. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. AC is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying mounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

g) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commodity contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at Fair Value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at Fair Value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the Fair Value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the Fair Value is negative.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolesce, if any, except for realisable by-
products which are measured at net realisable value. The cost (Net of Input Tax Credit availed ) of inventories is determined using
the first-in first out (FIFO) method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories, production or conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and
work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. The
comparison of cost and Net Realisable value is made on an item by item basis. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net
realisable value of work in progress is determined with reference to selling prices of finished products.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at Fair Value and subsequently measured at AC using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment. As per Ind AS 109 the Company has applied ECL for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. Where
Company has offered extended credit period [ECP] to the debtors, the said amount is recorded at present value, with
corresponding credit in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the extended credit period.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of the cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes the cash and cheques in
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1)  Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, in the year in which it is approved by shareholders.

1)  Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (adjusted for amounts directly
charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by Weighted average number of Equity shares, (excluding treasury
shares).

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (adjusted for amounts directly
charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by Weighted average number of Equity shares (excluding treasury
shares) considered for basic earning per shares including dilutive potential Equity shares.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at Fair Value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at AC.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of borrowings using the effective interest method. Processing/Upfront fee are treated as prepaid asset and netted off from
borrowings. The same is amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. Preference shares are classified as liabilities.
The dividends on these preference shares, if approved, by shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, are
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs, in the year when approved. Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any non-cash
assets transferred or liability assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other gains or (losses). Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of liabilities for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before
the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the same is
classified as current unless the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of financial statements for issue,
not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Trade and Other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid at the period end. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the Company at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets (other than investments in companies registered outside India) and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
Investments in companies registered outside India are converted at rate prevailing at the date of acquisition. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at Fair Value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
when the Fair Value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated. Difference on account of changes in foreign currency are generally charged to the statement of profit & loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

1  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Group
performs; or

2 The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3 The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised on the basis of customer contracts and the performance obligation contained therein. Revenues is
recognised at a point in time when the control to the buyer of goods or services is transferred to a customer.Control lies with the
customer if the customer can independently determine the use of and consume the benefit derived from a product or service
Revenue from product deliveries are recognised at a point in time based on an overall assessment of the existence of a right to
payment, the allocation of ownership rights, the transfer of risks and rewards, and acceptance by the customer. The goods are
often sold with volume discounts/ pricing incentives and customers have a right to return damaged products.

Revenue from sales is based on the price in the sales contracts, net of discounts. Historical experience, specific contractual terms
and future expectations of sales are used to estimate and provide for damage claims. No element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with the normal credit terms as per prevalent trade practice and credit policy followed by the Company ond
normal credit terms.

(ii) Sale of Services

Revenue from services is recognised when agreed contractual task has been completed.

(iii) Other Income

a) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established which is generally when share holders approve the
dividend.

b) Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis on time proportion basis and measured at effective interest rate.

c) Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainity as to its determination or realisation exists.

(iv) Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and
when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same and is included in revenue in the statement of profit and loss due to its
operating nature.

(v) Insurance Claims

Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is virtually certain of their ultimate
collection
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k)

m)

Government Grants

(i) Grants from the Government are recognised at their Fair Value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions.

(ii) Government grant relating to purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment are included in "Other current/ non-current
liabilities" as Government Grant - Deferred Income and are credited to Profit or loss on a straight line basis over the expected life
of the related asset and presented within "Other Operating revenue".

employee Benefits

(i) During Employment benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Post-Employment benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Company pays fixed contribution into a separate entity
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards government administered Provident Fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have has completed five years of service with the company at the time when
employee leaves the Company. The gratuity is paid as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability
amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The liability in
respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the
periods during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment are charged to Other Comprehensive Income.

(c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than twelve months after the end of reporting period are discounted to the present value.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or in equity. In such cases, the tax is also recognised in the other
comprehensive income or in equity.

(a) Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have enacted or subsequently enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be used.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same
taxable Company.
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n)

o)

Borrowing Costs

General and specific Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset till the date it is ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation.All other borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the period for which they are incurred.

Leases

Effective 1st April, 2019, the company adopted IND AS 116 - Leases. GRSL applied IND AS 116 using modified retrospective
approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in retained earnings at 1st April 2019. The
comparative information presented is not restated. It is presented as previously reported under IND AS 17

Accounting policy applicable before 1st April 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in
the arrangements.

Lessee:

Leases of assets where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to that asset.

Leases of assets under which significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of
the lease.

Lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increase.

Accounting policy applicable from 1st April 2019
At the inception it is assessed, whether a contract is a lease or contains a lease. A contract is a lease or contains a lease if it

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, for a period of time, in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, company assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset. Use may be specified explicitly or implicitly.

Use should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.

If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified
Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use.

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

In cases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is determined when the company
has the right to use the asset or the company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use

1 Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

2 In cases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is determined when the
company has the right to use the asset or the company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used.
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At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component, company allocates the consideration
in the contract, to each lease component, on the basis of its relative standalone prices. For leases of property, it is elected not
to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a Lessee:
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

Right-of-use asset (ROU):

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease
incentives received.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying cost model, which is Cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and also adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability.

Right-of-use asset is depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. If the
lease transfers the ownership of the underlying asset to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects company will exercise the purchase option, ROU will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset,
which is determined based on the same basis as property, plant and equipment.

Lease liability:

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date.
Discounting is done using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate cannot be readily determined, then using company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Incremental borrowing rate is determined based on entity’s borrowing rate adjusted for terms of the
lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments), variable lease payments that depends on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date, amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, the exercise price under a purchase
option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the company is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability is re-measured when there is a
change in the lease term, a change in its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment, a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and a
change in future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate.

When the lease liability is re-measured corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero it will be recorded in statement of profit and loss.

Right-of-use asset is presented as a separate category under “Non-current assets” and lease liabilities are presented under
“Financial liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases. The lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lessor

At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component, company allocates the consideration in the
contract, to each lease component, on the basis of its relative standalone prices.

At the inception of the lease, it is determined whether it is a finance lease or an operating lease. If the lease transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, then it is a financial lease, otherwise it is an operating
lease.

If the lease arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the consideration in the contract is allocated using the
principles of IND AS 115. The company tests for the impairment losses at the year end. Payment received under operating lease is
recognised as income on straight line basis, over the lease term.

The accounting policies applicable to the company as a lessor, in the comparative period, were not different from IND AS 116.
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p)

q)

r)

Non- Current assets held for sale

Non-Current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at lower of their (a.) carrying
amount and (b.) Fair Value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised when they are classified as held
for sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pretax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expenses. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past
events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources
or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of
such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

1.3 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

79



Note - 2 - Property Plant and Equipment as on 31st March,2020

(Rs. In Lakh)
Gross Block Depreciation Fund Net Block
Particulars Additi Sal D iati Sal 31st March,
1st April, 2019 . ition / ( .a es) / 31st March,20 | 1st April, 2019 epreciation ( .a es) / 31st March,20 st Marc 31st March,20
Adjustment (+ or -) | (Retirement) for the year | (Retirement) 2019
Tangible Assets
Free Hold Land - - - - - - - - - -
Lease Hold Land - 683.89 - 683.89 - 7.12 - 7.12 - 676.77
Buildings - - - - - - - - - -
Plant & Machinery - - - - - - - - - -
Furniture & Fixtures - - - - - - - - - -
Office Equipments 4.36 0.54 - 4.90 2.70 0.63 - 3.33 1.66 1.57
Computers 7.20 - - 7.20 5.84 0.53 - 6.37 1.35 0.83
Vehicles 104.42 - - 104.42 23.76 12.01 - 35.77 80.67 68.66
Total 115.98 684.43 - 800.41 32.30 20.29 - 52.59 83.68 747.82
Capital work-in-progress
Tangible Assets 55.54 - - 55.54 - - - - 55.54 55.54
Leasehold improvements - 167.36 - 167.36 - - - - - 167.36
Total 55.54 167.36 - 222.90 - - - - 55.54 222.90
Intangible Assets
Software Licences 20.04] - - 20.04] 13.28] 3.06 ] - 16.34 6.76 | 3.70
Total 20.04 | - - 20.04 | 13.28 | 3.06 | - 16.34 | 6.76 | 3.70
Note - 2 - Property Plant and Equipment as on 31st March, 2019
Gross Block Depreciation Fund Net Block
Particulars Additi | 1st March, D iati | 1st March, 1st March,
1st April, 2018 ) ddition / (S.a es) / 31st Marcl 1st April, 2018 epreciation (S.a es) / 315t March, 2019 31st Marcl 31st Marcl
Adjustment (+ or -) | (Retirement) 2019 for the year | (Retirement) 2018 2019
Tangible Assets
Free Hold Land - - - - - - - - - -
Lease Hold Land - - - - - - - - - -
Buildings - - - - - - - - - -
Plant & Machinery - - - - - - - - - -
Furniture & Fixtures - - - - - - - - - -
Office Equipments 4.36 -0.00 - 4.36 2.10 0.59 - 2.70 2.25 1.66
Computers 7.20 - - 7.20 4.27 1.57 - 5.84 2.92 1.35
Vehicles 104.42 - - 104.42 11.43 12.33 - 23.76 93.00 80.67
Total 115.98 - - 115.98 17.81 14.49 - 32.30 98.17 83.68
Capital work-in-progress
Tangible Assets 47.00 | 8.54 - 55.54 | -] -] - -] 47.00 | 55.54
Intangible Assets
Software Licences 20.04 | - - 20.04 | 9.91] 3.37] - 13.28] 10.14 ] 6.76
Total 20.04 | - - 20.04 | 9.91 | 3.37 | - 13.28 | 10.14 | 6.76
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Note: 2A Leases

Leases in which the company is Lessee

Office Building

The Company has leasing arrangements for office building. Non-cancellable period for this leasing arrangement is less than 12 months and the Company
elected to apply the recognition exemption for short term leases to these leases. The lease amount is charged as rent. The total lease payments
accounted for the year ended March 31, 2020 is Rs.13.90 lakhs. (Previous year Rs 12.17 lakhs).

Leasehold Land

During the year the company has purchased a leasehold land at a cost of Rs.683.89 lakhs. The lease period remaining is 24 years. The company has
made lump sum payment and is not required to pay any lease rent. Therefore there is no lease liability.

A] As a Lessee

(a) Lease hold land - Right of use assets

(Rs. In Lakh)
Perticular As at 31st March 2020
Recognised at 1st April 2019 (transition) -
Additions during the year 683.89
Deduction during the year -
Depreciation charge for the year -7.12
Balance as at 31 March 2020 676.77
|(b)Lease liabilities Nil
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Note -: 3 - Non Current Financial Assets - Investment

(Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Investment in Equity Shares and Convertible Preference Shares measured at cost
(fully paid) - Unquoted :
Investment in Associates
() [24,180 (Previous Year 24,180) Equity Shares of Gujarat Gokul Power Limited of Rs. 51> 54>
10 each ' ’
.. . . . o . 0 . . .
(ii) F!xed Capital Investment in 7.5% (Previous Year 7.5%) profit sharing Partnership 400.00 400.00
Firm named Gokul Overseas
(iii) {1,00,001 (Previous Year 1,00,001) Equity Shares of Gokul Refoils Pte. Ltd. of SGD 1 16.47
each '
Less: Impairment in Value of Investment During the Year - -32.35
- 14.12
(iv) 50,000 (Previous Year 50,000) Equtiy Shares of Gokul Agri International Limited of
5.00 5.00
Rs. 10 each ’ ’
8,19,50,000 (Previ Y 8,19,50,000) 2% Non-C lative C |
(v) 19,50, (Previous Year 8,19,50, ) 2% Non-Cumulative Compulsory 8,195.00 8 195.00
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Total Investment in Subsidiary / Associate - Non Current 8,602.42 8,616.54
Note -: 3.1 - Non Current Financial Assets - Investment - Othres
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Investments in Government Or Trust Securities 0.95 0.95
Total Investment Others - Non Current 0.95 0.95
Details of quoted investment and unquoted investments
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investments (Market Value Of Rs. 0/- (Previous Year
Rs.0/-)
Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 8,603.37 8,617.49

Notes :

i) (a) Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates are measured at cost and tested for impairment. Impairment (if any) denotes
permanent diminution and charged to Statement of Profit and loss. Impairment in cases of unlisted securities is determined
based on the valuation reports and in case of listed securities the same is determined based on the prevailing market prices.

=

(b) Investments in other than Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures are measured at FVTOCI. and is charged/ added to
"Other Comprehensive Income". Fair Valuation of unlisted securities is determined based on the valuation reports and in
case of listed securities the same is determined based on the prevailing market prices.

Pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement approved by the Hon’ble High court of Gujarat in 2015, The Company was allotted
8,19,50,000 2% Non-cumulative Redeemable preference shares having face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up by its wholly
owned subsidiary company Gokul Agri International Limited (GAIL) in consideration for transfer by way of slump sale of its
“Sidhpur Undertakings”. With the consent of the Board of Directors, these shares have been reclassified as “2% Non-

Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares.
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iii) Effective from 30th April, 2019 ,Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Gokul Refoils Pte.Ltd. ,Sigapore ceased to carryon its
business and opted for winding up in accordance with its constitution and the Sigapore Companies Act Consequently the
Company has repatriate amount of remaing investment of SGD 27,396.49 on investment made in the share capital of Gokul

Refoils Pte.Ltd. due to extinguishment of the rights in the investment as below.

Note:
Particulars Amount
1,00,001 (Previous Year 1,00,001) Equity Shares of Gokul Refoils Pte. Ltd. of SGD 1 46.47
each as at 01.04.2018
Less: Impairment in Value of Investment during FY 2018-19 32.35
14.12
Less:- Repatriation of remaing investment during the year (SGD 27396.49) 14.00
Less: Exchange gain or loss on repatriation 0.13
Balance as on 31st March, 2020 -
Note -: 4 - Non Current Financial Loans (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Loans to subsidiary & Associate:
Unsecured, Considered Good 3,234.89 2,978.62
Secured, Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Credit Impaired - -
Loan to Associates 2,046.34 1,883.75
Loan to Wholley Owned Subsidiaries 1,188.55 1,094.88
Loans to others - -
Total 3,234.89 2,978.62
Disclosures as per schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015:
a) Loans and advance in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
A) Gujarat Gokul Power Limited 2,046.34 1,883.75
B) Gokul Agri international Limited 1,188.55 1,094.88
Total 3,234.89 2,978.62

Company has given loans and advances including interest there on of Rs.3234.89 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2978.62 Lakhs ) to

its associates, firm/companies in which directors are interested.

c) None of the loanees have made investment in share of the company.

Note -: 5 - Non Current Other Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Ason As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 6.62 6.62
Total 6.62 6.62
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Note -: 6 - Movement in Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars

Net Balance  1st

Recognised Profit

Recognised in

Net Balance on

April, 2019 or Loss ocClI 31th Mar 2020

(A) Deferred Tax Liabilties
1. Depreciation -3.34 1.69 -1.65
(B) Defferred Tax Assets -
1. Retirement Benefits 12.56 -4.11 -0.64 7.80
2. Disallowances under Income Tax Act. 330.20 -98.87 231.33
3. Business Loss & Unabsorbed Depreciation 388.38 -388.38 -
4. Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 12.73 -3.85 8.88
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets 740.52 -493.51 -0.64 246.36
Note -: 6 - Movement in Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars

Net Balance  1st

Recognised Profit

Recognised in

Net Balance on

April, 2018 or Loss oclI 31th Mar 2019

(A) Deferred Tax Liabilties

1. Depreciation -4.11 0.77 -3.34
(B) Defferred Tax Assets -

1. Retirement Benefits 13.09 -2.70 2.17 12.55
2. Disallowances under Income Tax Act. 327.02 3.18 330.20
3. Business Loss & Unabsorbed Depreciation 462.58 -74.20 388.38
4. Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts - 12.73 12.73
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets 798.57 -60.22 2.17 740.52
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Tax Expense

a) Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended on |For the year ended on

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Current Income Tax 58.49 110.80
Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 493,51 60.22
Adjustment of Tax for earlier years 12.79 -16.31
MAT Credit Utilised - -12.40
Recognition of Other comprehensive income 0.64 -2.17
Tax Expenses for the year 565.44 140.13
b) Reconciliation of Tax Expenses (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended on |For the year ended on

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Profit Before Tax 1,306.57 415.35
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Current year 25.168%and Previous Year
328.84 145.14

34.944%)
Non-Deductible Tax Expenses
Excess Depreciation Disallowed 2.64 6.24
Disallowance U/S - 43B 4.03 9.95
Interest on Late Payment of TDS/ Income Tax 0.09 21.81
Donation 0.05 7.38
Loss on Sale of Investment 0.04 11.30
Allowable Tax Expenses
Bad Debts Prov. Revered -0.03 -
Leave Encashment Paid -1.08 -
Bonus paid -1.72 -
Income exempt from Income taxes U/S 10(A) -17.23 -21.92
Items subject to differential tax rate
Set-Off Carryied Forward Business Loss -255.50 -78.69
Others
Donation - -2.81
Adjustment of Tax for earlier years 12.79 -16.31
Recognition of Other comprehensive income 0.66 -2.17
Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) 493,51 60.22
Others -1.66
Total Tax 565.44 140.13
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Note -: 7 - Other Non Current Assets

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars Ason Ason
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good - -
Balance with Government Authorities 103.77 118.10
Total 103.77 118.10
Note -: 8 - Inventories
(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Ason As on
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

A. Raw Materials
B. Work-In-Progress
C. Finished Goods
D. Stock In Trade

E. Stores And Spares (Including Chemical, Fuel & Packing )

0.23

Total

0.23

i. For method of valuation of inventories refer Note No. 1 (1.2) (c)
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Note -: 9 - Current Financial Assets - Investment

(Rs. In Lakh)

. As on As on
Particulars
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Investment measured at amortised cost
A)l t ts | t ital of t hi
(.) nvestments In current capital of partnership 3.499.14 3.703.62
Firm
Total 3,499.14 3,703.62
A. Details of quoted investment and unquoted investments
Particulars Ason As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Aggregate Amount Of quoted Investments - -
Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 3,499.14 3,703.62
Total 3,499.14 3,703.62
B. Details of Current Investments
Particulars Ason As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
(A) Investments In Partnership Firm
Gokul O C t Capital) - 7.5% (Previ
oku verseas.( urre-n apital) % (Previous 3,499.14 3.703.62
Year 7.5%) profit sharing
Total 3,499.14 3,703.62
C. Constitution of Gokul Oversees (Partnership Firm)
% of Share in As on31st March,2020 As on31st March, 2019
Name of Partner Profit = = - . . .
. Fixed Capital Current Capital Fixed Capital Current Capital
(Amount) (Amount) (Amount) (Amount)
1. Shree Balvantsinh C. Rajput 37.5% 200.00 583.98 200.00 250.39
2. Smt. Bhikhiben B. Rajput 30% 200.00 389.15 200.00 102.65
3. Dharmendra B Rajput 25% 11.00 180.85 11.00 398.06
4. Gokul Refoils & Solvent Ltd. 7.5% 400.00 3,499.14 400.00 3,703.62
Total 100% 811.00 4,653.11 811.00 4,454.72
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Note -: 10 - Current Financial Assets Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Trade receivables
Secured, Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 723.25 2.71
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired 36.29 36.42
759.55 39.13
Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 36.29 36.42
Total 723.25 2.71
Trade Receivable stated above include debts due by:
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Related Parties 92.29 -
Total 92.29 -

Refer Note No. 42 for infromation about Credit Risk and Market Risk of trade receivable.

Note -: 11 - Current Financial Assets Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Cash And Cash Equivalent
Balances With Banks In Current Accounts 843.03 4.14
Cash On Hand 8.14 8.26
Total 851.17 12.40
Note -: 12 - Current Financial Assets Other Bank Balance (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on Ason
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit (Having Maturity More Than Three Months)* 45.35 5.48
Total 45.35 5.48
* The Fixed Deposits have been pledged with banks as security for bank guarentee provided by Bank.
Note -: 13 - Current Financial Assets - Loans (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on Ason
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
A. Loans And Advances To Related Parties
B. Inter Corporate deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 1,210.30 1,210.30
Total 1,210.30 1,210.30
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Disclosures as per schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015:
Note :

a) Company has not given any loans and advances to any associates, firm/companies in which directors are interested

during the current financial year.

b) None of the loanees have made investment in share of the company.

Note -: 14 - Current Other Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As on As on
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
A. Security Deposits**
Unsecured, Considered Good 36.01 38.01
B. Loans And Advances to Staff
Unsecured, Considered Good 27.82 31.86
Total 63.83 69.87
**Security Deposits includes deposit to a step down subsidiary of Rs.1 Lakh as a spot exchange deposit.
Note -: 15 - Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March,2020 | 31st March, 2019
Balance with Govt. Authorities. 3,590.51 3,704.52
Advances to Suppliers 3,744.49 5,361.36
Other Receivables 10.05 0.78
Prepaid Expenses 1.73 1.43
Total 7,346.78 9,068.09
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Note -: 16 - Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakh)

As on 31st March,2020

As on 31st Mar, 2019

Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 1,750.00 3,500.00 1,750.00 3,500.00
Issued - - - -
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90
Subscribed & Paid up - - - -
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each fully paid 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90

Total 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90

Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of such equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the share holders.

(a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital

Equity Shares (2019-20)

Equity Shares (2018-19)

Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,319 2,638 1,319 2,638
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,319 2,638 1,319 2,638

(b) Shareholders holding more than 5% equity share capital in the company

Name of Shareholder

As on 31st March, 2020

As on 31st March, 2019

No. of Shares

% of Holding

No. of Shares

% of Holding

held held

Bhikhiben Balvantsinh Rajput 299.18 22.68 189.53 14.37
Balvantsinh Chandansinh Rajput 329.45 24.98 343.45 26.04
Dharmendrasinh Balvantsinh Rajput 152.94 11.60 - -

Kanubhai Jivatram Thakkar 0.00 - 78.59 5.96
Manjulaben Kanubhai Thakkar 0.00 - 184.65 14.00
Profitline Securities Private Ltd 157.63 11.95 91.88 6.97
Jashodaben Commodities LLP 0.00 - 78.75 5.97
Anand Rathi Global Finance Ltd 105.99 8.04 105.99 8.04

(C ) Aggregate no of equity shares issued during five years immediately preceeding the date of balance sheet

Allotted as

No.of Share

No.of Share

Equity Shares :

Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without
payment being received in cash

Fully paid up by way of bonus shares

Shares bought back




Note -: 17 - Other Equity

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars As on Ason
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

a. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 379.05 379.05
Closing Balance 379.05 379.05
b. General Reserves
Opening Balance 6,238.84 6,238.84
(+) /(-) Transfer from Capital Reserve (Subsidy)
Closing Balance 6,238.84 6,238.84
c. Retained Earning
Opening balance 15,773.46 15,504.45
(+) / (-) Surplus for the Year 743.75 269.01
Closing Balance 16,517.22 15,773.46

Total 23,135.10 22,391.35

Nature and Purpose of Reserve:

Securities Premium:

Securities Premium represnts, the premium received on issue of shares over and above the face value of equity
shares. Such amount is available for utilisation in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve:

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an
item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss.

Retained Earnings:

The same is created out of profits over the years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Act.

Note -: 18- Non-current Provisions (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Provision For Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment (Unfunded) 23.65 22.94
Provision for Gratuity - 1.53
Total 23.65 24.46
Note -: 19 - Current liabilities Financial Trade Payables (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Due To Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises 9.71 0.00
Due to Others 98.47 293.41
Total 108.18 293.41

Note:
DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant Section 22 to the said MSMED Act are as follows:




Particulars

As on
31st March, 2020

As on
31st March, 2019

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year
Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

9.71

11.29

Total

9.71

11.29

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006” is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such
vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company.

Trade Payable stated above include amount due to related parties:

. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Gokul Agri International Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) 19.12 -
Total 19.12 -
Note -: 20 - Current Other Financial liabilities (RS. IN LAKH)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Security Deposit-Staff 0.95 0.95
Total 0.95 0.95
Note -: 21 - Other Current Liabilities (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Duties and Taxes 950.12 952.29
Other Liabilities-Book overdraft - 58.08
Creditors For Capital Items - 4.63
Advance From Debtors - 147.09
Provision For Expenses 17.22 103.27
Total 967.34 1,265.35
Note -: 22 - Current liabilities Provisions (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Provision for Gratuity - 13.89
Provision for Leave Encashment 3.07 3.78
Bonus Payable 10.08 10.56
Total 13.15 28.23
Note -: 23 - Current Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. In Lakh)
. As on As on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Income Tax Provision for Current Year 58.49 110.80
Less: Tax Deducted at Sources Receivables 35.49 -
Less: Advance Tax Payment - 60.00
Less: MAT Credit Utilised - 12.40
Total 23.00 38.39
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Note-: 24 - Revenue from operations

(Rs. In Lakh)
. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Amount Amount
Sale of products 1,018.07 787.30
Less:
Discount And Other Deductions 1.37 2.44
1,016.71 784.86
Supply of services 279.81 -
Other operating revenues:
Export benefits and other incentives 3.34 8.38
Contract Settlement 408.00
Other operating revenues 49.28 9.15
740.42 17.53
Total 1,757.13 802.39

Disaggregated revenue information:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Commodity 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Types of Goods:
Edible Oils 1,018.07 787.30
Non Edible Oils& By Product - -
1,018.07 787.30
Sales of Goods Manufactured:
Edible Oils/Non Edible Oils& By Product - -
Seeds - -
De Oiled Cake/Oil Cake - -
Total - -
Sales of Goods Traded:
Edible Qils 1,018.07 787.30
Seeds - -
Total 1,018.07 787.30
Total Sales of Product 1,018.07 787.30
Geographical location of Customer
India* 1,018.07 733.73
Outside India** - 53.57
Total Sales of Product 1,018.07 787.30

* Sales in India includes High Seas sales to customes situated in India.

** Sales outside India includes sales to customer situated in SEZ area.
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Information about major customers

The Company has two customers who have accounted for more than 10% of the Company's
revenue. Total amount of revenue from these customers is Rs.830.64 Lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2020 and Rs.733.73Lakhs March 31, 2019.

The company has provided man power supply services of Rs. 79.74 Lakhs to its wholly owned

subsidiary during the year.

Note-: 25 - Other Income

(Rs. In Lakh)

. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Amount Amount
Interest Income
Interest On Bank Fixed Deposits 0.11 51.85
Interest From Partnership Firm 394.55 346.02
Interest On Loans and Advances
Interest From Subsidiaries and Associates 238.82 237.78
Interest From Others - -0.00
Net Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investments
Short Term Profit On Sale Of Share /Mutual Fund - -
Net Gain /Loss From Partnership Firm 68.47 62.73
Other Non-Operating Income
Gain on Derivatives Hedgeing - -
Gain on Receipts of Keyman Insurance - 459.98
Liabilities No Longer Payables 425.09 -
Bad debts recovered/Provision reversed 0.13 26.33
Profit on Sale of Asset - -
Rent Income - -
Total 1,127.16 1,184.69
Note-: - Cost of Material Consumed
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Particulars

Opening Stock Of Raw Material
Purchase - Raw Material
Closing Stock Of Raw Material

Total

Purchase Expenses

Total

Opening Stock Of Other Material
Purchase Other Materials
Closing Stock Of Other Material

Total

Total
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Note-: 26 - Purchase Of Stock In Trade

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Amount Amount
Purchase Of Goods Traded 1,046.35 790.96
Total 1,046.35 790.96
Note-: 27 - Change In Inventories Of Finished Goods And Work In Progress
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Amount Amount
Opening Stock Of Finished Goods - -
Closing Stock Of Finished Goods - -
Change In Inventories Of Finished Goods - -
Opening Stock Of Traded Goods - -
Closing Stock Of Traded Goods - -
Change In Inventories Of Traded Goods - -
Opening Stock Of Work In Progress - -
Closing Stock Of Work In Progress - -
Change In Inventories Of Work In Progress - -
Total - -
Note-: 28 - Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Amount Amount
Salary, wages and Bonus 207.19 198.91
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 5.47 5.59
Gratuity Expenses 4.92 3.97
Total 217.58 208.47
Note-: 29 - Finance Cost (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Amount Amount
Interest on late payment of TDS & Other interest 0 )
Other borrowing costs 0.34 1.81
Interest on short payment of advance tax - 62.40
Total 0.69 64.21
Note-: 30 - Other Expenses (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Amount Amount
Consumption Of Stores, Spares & Tools 0.23 0.04
Rent 13.90 73.63
Rates And Taxes 0.39 0.03
Repairs And Maintainance
Others 1.17 0.85
Insurance 3.72 5.15
Donation 0.21 21.11
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Auditors Remuneration 5.00 5.00
Director's Sitting Fees 0.79 0.60
Premium on Forward Contract (Import) - 0.00
Other Expenses 24.76 192.79
Consultancy and Professional Fees 18.63 20.54
Legal/Licence/Ragistration Expenses 19.14 20.38
Sales Tax Service Tax, And Other Taxes 128.89 54.93
Brokerage - 7.83
Traveling - 1.59
Freight Outwards - 2.74
Sales And Advertisements Expenses 3.32 10.74
Provision for Bad Debts - 39.70
Contractor Labour Expenses 69.46 0.26
Exchange Differences-Net Loss In Foreign 0.15 0.04
Currency Transactions And Translations
MTM (Gain)/ Loss on Derivative Hedging - -
Total 289.75 457.88

Auditor's Remuneration

For the year ended on

For the year ended on

Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
(A) Audit Fees 5.00 5.00
(B) Tax Audit Fees - -
(C) Income Tax and other matters - -
Note-: 31 - Exceptional items (Rs. In Lakh)
. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Amount Amount
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary - 32.35
Total - 32.35
Note-: 32 - Other comprehensive incomes / (losses) (Rs. In Lakh)
. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Amount Amount
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined
) ) 2.62 -6.21
benefit plans (Gratuity)
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities 0.64 -2.17
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
1.98 -4.04
loss
Total 1.98 -4.04




GOKUL REFOILS & SOLVENT LIMITED

General Notes forming the parts of Accounts:

Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to confirm to the current period’s classification. Figures have been rounded off

to nearest of rupee in Lakhs.

The balances of sundry debtors and sundry creditors are subject to confirmation from respective parties. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made when accounts are

reconciled / settled.

35 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A Not provided for in the accounts (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
(A) For Letter of credit opened for which goods were in transit NIL NIL
(B) Counter Guarantee Given to Banks NIL NIL
(C) Corporate Guarantee Given to Banks 5,575.00 5575.00
(D) Claims not acknowledged as debt 9.31 86.34
(E) Disputed demand of custom duty, VAT, CST, income tax, Entry Tax and Service 11675.94 10380.34
Tax
(F) Proceedings initiated under P.F.A. Act and pending with various 10.00 20.00
courts, Management is reasonably confident that no liability will

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided (net of advances) of Rs. 74.68 Lakh(Previous year: as at 31st March,

The disputes in respect of taxes have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The company's management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions when

The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act
and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company believes that there will be
no significant impact on its contributions to Provident Fund due to the proposed amendments. Additionally, there is uncertainty and ambiguity in interpreting and
giving effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February 2019, in relation to the scope of compensation on which the organization and its

To meet with documentation requirement of the bank , Who have extended working capital facilities to Gokul Agri International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the company, The Company has provided the corporate guarantee to the extent Rs.5575 Lakhs, As the guarantee is for short term and there is no interest benefit

B Capital Commitment
2019 Rs. Nil).
C
ultimately concluded and determined will have a material and adverse effect on the company's results of operations or financial condition.
D
employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company will evaluate its position and act, as clarity emerges.
E
to subsidiary the company has not charged or provided any commission for the same.
F

On 30th March 2019, MCA has issued an amendment regarding the income tax uncertainty over Income tax treatments. As per the Company’s assessment, there are
no material income tax uncertainties over income tax treatments as at 31 March 2020.

36 Employee Benefits Obligations

Defined Contribution Plan:
The company has recognised as an expense in the statement of profit & loss in respect of defined contribution plan- Provident and other fund of Rs.5.47 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 5.59 Lakhs ) administered by the govenment.

Retirement Benefits

As per Ind AS 19 the Company has recongnised "Employees Benefits", in the financial Statements in respect of the employee benefits Schemes as per Actuaria
Valuation as on 31st March, 2020.

Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit

a. Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)
The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan .every employee who has completed five years and more service gets a gratuity on death or resignation o

retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance
policy

b. Long Term Employment Benefit (Leave Wages)
Leave wages are payable to all eligible employees at the rate of daily salary for each day of accumulated leave on death or resignation or upon retirement or

attaining superannuation age.

(Rs. In Lakh)
particulars For the year ended on For the year ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Privilege Leave Gratuity Privilege Leave Gratuity
(Non-funded) ( Funded) (Non-funded) ( Funded)

A. Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation.
Opening defined benefit obligation 26.72 23.67 38.63 19.43
Transfer in / (out) obligation - - - -
Interest cost 1.90 1.66 2.71 1.36
Current service cost 2.48 3.89 5.43 3.71
Benefits paid -4.29 -2.26 - -6.68
Actuarial (gain) / losses on obligation -0.08 -1.13 -20.06 5.85
Unrecognized past Service cost - - - -
Closing defined obligation 26.72 25.84 26.72 23.67
B. Change in the fair value of plan asset - - - -
Opening fair value of plan assets - 8.25 - 14.19
Transfer in / (out) assets - - - -
Adjustment in the opening fund - 27.78 - -
Expenses deducted from the fund - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - 2.12 - 0.74
Contributions by employer - - - -
Benefits paid - -2.26 - -6.68
Actuarial gains/ (losses) - - - -
Closing fair value of plan assets - 35.89 - 8.25
C. Actual return on plan assets: - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - 2.12 - 0.74
Actuarial gain / [loss] on plan assets - - - -
Actual return on plan asset - 2.12 - 0.74




D.A tr d in the bal sheet: - - - -
(Assets) / Liability at the end of the year 26.72 25.84 26.72 23.67
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year - 35.89 - 8.25
Difference 26.72 -10.05 26.72 15.42
Unrecognized past Service cost - - - -
(Assets)/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 26.72 -10.05 26.72 15.42

E.(i )/ ' dinP/L - - B B
Current Sevice Cost 2.48 3.89 5.43 3.71
Past Service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - - - -
Net Interest Cost 1.90 1.03 2.71 0.26
Actuarial (gain) / losses on obligation -0.08 - -20.06 -
Net Benefit or expenses 4.29 4.92 -11.91 3.97

F.(i )/ r d as other compret income - - - -
Due to change in financial assumption - 1.85 - -0.07
Due to change in demographic assumption -0.02 - -
Due to experience Adjustments - -2.96 - 5.92
Retun on plan asset excluding amounts included in interest income - -1.49 - 0.36
Net Benefit or expenses - -2.62 - 6.21

G.(Assets)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet - - - -
Opening net liability 26.72 0.00 38.63 5.24
Transfer in / (out) obligation - - - -
Expenses as above [P&L charge] 4.29 -22.86 -11.91 3.97
Expenses as above [OCI] - -2.62 - 6.21
Employer’s contribution & Benefits paid by the company -4.29 - - -

(Assets)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 26.72 -25.47 26.72 15.42

H. Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet date: (Non-funded)

Discount rate 6.55% 6.55% 7.65% 7.65%
[The rate of discount is considered based on market yield on Government Bonds having
currency and terms consistence with the currency and terms of the post employment
benefit obligations]

Expected rate of return on the plan assets 0% 6.55% 0% 7.65%
[The expected rate of return assumed by the insurance company is generally based on
their Investment patterns as stipulated by the Government of India]

Annual increase in salary cost 7.00% 7.00% 7% 7%

[The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account
of Inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in
the employment market]

1. The categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets are
Insurance Company 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sensitivity Analysis (Rs. In Lakh)

For the year ended on For the year ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Particulars Privilege Leave Gratuity Privilege Leave Gratuity
(Non-funded) ( Funded ) (Non-funded) ( Funded )

Discount rate Senstivity - - - -

Increase by 0.5% -25.33 -24.96 -25.53 -22.95

Decrease by 0.5% 28.23 26.78 28.00 24.44

Salary growth rate Sensitivity - - - -

Increase by 0.5% 28.22 26.35 28.00 24.44

Decrease by 0.5% -25.33 -25.34 -25.52 -23.19

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensitivity - - - -

W.R. X 110% 26.65 26.20 26.78 24.02

W.R. X 90% -26.79 -25.44 -26.64 -23.27

37 Related Parties Disclosure:-

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below

A. Related Party

1 Gokul Overseas A Firm in which some of the directors and company are

Professional Commodity Services Step Down Subsidiary Company

2| Pvt. Ltd.

3 Gokul Agri International Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary

4 Gokul RefoilsPte Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary-Windup in FY 2018-19

5 Gujarat Gokul Power Ltd. Associate Company.

6 Gokul Foundation Charitable Trust where some of the Key Management

7 Shree Bahuchar Jan Seva Trust Charitable Trust where some of the Key Management
B. Key Management Personnel

1|Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput Chairman and Managing Director

2|Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput Executive Director

3|Mr. BipinbhaiThakkar Whole Time Director till 20.01.2020

4|Mr. Praveen Khandelwal Chief Executive Officer

5|Mr. Shaunak Mandalia CFO and Add. Director from 20.01.2020

6|Mr. Vijay Kalyani Company Secretary till 07.08.2019

7|Mr. Abhinav Mathur Company Secretary From 07.08.2019

Relative of Key Management

C.  Personnel:

1[Ms. Hina Thakkar [Wife of Whole Time Director 20.01.2020

2|Ms. Khushboo Khandelwal |Wife of Chief Executive Officer
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D. Transactions with related parties. (Rs. In Lakh)
Sr. Related Parties Key M Personnel Relative of KMP
No Nature of Transaction 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19
1 Purchases E 46.68
2 MEIS License Sales b 4.68]
3 Men Power services income 79.74
4 Salary and bonus E - 121.08| 123.92 22.48] 24.24
5 Corporate Guarantee given 5,575.00| 5,575.00
6 Director's Sitting Fees 0.79 0.60
7 Return of Investments 218.61 578.54]
8 Donation : :
9 Interest Earned 633.37] 583.80)
10 |Purchases of Fixed Asset-KPT & CWIP L
835.63]
11 |Rent Paid 13.80) 13.23
12 |Loan given to employees - - 6.00
13 |Loans/advances given (Net) 964.85| -289.75
Related Parties Key M. Personnel Relative of KMP

14 |Balance Outstanding 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19

Trade Payables 19.12 -

Non Current Financial ~Assets -

Investments 400.00] 400.00

Current Financial Assets - Investments

3,499.14 3,703.62

Current Financial Assets - Others (loan

to employees) E - 6.00 E

Trade Receivable 124.08 |

Other Current Assets b 0.78

Non Current Financial Assets - Loans 2,014.55 2,978.62
Material Transactions with Related Pary

(Rs. In Lakh)
Sr. |Name of Related Party/ KMP/ Relative| Nature of Transaction 2019-20 2018-19
No. |of KMP
1 Gokul Agri International Limited Purchase - 46.68)
2 Gokul Agri International Limited MEIS License Sales - 4.68|
3 Gokul Agri International Limited Men Power services 79.74] E
Purchases of Fixed

4 Gokul Agri International Limited Asset-KPT & CWIP 835.63| E
5 Gokul Agri International Limited Corporate Gaurantee 5,575.00| 5,575
6 Gokul Agri International Limited Rent paid 13.80 13.23
7 Gokul Agri International Limited Interest Received 104.08| 91.16|
8 Gokul Overseas Interest Received 394.55| 346.02]
9 Gujarat Gokul Power Limited Interest Received 135 145.85]
10 |Gokul Foundation Donation : 16.11
11 [Dharmendrasinh Rajput Remuneration 24.00| 24.00|
12 |Bipinbhai Thakkar till 20.01.2020 Remuneration 9.21 11.35
13 |Praveen Khadelwal Remuneration 56.15| 56.15]
14 |Shaunak Mandalia Remuneration 20.25 20.23
15 [Shaunak Mandalia Loan given 6.00 :
16 |Vijay Kalyani till 07.08.2020 Remuneration 4.47| 12.20
17 |Abhinav Mathur from 07.08.2020 Remuneration 7.00| .
18 |Mrs. Hina Thakkar till 20.01.2020 Salary 7.48| 9.24
19 |Khushboo Khandelwal Salary 15.00| 15.00

38 Segment Reporting
As per Ind AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’, if a financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements of a parent that is within the scope of Ind AS-108 as well
as the parent’s separate financial statements, segment information is required only in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, information required to be
presented under Ind AS-108 Operating Segments has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

39 Earnings per share

(Rs. In Lakh)

. For the year ended on | For the year ended on
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Profit/Loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders 742 273
No. of Weighted Average Equity shares outstanding during the year 1318.95 1318.95
Nominal Value of Share (In Rs.) 2.00: 2.00:!
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (In Rs.) 0.56 0.21

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and dilutive earning per share of the Company remain the same.

40 Details of Loan given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act.

Loans given, Investment made are given under the respective heads.

41 Details of Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Expenditure

a)

Company is not required to spend money during the year (Previous Year Rs. NIL) on CSR activities
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

Accounting classification and Fair Values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, including their levels in the Fair Value hierarchy. It does not include Fair Value information for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities not measured at Fair Value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of Fair Value.

(Rs. In Lakh)
Carrying Amount Fair Value
" Fair Value through
March 31, 2020 Fair Va}lue through Other Cumpreheniive Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Profit and Loss
Income
Financial Assets measured at amortised Cost :-
Loans :-
Non-current - - 3,234.89 3,234.89 - -
Current - - 1,210.30 1,210.30 - -
Other Financial Assets :-
Non-current - - 6.62 6.62 - -
Current - - 63.83 63.83 - -
Trade and Other Receivables - - 723.25 723.25 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 851.17 851.17 - -
Bank Balances (other than above) - - 45.35 45.35 - -
Total Financial Assets - - 6,135.43 6,135.43 - -
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised Cost
Borrowings :-
Trade and Other Payables - - 108.18 108.18 - -
Other Financial Liabilities :-
Current - - 0.95 0.95 - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 109.13 109.13 - -
Carrying Amount Fair Value
" Fair Value through
March 31, 2019 Fair Value through | Cumpreheniive Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Profit and Loss
Income
Financial Assets measured at amortised Cost :-
Loans :-
Non-current - - 2,978.62 2,978.62 - -
Current - - 1,210.30 1,210.30 - -
Other Financial Assets :-
Non-current - - 6.62 6.62 - -
Current - - 69.87 69.87 - -
Trade and Other Receivables - - 2.71 271 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 12.40 12.40 - -
Bank Balances (other than above) - - 5.48 5.48 - -
Total Financial Assets - - 4,286.02 4,286.02 - -
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised Cost
Borrowings :-
Trade and Other Payables - - 293.41 293.41 - -
Other Financial Liabilities :-
Current - - 0.95 0.95 - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 294.36 294.36 - -

“(1) Investment in Subsidiary/Associate carried at amortised cost. Fair Value of financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at Amortized cost is not materially different from the Amortized cost Furthers impact of
time value of money is not Significant for the financial instrument classified as current. Accordingly fair value has not been disclosed seperately. ”

Types of inputs are as under:

Input Level | (Directly Observable) which includes quoted prices in active markets for identical assets such as quoted price for an Equity Security on Security Exchanges

Input Level Il (Indirectly Observable) which includes prices in active markets for similar assets such as quoted price for similar assets in active markets, valuation multiple derived from prices in observed
transactions involving similar businesses etc.

Input Level Il (Unobservable) which includes management's own assumptions for arriving at a fair value such as projected cash flows used to value a business etc.
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Currency Futures Based on exchange rates listed on NSE/MCX stock exchange

Commodity futures Based on commodity prices listed on MCX/ NCDX/ACE stock exchange

Forward contracts Based on FEDAI Rates

Interest rate swaps Based on Closing Rates provided by Banks

Open purchase and sale contracts Based on commodity prices listed on NCDEX stock exchange, and prices Available on SolventExtractor’s association (SEA) along with quotations from brokers and adjustments
made for gradeand location of commodity

Options Based on Closing Rates provided by Banks

Financial Risk Management:-
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit Risk ;
= Liquidity Risk ; and
= Market Risk
- Currency Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Commodity Risk
- Equity Risk

Risk Management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company manages market risk through a treasury department,
which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by
Board of Directors. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

The Company’s Risk Management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s Risk Management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the

results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Risk

100



Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from
customers and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following Financial Assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other Financial Assets

The Company maintains its Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-
going basis.The derivatives are entered into with bank and financial institution counter parties, which are considered to be good.

Trade Receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographicsof the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit
risk assessment. Credit risk is managedthrough credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to whichthe Company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business.

The maximum exposure to Credit Risk for Trade Receivables by geographic region was as follows: (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Domestic 723.25 2.71
Other Region - -
Total 723.25 2.71

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows: (Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Neither Due nor impaired 723.25 271
Past Due 1 - 90 Days - -
Past Due 91 - 180 Days - -
More than 180 Days 36.29 36.42
Total 759.55 39.13

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any
significant credit losses. Impaired amounts are based on lifetime expected losses based on the best estimate of the management. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by
more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss related to several customers that have defaulted on
theirpayments to the Company and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Balance as at 1st April 36.42 -
Impairment Loss recognised - 36.42
Amount written off/Reversed 0.13 -
Balance as at 31st March 36.29 36.42
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its Financial Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of

netting agreements.
(Rs. In Lakh)

Contractual Cash Flows
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities Carring Amount Carring Amount 31st
31st March, 2020 |March, 2019

Trade and Other Payables 108.18 293.41
(Rs. In Lakh)
Derivative Financial Liabiliti 31st March, 2020  |31st March, 2019

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Outflow - USD in Lakhs - -
- Inflow - -

Total - -

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted Cash Flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are not usually
closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultaneous
gross cash settlement.

Excessive Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled
and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

Financial instruments — Fair Values and Risk Management

Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.Market
risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and short term debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk and the value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The
objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency Risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange
contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Cross currency in
lakhs
Hedges of highly probable forcasted Transactions Forward Contract  |USD - -

Category Instrument Currency Amount USD in Lakhs |Buy/Sell
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Exposure to Currency Risk
The currency profile of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities with exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in rupees, are as follows

(Rs. In Lakh)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial Assets usb SGD Usb SGD
Non Currrent Investments - - - 14.12
Total - - - 14.12
Financial Liabilities
Total - - - -

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at March 31 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected equity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or (Loss) Equity, Net of Tax

Effects in (Rs. In Lakhs) Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 st March, 2020

3% Movement

SGD . . . -

31 st March, 2019

3% Movement

SGD (0.42) 0.42 (0.28) 0.28

Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash Flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s Interest Rate Risk arises from borrowings obligations. Borrowings issued exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as
reported to the management of the Company is Nil:-

Commodity Risk

The prices of agricultural commodities are subject to wide fluctuations due to unpredictable factors such as weather, governmentpolicies, changes in global demand resulting from population growth and changes
in standards of living and global productionof similar and competitive crops. During its ordinary course of business, the value of the Company’s open sales and purchases commitments and inventory of raw
material changes continuously in line with movements in the prices of the underlying commaodities. To the extent that its open sales and purchases commitments do not match at the end of each business day, the
Company is subjected to price fluctuations in the commodities market.

While the Company is exposed to fluctuations in agricultural commodities prices, its policy is to minimise its risks arising fromsuch fluctuations by hedging its sales either through direct purchases of a similar
commodity or through futures contracts onthe commodity exchanges. The prices on the commodity exchanges are generally quoted up to twelve months forward.

In the course of hedging its sales either through direct purchases or through futures, the Company may also be exposed to theinherent risk associated with trading activities conducted by its personnel. The
Company has in place a risk management systemto manage such risk exposure.

Equity Risk

Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The fair value ofsome of the Company’s investments in Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
securities exposes the Company to equity price risks. In general, these securities are not held for trading purposes. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair value of equity
securities as of March 31, 2020, was Rs. Nil [FY 2018-2019 Rs.Nil Lakh]. A Sensex standard deviation of 5% [FY 2018-2019 5%] would result in change in equity prices of securitiesheld as of March 31, 2020 by Rs.Nil
Lakh. [ FY 2018-2019 Rs.Nil Lakh]

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital
as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

N2, 1N LARTY
Particulars As at 31st March, |As at 31st March,
2020 2019

Total Interest bearing liabilities - -
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 851.17 12.40
Adjusted Net Debt - -
Total Equity 25,773.00 25,029.25
Adjusted equity 25,773.00 25,029.25
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio - -

44 The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income -tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has

45

recognised provision for Income tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 and re-measured its Deferred Tax Assets basis the rate prescribed in the said Section.

Impact of COVID 19

The Company has considered the possible impact that may arise from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the carrying amount of its assets including inventory and receivables. In developing the assumptions relating
to the impact of possible future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources of
information including economic forecasts. The Company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

| of Financial

46 App

The financial statements of the company has been approved in the board meeting held on 16th June, 2020.

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner

Membership No:103762
UDIN: 20103762AAAACD4138

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

For and On Behalf of the Board

Balvantsinh C Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members,
Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gokul Refoils and Solvent
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which includes Group’s share of profit/loss in its
associate comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information other than the Consolidated financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis and chairman
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statement, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015 as amended The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial

ctatarmanto that aivia a triia and fair viaw and ara fraa fram matarial micotatamant whathar dnia ta frand Ar

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal cantral
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial
information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two
subsidiaries (including one step-down subsidiary), whose financial statements include total assets of
Rs. 43,262.91 lakhs as at March 31, 2020, and total revenues of Rs. 2,15,858.80 lakhs and net cash
outflows of Rs. 266.16 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by other auditor, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s report have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of such other auditor.

(b) The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of net profit of Rs.
Nil for the year ended March 31, 2020 as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of one associate whose financial statements and other financial information have been
audited by other auditor and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Company’s Management
and our opinion, so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this one
associate is based solely on the reports of its auditor.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted
in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
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financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure” to this
report

(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditor of the subsidiary
incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of
the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph :-

(a) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer
Note 35 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2020;

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

For, M. M. Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110905W

D. M. Thakkar
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 16th June 2020 Membership No.103762
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M.M.THAKKAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1, Galaxy Commercial Centre, First Floor, Jawahar Road, Rajkot-360001
Phones: (0281) 2224290¢9824212481¢ e-mail: dmthakkar @hotmail.com

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GOKUL REFOILS & SOLVENT LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013

Opinion

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited as of
31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Respective
companies policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal Financial
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Controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Group’s Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Group's Internal Financial Control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(') pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and

('3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforsaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequecy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls Over Financial Reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary/ stepdown subsidiary companies and
an associate company, which are companies incorporated in India is solely based on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

For, M. M. Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110905W

D. M. Thakkar
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 16th June 2020 Membership No.103762
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2020

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Note No. Ason Ason
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
1 ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 7,248.48 6,787.71
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 222.90 255.46
(c) Intangibles 2 10.17 12.02
(d) Financial Assets -
(i) Investments -
a) Investments in Associate and
Partnership Firm 3 400.00 400.00
b) Other Investments 3.1 1.47 1.52
(i) Loan 4 2,046.34 1,883.75
(iii) Other Financial Assets 5 99.33 73.26
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 6 - 159.13
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 7 145.24 702.33
10,173.94 10,275.18
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 16,163.48 14,089.59
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 3,499.14 3,814.08
(ii) Trade receivables 10 8,738.07 10,488.19
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 2,443.51 1,359.46
(iv) Other Bank balance 12 4,319.03 4,472.64
(v) Loans 13 1,875.30 1,700.31
(vi) Others Financial Assets 14 1,464.16 1,324.71
(c) Other current assets 15 10,963.87 13,145.51
(d) Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 15.19 -
49,481.75 50,394.49
Total Assets 59,655.69 60,669.67
2 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 16 2,637.90 2,637.90
(b) Other equity 17 27,858.33 25,906.56
Total equity 30,496.23 28,544.46
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 18 173.66 75.95
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 337.90 -
511.56 75.95
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 23,159.52 26,288.57
(ii) Trade payables 20 2,074.49 2,598.57
(iii) Other Financial liabilities 21 0.95 0.95
(b) Other current liabilities 22 3,359.08 2,862.81
(c) Provisions 23 53.86 83.87
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 - 214.49
28,647.90 32,049.26
Total Liabilities 29,159.46 32,125.21
Total Equity and Liabilities 59,655.69 60,669.67
0.00 (0.00)

Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

D M THAKKAR
Partner
Membership No:103762

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

For and On Behalf of the Board

Balvantsinh C Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Rs. In Lakh
Particulars Note No. Ason Ason
31st March, 2020 | 31st Mar, 2019
INCOME
Revenue from operations 24 216,121.68 219,762.67
Other income 25 2,294.37 2,265.82
Total Income 218,416.05 222,028.49
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 26 188,116.35 170,144.37
Purchase of Stock in Trade 27 16,226.74 36,264.84
Changes In Inventories Of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress And
Stock-In-Trade 28 (331.68) 906.94
Employee benefits expense 29 1,422.43 1,429.97
Finance costs 30 2,857.21 3,225.41
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 556.22 502.61
Other expenses 31 6,911.47 7,673.23
Total Expenses 215,758.75 220,147.37
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 2,657.30 1,881.13
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,657.30 1,881.13
Tax expense:
Current tax 249.58 577.53
Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 6 506.12 140.13
Excess/(Short) Provision Of Earlier Years (76.49) (39.71)
Less: MAT credit entitlement - (12.40)
Income tax expense 679.21 665.55
Net Profit/(Loss) from ordinaty activities after tax 1,978.08 1,215.58
Other comprehensive income / (Expenses)
A)  oOther comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
(i) Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans
(Gratuity) 32 (35.37) 11.94
(ii) Equity Instruments designated through other comprehensive
income (0.04) 0.00
Income tax effect Liability / (Assets) on above remeasurement
6 (9.09) 4.17
B)  Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or
loss
Fair value of financial Instrument (MF ) - 10.46
Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss - 3.66
Other comprehensive income for the year (26.31) 14.58
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,951.77 1,230.16
Earning per equity share:
Earning per equity share
(1) Basic In Rupees 1.50 0.92
(2) Diluted In Rupees 1.50 0.92

Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

D M THAKKAR
Partner
Membership No:103762

Praveen Khandelwal

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

Balvantsinh C Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Chief Executive Officer

For and On Behalf of the Board

Shaunak Mandalia

CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur

Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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Gokul Refoils And Solvent Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2020

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended on
31st March, 2020

For the year ended on
31st March, 2019

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit after Taxation (Total Comprehensive Income) for the year 2,621.89 1,860.72
Adjustment For :-

Depreciation and amortization expenses 556.22 502.61
Loss/(Profit) On Sale Of Fixed Assets-Net 10.21 (1.86)
Interest Income (976.99) (972.95)
Interest Expenses (Including Prepaid expense out) 2,726.25 2,963.74
(Profit)/Loss From Partnership Firm (68.47) (62.73)
Gain On Sale Of Mutual Fund (27.05) (40.49)
Provision For Retirement Benefits 85.05 86.60
Total 2,413.23 2,511.34
Operating Profit ( Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 5,035.12 4,372.06
Adjustment For :-

( Increase)/ Decrease In Non Current Other Financial Assets (26.06) (1.96)
( Increase)/ Decrease In Other Non Current Assets 557.08 115.68
( Increase)/ Decrease In Inventories (2,073.89) 5,450.23
( Increase)/ Decrease In Trade Receivables 1,750.12 (1,662.20)
( Increase)/ Decrease In Other Bank balance 153.62 1,080.80
( Increase)/ Decrease In Current Financial Loan (175.00) (280.00)
( Increase)/ Decrease In Current Others Financial Assets (139.45) (853.23)
( Increase)/ Decrease In Others Current Assets 2,167.45 (746.77)
Increase / (Decrease) In Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables (504.96) (864.10)
Increase / (Decrease) In Current Financial Liabilities - Other Liabilities - (0.14)
Increase / (Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities 251.77 1,280.10
Cash Generated From Operations 6,995.80 7,890.47
Direct Tax (Paid) /Received (401.63) (547.15)
Retirement Benefits paid (97.62) (105.37)
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items 6,496.55 7,237.94
Extraordinary Items (Deffered Tax Liab Diff) - -
Net Cash From Operating Activities Total 6,496.55 7,237.94
Net Cash Flow From Investment Activities

Sales Proceeds from Disposal of Other Fixed Assets 22.66 1.62
Purchase Of Fixed Assets (458.76) (235.84)
(Purchase)/Disposal Of Current Investment 314.95 (621.35)
Interest Received 976.99 972.95
Proift/(Loss) from Partnership Firm 68.47 62.73
Gain On Sale Of Mutual Fund 27.05 40.49
(Purchase)/Disposal Of Non Current Investment - Capital repatriation 0.04 (0.00)
Loan To Subsidiary /Associates (181.72) (234.06)
Net Cash From Investment Activities 769.68 (13.47)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Interest Paid (3,053.12) (3,207.80)
(Repayment)/Acquisition of Short term borrowings (3,129.06) (4,594.44)
Net Cash From Financial Activities (6,182.18) (7,802.24)
Net Increase /(-) Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents 1,084.05 (577.77)
Opening Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents 1,359.46 1,937.22
Closing Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents 2,443.51 1,359.46
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with Balance sheet

cash and cash equivalent as per Balance sheet 2,443.51 1,359.46
Closing Balance In Cash And Cash Equivalents as per Balance sheet 2,443.51 1,359.46

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar

Partner

Membership No:103762
16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

For and On Behalf of the Board

Balvantsinh C. Rajput
Chairman & Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 202(

Rs.in Lakhs
i . As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
(a) Equity Share Capital
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90
Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - - - -
Add: Loan converted in to Equity - - - -
Less: Loss converted in to equity - - - -
Less: Repatriation of remaing equity - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90
(b) Other Equity
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars Gl e S.ecurltles General Reserve | Retained Earning Total
Account Premium Account
Balance at 1st April, 2018 89.47 379.05 6,238.75 17,969.14 24,676.41
Profit for the year - - - 1,215.58 1,215.58
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 14.58 14.58
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1,230.16 1,230.16
Balance at 31st March, 2019 89.47 379.05 6,238.75 19,199.30 25,906.56
Profit for the year - - - 1,978.08 1,978.08
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (26.31) (26.31)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1,951.77 1,951.77
Balance at 31st March, 2020 89.47 379.05 6,238.75 21,151.06 27,858.33

As per our report of even date attached

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No: 110905W)

Darshak M Thakkar
Partner
Membership No:103762

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad

For and On Behalf of the Board

Balvantsinh C. Rajput
Chairman & Managing Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BACKGROUND
Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company. The Company, its subsidiaries and
associate collectively referred as “the Group” engaged in the business of proessing of oil seeds and refining of crude oil for
edible use, trading in oil seeds and edible/non edible oils. The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2020
presents the financial position of the Group as well as its interest in associate company. The Company is listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

These Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 16, 2020.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act as applicable to the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financials.

b) Functional and presentation currency
These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise indicated.

c) Basis of Measurement
These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention basis, except for the
following:

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.
(i) Assets held for sale- Measured at the lower of (a) carrying amount and (b) Fair Value less cost to sell.

(iii) Net defined benefit plans- Plan assets measured at Fair Value less present value of defined benefit obligation.

(iv) Determining the Fair Value

While measuring the Fair Value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a Fair Value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the Fair Value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the Fair Value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the Fair Value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

d) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group. It also includes the Group’s
share of profits, net assets and retained post-acquisition reserves of associate that are consolidated using the equity
or proportionate method of consolidation, as applicable. Control over an entity in the Group is achieved when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights tothe variable returns of the entity and ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The results of subsidiary, step down subsidiay and associate acquired or disposed off during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.Wherever necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiary, step down subsidiary and associate to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The information about the Group is as follows

S.no. [Name of the entity Country of Domicile |Nature of control [Proportion of
ownership
interest

1 Gokul Agri International Ltd. India Subsidiary 100%

2 Professional Commodities Services Ltd. India Stepdown 100%

subsidiary

3 Gujarat Gokul Power Ltd. India Associate 48%

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(i)  The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line by line basis by adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(ix)

(x)

e)

Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property,
plant & equipment, are eliminated in full.

In case of foreign subsidiary, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets
and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on
consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary.

The items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at
rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve.

Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit / loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company’s shareholders.

Investment in Associates has been accounted under the equity method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures.

The Company accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associate after eliminating unrealised
profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its associate to the extent of its share,
through its Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent such change is attributable to the associate’
Statement of Profit and Loss and through its reserves for the balance based on available information.

Use of Estimates and Judgement

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are known or materialised.The most significant estimates and assumptions are described below:

(i) Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statement are as below:

- Leases identification- Whether an agreement contains a lease.

- Classification of lease - Whether Operating or Finance

(ii) Assumptions and Estimations
Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment are as below:
1. Impairment test of non-financial assets
For the purpose of assessing recoverability of non-financial assets, assets are grouped at the lower levels for
which there are individually identifiable cash flows (Cash Generating Units).

2. Allowance for bad debts
The Management makes estimates related to the recoverability of receivables, whose book values are
adjusted through an allowance for Expected losses. Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable,
customers ‘creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer’s collection terms when
assessing the adequate allowance for expected losses, which are estimated over the lifetime of the debts.

3. Recognition and measurement of Provisions and Contingencies
The Group’s Management estimates key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources based on available information and the assumptions and methods deemed appropriate. Wherever
required, these estimates are prepared with the assistance of legal counsel. As and when additional
information becomes available to the Group, estimates are revised and adjusted periodically.

4. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
The Management makes estimates as regards to availability of future taxable profits against which
unabsorbed depreciation/ tax losses carried forward can be used.

5. Measurements of Defined benefit obligations
The measurements are based on key actuarial assumptions.

6. Impact of COVID 19
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f)

g)

h)

The Group has considered the possible impact that may arise from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the
carrying amount of its assets including inventory and receivables. In developing the assumptions relating to
the impact of possible future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Group, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources of
information including economic forecasts. The Group based on current estimates expects the carrying
amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

Application of New Accounting Pronouncements
The Group has applied the following Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019. The effect is described below:

1. Effective April 01, 2019, the Group has adopted modified retrospective approch as per para C8(C)(ii) of Ind
AS 116 -Leases to its leases, using cumulative effect method. There is no material impact on adoption of the
standard on these financial results.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle (not
exceeding twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

1.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

U]

(i)

(iii)

b)

Property, Plant and Equipmrnt
Recognition and measurement

Group had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e.
1st April, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence regarded thereafter as historical cost.

Free hold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost (which
includes capitalised borrowing costs) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management.

) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciated accordingly. Any gain or
loss on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation, Estimated useful life and estimated residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method, pro rata to the period of use, taking into account useful
lives and residual value of the assets. The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in
the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. Depreciation is computed with reference to cost or revalued value as per
previous GAPP as the case may be. The assets residual value and useful life are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

A Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

B Internally generated intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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D]

Trade Marks, Technical Know-how Fees and other similar rights are amortised over their estimated useful
life.

Capitalised cost incurred towards purchase/ development of software is amortised using straight line
method over its useful life of five years as estimated by the management at the time of capitalisation.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An item of intangible asset initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
[calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign
exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options.

Financial Assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign
exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options.

a)

b)

ii)

i)

c)

d)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-[FVTOCI], or Fair
Value Through Profit and Loss-[FVTPL] and - those measured at Amortised Cost.[AC]. The classification
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of investments

In Equity instruments

- For subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures - Investments are measured at cost and tested for
impairment periodically. Impairment (if any) is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- For Other than subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture - Investments are measured at FVTOCI.

In Mutual fund

Measured at FVTPL.

In Debt instruments

The Group measures the debts instruments at Amortised Cost. Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest [SPPI] are
measured at amortised cost. Gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised
cost and is not part of the hedging relationship, is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the Effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

- The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset, or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset and has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised.

Where the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained the control
of the financial asset. Where the Group retains the control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model for measurement and
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recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

- For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss.

(ii)  Financial Liabilities

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

g)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL and
- those measured at Amortised Cost (AC)

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL or AC.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at Fair Value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, Fair Value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to statement of profit or loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. AC is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally
applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying mounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

forward commodity contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price
risks respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at Fair Value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at Fair Value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the Fair Value is positive and as financial liabilities when the Fair Value is
negative.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolesce, if any, except for
realisable by-products which are measured at net realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined using the
first-in first out (FIFO) method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories, production or conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity. The comparison of cost and Net Realisable value is made on an item by item basis. Net
realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work in progress is determined with
reference to selling prices of finished products.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at Fair Value and subsequently measured at AC using the effective interest
method less provision for impairment. As per Ind AS 109 the Group has applied ECL for recognising the allowance for
doubtful debts. Where Group has offered extended credit period [ECP] to the debtors, the said amount is recorded at
present value, with corresponding credit in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the extended credit
period

Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of the cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes the cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, in the year in which it is approved by shareholders.

1) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (adjusted for amounts
directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by Weighted average number of Equity
shares, (excluding treasury shares).

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (adjusted for amounts
directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by Weighted average number of Equity
shares (excluding treasury shares) considered for basic earning per shares including dilutive potential Equity shares.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at Fair Value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at AC. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method. Processing/Upfront fee
are treated as prepaid asset and netted off from borrowings. The same is amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates. Preference shares are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, if approved,
by shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs, in the
year when approved. Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any non-cash assets
transferred or liability assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other gains or (losses). Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of liabilities for
at least twelve months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on
demand on the reporting date, the same is classified as current unless the lender agreed, after the reporting period
and before the approval of financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Trade and Other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid at the period end. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their Fair Value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the Group at the exchange rate
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k)

m)

prevailing at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets (other than investments in companies registered outside
India) and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Investments in companies registered outside India are converted at rate prevailing at the
date of acquisition. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at Fair Value in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the Fair Value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated. Difference on account of
changes in foreign currency are generally charged to the statement of profit & loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

1 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance
as the Group performs; or
2 The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced; or
3 The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised on the basis of customer contracts and the performance obligation contained therein.
Revenues is recognised at a point in time when the control to the buyer of goods or services is transferred to a
customer.Control lies with the customer if the customer can independently determine the use of and consume the
benefit derived from a product or service Revenue from product deliveries are recognised at a point in time based on
an overall assessment of the existence of a right to payment, the allocation of ownership rights, the transfer of risks
and rewards, and acceptance by the customer. The goods are often sold with volume discounts/ pricing incentives
and customers have a right to return damaged products.

Revenue from sales is based on the price in the sales contracts, net of discounts. Historical experience, specific
contractual terms and future expectations of sales are used to estimate and provide for damage claims. No element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with the normal credit terms as per prevalent trade practice
and credit policy followed by the Company ond normal credit terms.

(ii) Sale of Services
Revenue from services is recognised when agreed contractual task has been completed.

(iii) Other Income

a) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.

b) Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis on time proportion basis and measured at effective
interest rate.

c) Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainity as to its determination or realisation exists.

(iv) Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on
eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
and loss due to its operating nature.

(v) Insurance Claims
Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is virtually certain of their
ultimate collection

Government Grants
(i) Grants from the Government are recognised at their Fair Value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

(i) Government grant relating to purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment are included in "Other current/ non-
current liabilities" as Government Grant - Deferred Income and are credited to Profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the expected life of the related asset and presented within "Other Operating revenue".

employee Benefits

(i) During Employment benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

120



n)

o)

p)

(ii) Post-Employment benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Group pays fixed contribution into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. The Group makes specified
monthly contributions towards government administered Provident Fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Group pays gratuity to the employees who have has completed five years of service with the company at the
time when employee leaves the Company. The gratuity is paid as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to
the employees. The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the periods during which the benefit is expected to be derived from
employees' services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to Other
Comprehensive Income.

(c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date
or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. In case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve months after the end of reporting period are
discounted to the present value.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or in equity. In such cases, the tax is
also recognised in the other comprehensive income or in equity.

(a) Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have enacted or subsequently enacted by the end
of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which they can be used.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on the same taxable Group.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for
capitalisation.All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period for which they
are incurred.

Leases

Effective 1st April, 2019, the Group adopted IND AS 116 - Leases. Group applied IND AS 116 using modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in retained earnings at
1st April 2019. The comparative information presented is not restated. It is presented as previously reported under
IND AS 17

Accounting policy applicable before 1st April 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in the arrangements.
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Lessee:

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Leases of assets under which significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Lessor:

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase.

Accounting policy applicable from 1st April 2019

At the inception it is assessed, whether a contract is a lease or contains a lease. A contract is a lease or contains a
lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, for a period of time, in exchange for
consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, company assesses whether
the contract involves the use of an identified asset. Use may be specified explicitly or implicitly.

Use should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.

If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
of use.

Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

In cases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is determined when
the Group has the right to use the asset or the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for
what purpose it will be used.

Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
of use

1 Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.
In cases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is determined
when the Group has the right to use the asset or the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines
how and for what purpose it will be used.

At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component, Group allocates the
consideration in the contract, to each lease component, on the basis of its relative standalone prices. For
leases of property, it is elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-

As a Lessee:
Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

Right-of-use asset (ROU):

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee, an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located less any lease incentives received.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying cost model, which is Cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and also adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

Right-of-use asset is depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease
term. If the lease transfers the ownership of the underlying asset to the company at the end of the lease term or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects company will exercise the purchase option, ROU will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined based on the same basis as property, plant and equipment.

Lease liability:

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. Discounting is done using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate cannot be readily determined, then
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rate adjusted for terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that depends on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date, amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, the
exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability is re-measured when
there is a change in the lease term, a change in its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or a revised in-substance fixed lease payment, a change in the amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee and a change in future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate.

When the lease liability is re-measured corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero it will be recorded in statement of
profit and loss.

Right-of-use asset is presented as a separate category under “Non-current assets” and lease liabilities are presented
under “Financial liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lessor
At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component, Group allocates the
consideration in the contract, to each lease component, on the basis of its relative standalone prices.

At the inception of the lease, it is determined whether it is a finance lease or an operating lease. If the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, then it is a financial lease,
otherwise it is an operating lease.

If the lease arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the consideration in the contract is
allocated using the principles of IND AS 115. The Group tests for the impairment losses at the year end. Payment
received under operating lease is recognised as income on straight line basis, over the lease term.

The accounting policies applicable to the company as a lessor, in the comparative period, were not different from
IND AS 116.

Non- Current assets held for sale

Non-Current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at lower of
their (a.) carrying amount and (b.) Fair Value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
when they are classified as held for sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such size,
nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the
nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no
such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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Nore-2 Property plant and equipment as on 31st March 20.

Rs. In Lakhs
Gross Block Depreciation Fund Net Block
N Addition / Disposal of - Disposal of
Particulars 1st April, 2019 |Adjustment (+ (S.ales) / Discontinued 315t March, 1st April, 2019 Depreciation for (S.ales) / Discontinued 31st March, 1st April, 2019 |31st March, 2020
(Retirement) 2020 the year (Retirement) 2020
or-) u/T u/T
Tangible Assets
Free Hold Land 621.50 - - - 621.50 - - - - - 621.50 621.50
Lease Hold Land** (0.00) 1,336.78 (652.89) - 683.89 (0.00) 25.72 (18.60) - 7.12 0.00 676.77
Buildings 1,741.25 10.42 - - 1,751.67 165.48 56.33 - - 221.81 1,575.77 1,529.86
Plant & Machinery 5,269.87 333.39 - - 5,603.26 996.10 387.33 - - 1,383.43 4,273.77 4,219.83
Furniture & Fixtures 53.27 - - - 53.27 15.94 5.48 - - 21.42 37.33 31.84
Office Equipments 120.00 14.25 - - 134.26 72.96 29.16 - - 102.12 47.04 32.13
Computers 30.45 3.02 - - 33.47 21.53 3.40 - - 24.93 8.93 8.54
Vehicles 316.08 97.68 (77.66) - 336.11 92.70 44.83 (44.79) - 92.75 223.38 243.36
Total 8,152.42 1,795.54 (730.54) - 9,217.42 1,364.71 552.27 (63.39) - 1,853.59 6,787.71 7,363.83
Capital work-in-progress
Tangible Assets 255.46 85.04 (284.96) - 55.54 - - - - - 255.46 55.54
Leasehold improvements - 167.36 - - 167.36 - - - - - - 167.36
Total 255.46 252.40 (284.96) - 222.90 - - - - - 255.46 222.90
Intangible Assets
Software Licences 31.87 3.32 - - 35.19 19.94 5.17 - - 25.11 11.94 10.08
Website Development 0.09 - - - 0.09 - - - - - 0.09 0.09
Total 31.96 3.32 - - 35.28 19.94 5.17 - - 25.11 12.02 10.17
** Reclassification on account of adoption of Ind As 116-Refer note 1(P)
Property Plant and as on 31st March, 2019 Rs. In Lakhs
Gross Block Depreciation Fund Net Block
N Addition / Disposal of . Disposal of
Particulars 15t April, 2018 |Adjustment (¢ 2/ | piccontinued | 3EMAN |1 roril, 2018 | DePreciationfor | (Sales)/ | ived | 31SEMArEh | aoril, 2018 315t March, 2019
(Retirement) 2019 the year (Retirement) 2019
or-) u/T u/T
Tangible Assets
Free Hold Land 621.50 - - - 621.50 - - - - - 621.50 621.50
Lease Hold Land (0.00) - - - (0.00) (0.00) - - - (0.00) 0.00 0.00
Buildings 1,720.73 20.52 - - 1,741.25 109.82 55.66 - - 165.48 1,610.91 1,575.77
Plant & Machinery 4,887.66 382.22 - - 5,269.87 637.95 358.15 - - 996.10 4,249.70 4,273.77
Furniture & Fixtures 53.27 - - - 53.27 10.46 5.48 - - 15.94 42.81 37.33
Office Equipments 105.27 14.74 - - 120.00 41.98 30.98 - - 72.96 63.28 47.04
Computers 26.34 4.11 - - 30.45 17.44 4.09 - - 21.53 8.91 8.93
Vehicles 293.94 26.73 (4.59) - 316.08 52.08 42.42 (1.79) - 92.70 241.85 223.38
Total 7,708.69 448.32 (4.59) - 8,152.42 869.73 496.78 (1.79) - 1,364.71 6,838.97 6,787.71
Capital work-in-progress
Tangible Assets 470.69 29.50 (244.72) - 255.46 - - - - - 470.69 255.46
ible Assets
Software Licences 29.14 2.74 - - 31.87 14.11 5.83 - - 19.94 15.03 11.94
Website Development 0.09 - - - 0.09 - - - - - 0.09 0.09
Total 29.22 2.74 - - 31.96 14.11 5.83 - - 19.94 15.11 12.02
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Note-: 3 Non Current Financial Assets - Investment

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars

As on
31st March, 2020

As on
31st March, 2019

Investment in Associate:
(i) 24,180 (Previous Year 24,180) Equity Shares of Gujarat

Gokul Power Limited of Rs. 10 each 2.42 2.42
Less: Accumulated Investor's Shares of Losses in Associate (2.42) (2.42)
Net Investment Value - -
Investment in Partnership Firm:

(i) Fixed Capital Investment in 7.5% (Previous Year 7.5%)

profit sharing Partnership Firm named Gokul Overseas 400.00 400.00
Total Investment in Partnershil Firm/Associate - Non
Current 400.00 400.06

Note-3.1 Non Current Financial Assets - Investment - Othres

particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st March, 2019
Investments in Government Or Trust Securities 1.04 1.04
Investment in equity instruments 0.43 0.47
Total Investment Others - Non Current 1.47 1.52
Details of quoted investment and unquoted investments
particulars As on31st As on
March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 401.47 401.58
Note- : 4 Non Current Financial Loans
Rs.in Lakhs
} As on31st March, As on
Particulars
2020 31st March, 2019
Loans And Advances To Related Parties
Loan to Associate 2,046.34 1,883.75
Total 2,046.34 1,883.75
Disclosures as per schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015:
Loans and advance in the nature of loans given to associate
Rs.in Lakhs
particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st March, 2019
A) Gujarat Gokul Power Limited 2,046.34 1,883.75
Total 2,046.34 1,883.75

Company has given loans and advances including interest there on of Rs 2046.34 Lakhs (Previous
. Year Rs. 1883.75 Lakhs ) to its associate in which directors are interested.

None of the loanees have made investment in share of the company.

Note- : 5 Non Current Other Financial Assets

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st March, 2019
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 73.26 73.26
Other Financial Assets - -
Receivables from key men policy 26.06 -
Total 99.33 73.26




Note -: 6 - Movement in Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Recognised Profit or

) Net Balance Recognised Profit X R ) A Net Balance 31st
Particulars ) Loss of Discontinued |Recognised in OCI
1st April, 2019 |or Loss L March, 2020
(A) Deferred Tax Liabilties
Depreciation (606.54) 119.32 - - (487.22)
Effect on Currency and Commodity Derivative - (164.42) - - (164.42)
Fair value of Financial Assets - (6.68) - - (6.68)
Fair value of financial Instrument (3.66) 3.66 - - -
(B) Deferred Tax Assets - -
Retirement Benefits 38.03 5.40 - 9.09 52.52
Disallowances under Income Tax Act. 330.20 (98.86) - - 231.33
Business Loss & Unabsorbed Depreciation 388.38 (388.38) - - -
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 12.73 23.83 - - 36.56
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets 159.13 - 9.09 (337.89)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
. .. |Recognised Profit or
Particulars Net Balance AL Loss of Discontinued |Recognised in OCI Net Balance 31st
1st April, 2018 |or Loss . March, 2019
operations
(A) Deferred Tax Liabilties
Depreciation (523.81) (82.73) - - (606.54)
Fair value of financial Instrument (0.00) - - (3.66) (3.66)
Gain / (Loss) of Derivatives - Currency & Commodity (2.65) 2.65 - - (0.00)
(B) Deferred Tax Assets -
Retirement Benefits 43.94 (1.74) - (4.17) 38.02
Disallowances under Income Tax Act. 327.02 3.17 - - 330.20
Business Loss & Unabsorbed Depreciation 462.58 (74.20) - - 388.38
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts - 12.73 - - 12.73
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets 307.08 (140.13) - (7.83) 159.14
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Note- : 7 Other Non Current Assets

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st March, 2019
Capital Advances
Unsecured, Considered Good 0.42 0.42
Prepaid Lease Rent - -
Lease Hold Land for 30 Years - 580.34
Balance with Government Authorities Unsecured, Considered
Good - -
Income Tax Refund 144.82 121.56
Total 145.24 702.33
Note- : 8 Inventories
Rs.in Lakhs
. As on31st March, As on
Particulars
2020 31st Mar, 2019
A. Raw Materials 4,568.55 2,516.37
B. Work-In-Progress 4,380:36 5,543:53
C. Finished Goods 6,125.84 4,630.99
D. Stores And Spares (Including Chemical, Fuel & Packing ) 1,088.72 1,398.70
Total 16,163.48 14,089.59
For method of valuation of inventories refer Note No. 1 (1.2) (d)
Note-: 9 Current Financial Assets - Investment
Rs.in Lakhs
As on31st March, As on

Particulars

2020 31st Mar, 2019
Measured at a fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
(A) Investments In Mutual Funds * - 110.46
Investment measured at amoritised cost - -
(B) Investments In Partnership Firm 3,499.14 3,703.62
Total 3,499.14 3,814.08
Details of quoted investment and unquoted investments
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
Aggregate Amount Of quoted Investments - -
Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 3,499.14 3,703.62
Total 3,499.14 3,703.62
Details of Current Investments
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
(A) Investments In Mutual Funds*
SBI Magnum Ultra Short duration Fund Direct growth 2649.296
Units - Unquoted ( P.Y. 2649.296 Units) - 110.46
(B) Investments In Partnership Firm - -
Gokul Overseas (Current Capital) - 7.5% (Previous Year 7.5%)
profit sharing 3,499.14 3,703.62
Total 3,499.14 3,814.08
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* Investment in Mutual Fund is Pledged with Banks as security for credit limit provided

Constitution of Gokul Oversees (Partnership Firm)

% of Share in

As on 31.03.2020

Name of Partner Profit Fixed Capital
[Loss (Amount)

1. Shri Balvantsinh C. Rajput 37.5% 200.00
2. Smt. Bhikhiben B. Rajput 30% 200.00
3. Dharmendra B Rajput 25% 11.00
4. Gokul Refoils & Solvent Ltd. 7.5% 400.00
Total 100% 811.00

Note- : 10 Current Financial Assets Trade Receivables
Rs.in Lakhs

As on31st March, As on

Particulars

2020 31st Mar, 2019
Trade Receivables
Considered Good, Secured - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 8,738.07 10,488.19
Trade receivables-Credit impaired 144.29 36.42
Total 8,882.36 10,524.61
Less: Bad Debts allowances (Expected credit loss) 144.29 36.42
Total 8,738.07 10,488.19
Note- : 11 Current Financial Assets Cash and Cash Equivalents
Rs.in Lakhs
As on31st March, As on

Particulars

2020 31st Mar, 2019
Cash And Cash Equivalent
Balances With Banks In Current A/C 1,979.75 348.72
Fixed Deposit (Having Maturity Less Than Three Months)* 446.68 994.44
Cash On Hand 17.07 16.29
Total 2,443.51 1,359.46
Note- : 12 Current Financial Assets Other Bank Balance

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on

2020 31st Mar, 2019
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit (Having Maturity More Than Three Months)* 4,319.03 4,472.64
Total 4,319.03 4,472.64

* The Fixed Deposits have been pledged with banks as security for bank guarentee provided by

Note- : 13 Current Financial Loans

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
A. Loans And Advances To Related Parties
B. Inter Corporate deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 1,875.30 1,700.31
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Total 1,875.30 1,700.31
Note- : 14 Current Other Financial Assets
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
A. Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 222.03 635.26
B. Loans And Advances to Staff - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 97.55 68.99
C. Export Incentive receivables - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 248.38 82.98
D. Derivatives Assets - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 641.63 537.48
E. Other Current Assets - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 254.57 .
Total 1,464.16 1,324.71
Note-: 15 Other Current Assets
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
Balance with Govt. Authorities. 4,997.63 6,276.20
Advances to Suppliers 5,619.74 6,580.44
Prepaid Expenses 212.26 151.68
Prepaid Lease Rent - -
Lease Hold Land at Kandla SEZ for 30 Years - 5.58
Other Receivables 134.25 131.61
Total 10,963.87 13,145.51
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Note -: 16 - Equity Share Capital

Rs.in Lakhs
. As on 31st March,2020 As on 31st Mar, 2019
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 1,750.00 3,500.00 1,750.00 3,500.00
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 2 each fully paid 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90

Total 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90

Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of such equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the share holders.

. Equity Shares (2019-20) Equity Shares (2018-19)
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,318.95 2,637.90 1,318.95 2,637.90

(b) Shareholders holding more than 5% equity share capital in the company

As on 31st March, 2020 As on 31st March, 2019

Name of Shareholder No. :f;:ares % of Holding No. :fj:ares % of Holding
Bhikhiben Balvantsinh Rajput 299.18 22.68 189.53 14.37
Balvantsinh Chandansinh Rajput 329.45 24.98 343.45 26.04
Dharmendrasinh Balvantsinh Rajput 152.94 11.60 - -
Kanubhai Jivatram Thakkar - - 78.59 5.96
Manjulaben Kanubhai Thakkar - - 184.65 14.00
Profitline Securities Private Ltd 157.63 11.95 91.88 6.97
Jashodaben Commodities LLP - - 78.75 5.97
Anand Rathi Global Finance Ltd 105.99 8.04 105.99 8.04

(C ) Aggregate no of equity shares issued during five years immediately preceeding the date of balance sheet

Allotted as

No.of Share

No.of Share

Equity Shares :

Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without
payment being received in cash

Fully paid up by way of bonus shares

Shares bought back
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Note-: 17 Other Equity

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars As on As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
a. Capital Reserve Account
Opening Balance 89.38 89.38
Closing Balance 89.38 89.38
b. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 379.05 379.05
Closing Balance 379.05 379.05
c. General Reserves
Opening Balance 6,238.84 6,238.84
Closing Balance 6,238.84 6,238.84
d. Retained Earning
Opening balance 19,199.30 17,969.14
(+) / (-) Surplus for the Year 1,951.77 1,230.16
Closing Balance 21,151.06 19,199.30
Total 27,858.33 25,906.56

Nature and Purpose of Reserve:
Capital Reserve:

Capital reserve represents the difference between the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of the subsidiary, at the date on which investment in the subsidiary was made.

Securities Premium:

Securities Premium represents, the premium received on issue of shares over and above the face value of equity
shares. Such amount is available for utilisation in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve:

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As
the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Retained Earnings:

The portion of profits not distributed among the shareholders are termed as retained earings. The same is created out

of profits over the years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Act.

Note-: 18 Non-current Provisions

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Ason As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
Provision For Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment (Unfunded) 73.64 59.01
Provision for Gratuity 100.03 16.93
Total 173.66 75.95

Note-: 19 Current liabilities Financial Borrowings

Rs. In Lakhs
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Particulars As on As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019

Secured
Loans repayable on demand

Working Capital Loans from banks repayable on demand 2,958.11 4,331.91
Unsecured - -

Acceptances against Letters of Credit 20,201.41 21,956.67

Total 23,159.52 26,288.58

Group does not have any default as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of any loan and interest.

The rate of interest ranging from 9.75 % to 11.95 % P.A. in case of cash credit /overdraft and packing credit.

Working capital loans from banks includes cash credit/overdraft/export credit facilities/letter of credit and bills
discounted

Cash Credit /Overdraft and Packing credit loans from banks are secured by 1st Pari Passu hypothecation charge on all
present and future current assests(Including receivabes and inventories and other commodities etc.) of the company
with Consortium working capital lenders Led by State Bank of India and collaterally secured by way of first charge
/residual charge on all the fixed assets of the company and also secured by Investments in Mutual Fund & Fixed

Deposits.

Note-: 20 Current liabilities Financial Trade Payables

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars Ason Ason
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
Due To Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises 132.50 54.25
Due to Others 1,942.00 2,533.28
Due to Staff - 11.03
Total 2,074.49 2,598.57

Note:
DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

Particulars

As on31st March,
2020

As on
31st Mar, 2019

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

132.50

54.25
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The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under

section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Total

132.50

54.25

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is

based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act,

as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company.

Note-: 21 Current Other Financial liabilities

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
Security Deposit-Staff 0.95 0.95
Total 0.95 0.95
Note-: 22 Other Current Liabilities
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
Duties and Taxes 975.24 990.05
Other Liabilities-Book overdraft - 58.08
Creditors For Capital Items 8.24 16.95
Other Payables 2,202.94 1,549.51
Provision For Expenses 155.70 123.02
Margin Money From Client 12.76 120.77
Spot Exchange Deposit 3.00 3.00
Other payables 1.20 1.43
Total 3,359.08 2,862.81
Note-: 23 Current liabilities Provisions
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on As on
31st March, 2020 31st Mar, 2019
Employee Benefits:
Gratuity Provision - Current Portion 23.15 3391
Leave Encashment (Unfunded) - Current Portion 4.46 5.17
Bonus Provision 26.25 44.79
Total 53.86 83.87
Note-: Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As on31st March, As on
2020 31st Mar, 2019
Income Tax Provision for Current Year 58.49 577.53
Less: Tax Deducted at Sources Receivables 35.49 38.98
Less: Advance Tax Payment - 310.00
Less: MAT Credit Utilised - 14.06
Total 23.00 214.49
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Note -: 24 -Revenue from Operation

Rs. In Lakhs

For the year ended on

For the period ended on

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Sale of products 214,091.89 218,669.15
Less:

Discount And Other Deductions 185.25 138.39
213,906.63 218,530.76

Supply of services 200.07 -

Other operating revenues: - -
Export benefits and other incentives 102.45 190.17
Contract Settlement Income 1,006.27 436.74
Gain on fair value of derivative contracts 635.71 142.98
Other operating revenues 270.55 462.03
2,014.98 1,231.92
Total 215,921.61 219,762.67

Disaggregated revenue information:

For the year ended on

For the period ended on

Commodity 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Types of Goods:
Edible QOils 106,315.63 131,918.05
Non Edible Oils& By Product 107,776.25 86,009.13
Total 214,091.89 217,927.18
Sales of Goods Manufactured:
Edible Oils/Non Edible Oils& By Product 189,391.60 171,446.62
De Oiled Cake/Qil Cake 8,433.15 9,055.65
Total 197,824.74 180,502.27
Sales of Goods Traded:
Edible Oils/Non Edible Oils& By Product 16,267.14 38,166.87
Total 16,267.14 38,166.87
Total 214,091.89 218,669.15
Geographical location of Customer
India 129,954.61 138,601.20
Outside India* 84,137.28 79,325.98
Total 214,091.89 217,927.18

Information about major customers

The Company has three customers who has accounted for more than 10% of the Company's revenue. Total amount of
revenue from these customers is Rs.50607.94 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 and Rs. 44248.74Lakhs for the year

ended March 31, 2019.
Note-: 25 Other Income

Rs.in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended on
31st March, 2020

For the period ended on
31st March, 2019

Interest Income

Interest On Bank Fixed Deposits
Interest From Partnership Firm

Interest On Loans and Advances
Interest From Associate

Interest From Others

Net Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investments
Short Term Profit On Sale Of Share /Mutual Fund
Net Gain /Loss From Partnership Firm
Other Non-Operating Income

Gain on Receipts of Keyman Insurance
Bad debts recovered/Provision reversed
Profit on Sale of Asset

Sundry Balance W.off

Exchange Differences-Net Gain In Foreign Currency Transactions And Translations

Gain on fair value of key men policy
Rent Income

300.56
394.55
134.74
43.06
27.05
68.47

0.13

0.32

835.71
26.06
10.95

422.68
346.02
154.96
49.28
40.49
62.73
459.98
26.33
1.86
1.26

692.73

7.50

134



Liabilities no longer payable

452.77

Total 2,294.37 2,265.82
Note-: 26 Cost of Material Consumed
Rs.in Lakhs
particulars For the year ended on | For the period ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Opening Stock Of Raw Material 2,516.37 7,413.85
Purchase - Raw Material 185,372.75 160,958.16
Closing Stock Of Raw Material 4,568.55 2,516.37
Total 183,320.56 165,855.65
Purchase Expenses 1,000.16 534.39
Total 1,000.16 534.39
Opening Stock Of Other Material 1,231.41 892.76
Purchase Other Materials 3,485.69 4,096.04
Closing Stock Of Other Material 921.48 1,234.48
Total 3,795.63 3,754.33
Total 188,116.35 170,144.37
Note-: 27 Purchase Of Stock In Trade
Rs.in Lakhs

For the year ended on

For the period ended on

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Purchase Of Goods Traded 16,226.74 36,264.84
Total 16,226.74 36,264.84
Note-: 28 Change In Inventories Of Finished Goods And Work In Progress
Rs.in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended on
31st March, 2020

For the period ended on
31st March, 2019

31st March, 2020

Opening Stock Of Finished Goods 4,630.99 5,811.77
Closing Stock Of Finished Goods 6,125.84 4,630.99
Change In Inventories Of Finished Goods (1,494.85) 1,180.78
Opening Stock Of Traded Goods - -
Closing Stock Of Traded Goods - -
Change In Inventories Of Traded Goods - -
Opening Stock Of Work In Progress 5,543.53 5,269.69
Closing Stock Of Work In Progress 4,380.36 5,543.53
Change In Inventories Of Work In Progress 1,163.17 (273.84)
Total (331.68) 906.94
Note-: 29 Employee Benefit Expenses
Rs.in Lakhs
particulars For the year ended on | For the period ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Salary, wages and Bonus 1,307.57 1,343.69
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 44.27 38.22
Gratuity Expenses 25.08 23.20
Staff welfare expenses 45.52 24.87
Total 1,422.43 1,429.97
Note-: 30 Finance Cost
Rs.in Lakhs
. For the year ended on | For the period ended on
Particulars

31st March, 2019

Interest on Borrowings
Other borrowing costs
Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency transactions and translation

1,866.39
859.57

130.90

2,075.91
887.82

190.15

135



Interest on short payment of advance tax 0.34 62.40
Interest On Promotors Loans - -
Interest on Loan from Holding Co. - 9.12
Total 2,857.21 3,225.41
Note-: 31 Other Expenses
Rs.in Lakhs
particulars For the year ended on | For the period ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Consumption Of Stores, Spares & Tools 260.06 185.67
Power And Fuel 1,976.03 1,778.30
Rent 166.19 245.95
Rates And Taxes 12.74 9.35
Repairs And Maintainance - -
Building 23.29 2.90
Plant & Machinery 295.15 267.54
Others 33.73 29.59
Insurance 115.15 88.96
Donation (Including Rs. 26.53 Lakhs related to CSR Refer Note No. 45) 46.68 70.62
Auditors Remuneration 19.30 18.97
Director's Sitting Fees 2.02 1.50
Premium on Forward Contract (Import) 67.93 482.73
Other Expenses 487.16 607.10
Consultancy and Professional Fees 69.69 56.17
Legal/Licence/Ragistration Expenses 19.14 20.38
Sales Tax Service Tax, And Other Taxes 213.47 81.37
Brokerage 227.21 242.29
Traveling 97.48 112.60
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 10.21 1.34
Freight Outwards 1,099.22 1,854.73
Export Sales And Advertisements Expenses 811.59 713.35
Bad Debts - 3.29
Provision for Bad Debts 108.00 36.42
Direct Labour Expenses 728.61 739.17
Other Manufacturing Expenses 21.27 23.49
Exchange Differences-Net Loss In Foreign Currency Transactions And
Translations 0.15 (0.53)
Total 6,911.47 7,673.23
Auditor's Remuneration
Particulars For the year ended on For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
(A) Audit Fees 14.30 13.97
(B) Tax Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
(C) Income Tax and other matters 3.50 3.50
19.30 18.97

Note-: 32 Other comprehensive income

Particulars

For the year ended on
31st March, 2020

For the period ended on
31st March, 2019

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (Gratuity) (35.37) 11.94
Equity Instruments designated through other comprehensive income

- 0.07
Income Tax (Assets) / Liabilities (9.09) 4.17
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (26.27) 7.84
Fair value of financial Instrument (MF ) - 10.46
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities - 3.66

- 6.81
Total (26.27) 14.64
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General Notes forming the parts of Accounts:

GOKUL REFOILS & SOLVENT LIMITED

33 Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to confirm to the current period’s classification. Figures have been rounded off to nearest of rupee.

34 The Group elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income -tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Group
has recognised provision for Income tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 and re-measured its Deferred Tax Assets at the rate prescribed in the said Section.

35 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A Not provided for in the accounts (Rs.in Lakh)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
(A) For Letter of credit opened for which goods were in transit 2,800.79 3,800.16
(B) Counter Guarantee Given to Banks 1,640.21 2,685.88
(C) Corporate Guarantee Given to Banks 5,575.00 5,575.00
(D) Claims not acknowledged as debt 256.42 86.34
(E) Disputed demand of custom duty, VAT, CST, income tax, Entry Tax and Service Tax
11,965.16 10,555.42
B Capital Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided (net of advances) of Rs.97.91 Lakh (Previous year: as at 31st March, 2019 Rs.5.84Lakhs ).
C The disputes in respect of taxes have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The company's management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions when ultimately concluded and
determined will have a material and adverse effect on the company's results of operations or financial condition.
D  The proposed Social Security Code, 2019, when promulgated, would subsume labour laws including Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of

wages on which the organisation and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Group believes that there will be no significant impact on its contributions to Provident Fund
due to the proposed amendments. Additionally, there is uncertainty and ambiguity in interpreting and giving effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February 2019, in
relation to the scope of compensation on which the organization and its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Group will evaluate its position and act, as clarity emerges.

36 Employee Benefits Obligations

Defined Contribution Plan:

The company has recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of defined contribution plan — Provident and other fund of Rs.44.27 lakhs (Previous year Rs.38.22 lakhs)
administered by the Government.

Retirement Benefits

As per Ind AS 19 the Company has recongnised "Employees Benefits", in the financial Statements in respect of the employee benefits Schemes as per Actuarial Valuation as on 31st March, 2020.
Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit
a. Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan .every employee who has completed five years and more service gets a gratuity on death or resignation or retirement at 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy

b. Long Term Employment Benefit (Leave Wages)

Leave wages are payable to all eligible employees at the rate of daily salary for each day of accumulated leave on death or resignation or upon retirement on attaining superannuation age.
(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended on For the year ended on
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Privilege Leave Gratuity Privilege Leave Gratuity
(Non-funded) ( Funded ) (Non-funded) ( Funded )

A. Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Opening defined benefit obligation 64.18 178.58 78.45 168.46
Interest cost 4.72 12.90 5.60 12.02
Current service cost 6.92 22.04 10.93 19.95
Benefits paid (5.90) (11.55) (6.06) (8.40)
Actuarial (gain) / losses on obligation 8.18 33.77 (24.74) (13.44)
Closing defined obligation 78.10 235.74 64.18 178.58
B. Change in the fair value of plan asset - - - -
Opening fair value of plan assets - 127.73 - 113.87
Adjustment in the opening fund - (1.82) - -
Expected return on plan assets - 11.35 - 8.41
Contributions by employer - - - 15.00
Benefits paid - (11.55) - (8.40)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) - (3.09) - (1.15)
Closing fair value of plan assets - 122.62 - 127.73
C. Actual return on plan assets: - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - 11.35 - 8.41
Actuarial gain / [loss] on plan assets - (3.09) - (1.15)
Actual return on plan asset - 8.26 - 7.27
D. Amount recognized in the balance sheet: - - - -
(Assets) / Liability at the end of the year 78.10 235.74 61.83 184.46
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year - 122.62 - 147.54
Difference 78.10 113.12 61.83 36.92
(Assets)/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 78.10 113.12 61.83 36.92
E. (i )/ re dinP/L - - - -
Net Interest Cost 4.72 3.05 5.60 3.25
Current Service Cost 6.92 22.04 10.93 19.95
Actual Gain/Loss on obligation (0.08) - (20.06) -
Total Includes in "Employee benefit Expenses” 11.64 25.08 16.54 23.20
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 8.26 33.77 (4.69) (13.44)
Actual return on plan asset - 1.60 - 1.50
Amount r as other compret income 8.26 35.37 (4.69) (11.94)
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Total expenses/(gain) recognized in the profit & loss account 19.90 60.45 11.85 11.25
F.(Assets)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet - - - -
Opening net liability 64.18 50.85 78.45 54.59
Transfer in / (out) obligation - 29.60 - -
Expenses as above [P&L charge] 19.82 35.29 (8.21) 5.05
Expenses as above [OCI] - (2.62) - 6.21
Employer’s contribution & Benefits paid by the company (5.90) (9.29) (6.06) (15.00)
(Assets)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 78.10 103.83 64.18 50.85
G. Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet date: (Non-funded)
Discount rate 7.65% 7.65% 7.10% 7.10%
Expected rate of return on the plan assets 0.00% 7.60% 0.00% 7.40%
Annual increase in salary cost 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Insurance Company 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sensitivity Analysis (Rs.in Lakh)
For the year ended on For the year ended on
Particulars _ 31st March, 2020 _ _ 31st March, 2019 _
Privilege Leave Gratuity Privilege Leave Gratuity
(Non-funded) ( Funded ) (Non-funded) ( Funded )
Discount rate Senstivity
Increase by 0.5% (73.44) (226.67) (60.62) (172.30)
Decrease by 0.5% 83.21 245.49 68.08 185.30
Salary growth rate Sensitivity - - - -
Increase by 0.5% 83.17 244.49 68.08 185.01
Decrease by 0.5% (73.44) (227.48) (60.58) (172.66)
Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensitivity - - - -
W.R. X 110% 77.99 235.81 64.31 179.38
W.R. X 90% (78.21) (235.65) (64.04) (177.67)
37 Related Parties Disclosure:-
Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Discl es" are given below
A. | 1 Party
1|Gokul Overseas A Firm in which some of the directors and company are partners.
2|Gujarat Gokul Power Ltd. Associate Company.
3|Gokul Infratech Pvt. Ltd. Company having some of common Directors
Gokul Lifespace LLP(Formerly known as
4|Bahuchr Infratech LLP) A LLP in which some of the directors are partners.
5|Gokul Corporate service pvt. Ltd. Company having some of common Directors
6|Gokul Foundation Charitable Trust where some of the Key Management Personnel
7|Shree Bahuchar Jan Seva Trust Charitable Trust where some of the Key Management Personnel
8|Gokul Solvax Pvt. Ltd. Company having some of common Directors
9[Gokul Minex Pvt. Ltd. Company having some of common Directors
B. Key N 1t Personnel
1|Mr. Balvantsinh Rajput Chairman and Managing Director
2|Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput Executive Director
3|Mr. Bipinbhai Thakkar Whole Time Director till 20.01.2020
4|Mr. Praveen Khandelwal Chief Executive Officer
5|Mr. Shaunak Mandalia CFO and Add. Director from 20.01.2020
6|Mr. Pravin Prajapati Chief Financial Officer of Subsidiary Company
7|Mr. Vijay Kalyani Company Secretary till 07.08.2019
8[Mr. Abhinav Mathur Company Secretary of Holding Company from 07.08.2019
9[Mr. Mukesh Limbachiya Company Secretary of Subsidiary Company from 07.08.2019
C. Relative of Key N Personnel:
1|Mrs. Hina Thakkar Wife of Whole Time Director till 20.01.2020
2|Mrs. Khushboo Khandelwal Wife of Chief Executive Officer
3|Mrs. Pallvai Mandalia Wife of CFO of Holding Company
4[Mrs. Bhikhiben Rajput Wife of CMD
D. Transactions with related parties. (Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr. | 1 Parties Key 1t Personnel Relative of KMP
No Nature of Transaction 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19
1 Sales 49,808.87 43,515.01 - - - -
2 Purchases - 558.85 - - - -
3 MEIS License Purchase 519.52 - - - - -
4 Salary and bonus - - 171.40 171.44 37.88 39.64
5 Director's Sitting Fees - - 2.02 1.50 - -
6 Return of Investments 204.48 610.89 - - - -
7 Donation 27.62 41.56 - - - -
8 Interest Earned 529.29 537.89 - - - -
9 Rent Income 5.78 3.46 - - - -
10 |Rent Paid - - - - 63.36 47.87
11 |Loan Given to Employees - - 6.00 - - -
12 [Loans/advances given (Net) 130.81 234.06 - - - -
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Related Parties Key M 1t Personnel Relative of KMP
13 |Balance Outstanding 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19 31-03-20 31-03-19
Trade Payables - - - 21.76 - -
Other Current Liabilities 1,751.85 1,863.63 - - - -
Non Current Financial Assets -
Investments 400.00 400.00 - - - -
Current Financial Assets - Investments 3,499.14 3,703.62 - - - -
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38 Segment Reporting

The Group recognizes its activities of dealing in edible-non edible oils and related activities — Agro based commodities as its only primary business segment since its operations predominantly consist
of manufacture and sale of edible-non edible oils to its customers. The Chief operating Decision Maker monitors the operating results of the Company’s business as a single segment. Group has
started providing services during current year. The revenue and net profit from such service activities is less than the quantitative thresholds as prescribed in Ind AS 108. Accordingly in the context of

‘Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments’ the principal business of the Group constitute a single reportable segment.

39 Earnings per share

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended on

For the year
ended on 31st

Particulars 31st March, 2020 March, 2019

Profit/Loss for the period attributable to

Equity Shareholders 1,978 1,216
No. of Weighted Average Equity shares

outstanding during the year 131895000 131895000
Nominal Value of Share (In Rs.) 2.00 2.00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (In

Rs.) 1.50 0.92

Current Financial Assets - Others - 1.39 6.00 - 93.09 93.09
Non Current Financial Assets - Loans 2,014.55 1,883.75 - - - -
Current Financial Assets - Trade
Receivable 74.61 4.80 - - - -
Material Transactions with Related Pary
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Sr. |Name of Related Party/ KMP/ Relative
No. |of KMP Nature of Transaction 2019-20 2018-19
1 Gokul Overseas Sales 49,808.87 43,515.01
2 Gokul Overseas Purchase - 558.85
3 Gokul Overseas MEIS License Purchase 519.52 -
Subscription to 204.48 610.89
4 Gokul Overseas Share/Investment (Net)
5 Gokul Overseas Interest Income 394.55 392.04
6 Gokul Overseas Rent Income 0.85 0.69
7 Gujarat Gokul Power Limited Interest Income 134.74 145.85
8 Gujarat Gokul Power Limited Rent Income 0.85 0.68
9 Gokul Infratech Pvt. Ltd. Rent Income 0.85 0.69
Gokul Lifespace LLP(Formerly known as 0.68 0.69
10 |Bahuchr Infratech LLP) Rent Income
11 |Gokul Corporate service pvt. Ltd. Rent Income 0.85 0.69
12 |Gokul Solvex Private Limited Rent Income 0.85 -
13 |Gokul Minex Private Limited Rent Income 0.85 0.75
14 |Balvantsinh Rajput Remuneration 27.60 27.60
15 |Mrs. Bhikhiben Rajput Rent Paid 63.36 47.87
16 |Dharmendrasinh Rajput Remuneration 36.00 36.00
17 |Bipinbhai Thakkar Remuneration 9.21 11.35
18 |Praveen Khadelwal Remuneration 56.15 56.15
19 [Shaunak Mandalia Remuneration 20.25 20.23
20 |Shaunak Mandalia Loan Given 6.00 -
21 [Mrs. Pallavi Mandalia Salary 15.40 15.40
22 |Pravin Prajapati Remuneration 7.28 7.92
23 |Vijay Kalyani Remuneration 4.47 12.20
24 [Mrs. Hina Thakkar Salary 7.48 9.24
25 [Mrs. Khushboo Khandelwal Salary 15.00 15.00
26 |Abhinav Mathur Remuneration 7.00 -
27 |Mukesh Limbachiya Remuneration 3.44 -
28 |Bahuchar Jan Seva Trust Donation 27.62 14.45
29 |Gokul Foundation Donation - 27.11
30 [Mr. Piyushchandra Vyas Director's Sitting Fees 0.82 0.60
31 [Ms. Dipooba Devada Director's Sitting Fees 0.85 0.60
32 [Mr. Bipinbhai Thakkar Director's Sitting Fees 0.35 0.30

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and dilutive earning per share of the Company remain the same.

40 Details of Loan given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act.

Loans given, Investment made are given under the respective heads.

41 Details of Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Expenditure

a)

b)

Group is required to spend Rs.26.53 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 25.45 Lakhs) on CSR activities

Amount Spend During the year on

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars Yet to be paid in Yet to be paid in
In Cash Cash Total In Cash Cash Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset
Contribution to various Trusts/NGOs 26.53 - 26.53 25.45 - 25.45

Expenditure on Administration
Overheads of CSR
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS-FAIR VALUES AND RISH MANAGEMENT

A.

Accounting classification and Fair Values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, including their levels in the Fair Value hierarchy. It does not include Fair Value information for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities not measured at Fair Value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of Fair Value.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fair Value through
March 31, 2020 Fair V:?Iue through Other Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Profit and Loss Comprehensive
Incame

Financial Assets measured at amortised Cost :-

Non-current Investments - B 401.47 401.47 B - -
Current Investments - - 3,499.14 3,499.14 - - -
Loans :-

Non-current - - 2,046.34 2,046.34 - -

Current - - 1,875.30 1,875.30 - -
Other Financial Assets :-

Non-current - B 99.33 99.33 - -

Current - - 1,464.16 1,464.16 - -
Trade and Other Receivables - - 8,738.07 8,738.07 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 2,443.51 2,443.51 - -
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised Cost
Borrowings :-

Current - - 23,159.52 23,159.52 - -
Trade and Other Payables - - 2,074.49 2,074.49 - -
Other Financial Liabilities :-

Current - - 0.95 0.95 - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 25,234.96 25,234.96 - -

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fair Value through
March 31, 2019 Fair Va.lue through Other Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Profit and Loss Comprehensive
L
Financial Assets measured at amortised Cost :-
Non-current Investments - - 401.52 401.52 - - -
Current Investments - 110.46 3,814.08 3,924.54 110.46 - 110.46
Loans :-

Non-current - - 1,883.75 1,883.75 - -

Current - - 1,700.31 1,700.31 - -
Other Financial Assets :-

Non-current - - 73.26 73.26 - -

Current - - 1,324.71 1,324.71 - -
Trade and Other Receivables - - 10,488.19 10,488.19 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 1,359.46 1,359.46 - -
Bank Balances (other than above) - - 4,472.64 4,472.64 - -
Total Financial Assets - 110.46 25,517.92 25,628.38 110.46 - 110.46
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised Cost
Borrowings :-

Current - - 26,288.57 26,288.57 - -
Trade and Other Payables - - 2,598.57 2,598.57 - -
Other Financial Liabilities :-

Current - - 0.95 0.95 - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 28,888.09 28,888.09 - - -

“(1) Investment in Subsidiary/Associate carried at amortised cost. Fair Value of financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at Amortized cost is not materially different from the Amortized cost Furthers impact of
time value of money is not Significant for the financial instrument classified as current. Accordingly fair value has not been disclosed seperately. ”

Types of inputs are as under:
Input Level | (Directly Observable) which includes quoted prices in active markets for identical assets such as quoted price for an Equity Security on Security Exchanges

Input Level Il (Indirectly Observable) which includes prices in active markets for similar assets such as quoted price for similar assets in active markets, valuation multiple derived from prices in observed
transactions involving similar businesses etc.

Input Level IIl (Unobservable) which includes management's own assumptions for arriving at a fair value such as projected cash flows used to value a business etc.
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Currency Futures Based on exchange rates listed on NSE/MCX stock exchange

Commodity futures Based on commodity prices listed on MCX/ NCDX/ACE stock exchange

Forward contracts Based on FEDAI Rates

Interest rate swaps Based on Closing Rates provided by Banks

Open purchase and sale contracts Based on commodity prices listed on NCDEX stock exchange, and prices Available on SolventExtractor’s association (SEA) along with quotations from brokers and adjustments
made for gradeand location of commodity

Options Based on Closing Rates provided by Banks

Financial Risk Management:-
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit Risk ;
= Liquidity Risk ; and
= Market Risk
- Currency Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Commodity Risk
- Equity Risk

Risk Management framework
The Group manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk
management objectives and policies, which are approved by Board of Directors. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with
market risk limits and policies.

The Group’s Risk Management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
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Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s Risk Management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Group. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from
customers and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following Financial Assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other Financial Assets

The Group maintains its Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-
going basis.The derivatives are entered into with bank and financial institution counter parties, which are considered to be good.

Trade Receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographicsof the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit
risk assessment. Credit risk is managedthrough credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal
course of business.

The maximum exposure to Credit Risk for Trade Receivables by geographic region was as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Domestic 5,383.22 6,738.07
Other Region 3,354.85 3,750.12
Total 8,738.07 10,488.19

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Neither Due nor impaired 4,223.69 7,469.77
Past Due 1 - 90 Days 3,513.15 2,814.20
Past Due 91 - 180 Days 112.28 121.62
More than 180 Days 888.96 82.60
Total 8,738.07 10,488.19

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any
significant credit losses. Impaired amounts are based on lifetime expected losses based on the best estimate of the management. Further, management believes that theunimpaired amounts that are past due by
more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss related to several customers that have defaulted on
theirpayments to the Company and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Balance as at 1st April - -
Impairment Loss recognised 144.42 36.42

Amount written off - -
Balance as at 31st March - -

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its Financial Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of
netting agreements.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Contractual Cash Flows
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities . .
Carring Amount  |Carring Amount
31st March, 2020 |31st March, 2019
Working Capital Loans from Banks 23,159.52 26,288.57
Trade and Other Payables 2,074.49 2,598.57
Derivative Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2020 |31st March, 2019
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Outflow - USD in Lakhs 139.68 174.20
- Inflow 101.38 98.37
Total 241.06 272.57

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted Cash Flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are not usually
closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultaneous
gross cash settlement.

Excessive Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

Financial instruments - Fair Values and Risk Management

Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and short term debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to
foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities
in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency Risk
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The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. The Group uses forward exchange contracts to
hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Amount in Amount in INR Amount in Amount in INR
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency
Against Imports usb 139.68 10,564.52 174.20 13,843.08
Against Exports usD 101.38 7,315.41 98.37 5,124.82
Exposure to Currency Risk
The currency profile of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities with exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in rupees, are as follows
Amount In Lakns
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Financial Assets usb SGD usb SGD
Non Currrent Investments - - - 14.12
Trade and Other Receivables 3,354.85 - 3,750.12 -
Less: Forward Contract for Selling - -
Foreign Currency 0.54 1.67 0.54 1.67
Loans - - - -
Total 3,355.40 1.67 3,750.66 15.79
Financial Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 7,353.61 - 9,425.50 -
Trade and Other Payables - - - -
Less: Forward Contract for Buying - - - -
Foreign Currency - - - -
Total 7,353.61 - 9,425.50 -

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at March 31 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or (Loss) Equity, Net of Tax
Effects in (Rs. In Lakhs) Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 st March, 2020

3% Movement

usb (119.95) 119.95 (89.76) 89.76
SGD (0.05) 0.05 (0.04) 0.04
31 st March, 2019

3% Movement

usb (170.25) 170.25 (127.40) 127.40
SGD (0.47) 0.47 (0.35) 0.35

Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash Flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk
The Group’s Interest Rate Risk arises from borrowings obligations. Borrowings issued exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as
reported to the management of the Company is as follows:-

Rs.in Lakhs

Amount in Rs.

Variable-Rate Instruments
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Current - Borrowings 23,159.52 26,288.57

Total 23,159.52 26,288.57

Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis For Variable-Rate Instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or Loss Equity, Net of Tax
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease  [100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 st March, 2020

Non Current - Borrowings

Current - Borrowings (231.60) 231.60 (173.31) 173.31
Total (231.60) 231.60 (173.31) 17331
31 st March, 2019

Non Current - Borrowings

Current - Borrowings (262.89) 262.89 (196.72) 196.72
Total (262.89) 262.89 (196.72) 196.72

Commodity Risk

The prices of agricultural commodities are subject to wide fluctuations due to unpredictable factors such as weather, governmentpolicies, changes in global demand resulting from population growth and changes
in standards of living and global productionof similar and competitive crops. During its ordinary course of business, the value of the Group’s open sales and purchases commitments and inventory of raw material
changes continuously in line with movements in the prices of the underlying commodities. To the extent that its open sales and purchases commitments do not match at the end of each business day, the Group
is subjected to price fluctuations in the commodities market.

While the Group is exposed to fluctuations in agricultural commodities prices, its policy is to minimise its risks arising fromsuch fluctuations by hedging its sales either through direct purchases of a similar
commodity or through futures contracts onthe commodity exchanges. The prices on the commodity exchanges are generally quoted up to twelve months forward.

In the course of hedging its sales either through direct purchases or through futures, the Group may also be exposed to theinherent risk associated with trading activities conducted by its personnel. The Group
has in place a risk management systemto manage such risk exposure.

At the balance sheet date, a 1% increase/decrease of the commodities price indices, with all other variables remaining constant, would result in (decrease)/increase in profit before tax and equity by the amounts
as shown below:

Profit or Loss Equity, Net of Tax

Particulars - -
1% increase |1% decrease 1% increase |1% decrease

31 st March, 2020
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Inventory Commodity Price 16,163.48 (16,163.48) 12,095.45 (12,095.45)
Derivative Contract Rate - - - -
Total 16,163.48 (16,163.48) 12,095.45 (12,095.45)
31 st March, 2019

Inventory Commodity Price 14,089.59 (14,089.59) 10,543.52 (10,543.52)
Derivative Contract Rate - - - -
Total 14,089.59 (14,089.59) 10,543.52 (10,543.52)
Equity Risk

Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The fair value ofsome of the Group’s investments in Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
securities exposes the Group to equity price risks. In general, these securities are not held for trading purposes. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair value of equity
securities as of March 31, 2020, was Rs. Nil [FY 2018-2019 Rs.Nil Lakhs]. A Sensex standard deviation of 5% [FY 2018-2019 5%] would result in change in equity prices of securitiesheld as of March 31, 2020 by
Rs.Nil Lakhs. [ FY 2018-2019 Rs.Nil Lakhs]

43 Capital Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital
as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

Rs.in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, |As at 31st March,
2020 2019

Total Interest bearing liabilities 23,159.52 26,288.57
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 2,443.51 1,359.46
Adjusted Net Debt 20,716.01 24,929.12
Total Equity 30,496.23 27,314.31
Adjusted equity 30,496.23 27,314.31
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.68 0.91

44 Events occured after Balance Sheet date
The Group evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to approval of financial statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of
these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 16th June, 2020 there were no material subsequent events to be recognised or reported that are not already previously disclosed.

45 Impact of COVID 19
The Company has considered the possible impact that may arise from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the carrying amount of its assets including inventory and receivables. In developing the assumptions
relating to the impact of possible future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external
sources of information including economic forecasts. The Company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

46 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements of the company has been approved in the board meeting held on 16th June, 2020.

For and On Behalf of the Board

For M. M. THAKKAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants Balvantsinh C Rajput Shaunak Mandalia
(Registration No: 110905W) Chairman and Managing Director CFO & Director
Darshak M Thakkar Praveen Khandelwal Abhinav Mathur
Partner Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
Membership No:103762

16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad 16th June, 2020, Ahmedabad
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Rules, 2014 :

FORM NO. AOC.1

Statement conataining salient features of the fi | of subsidiaries / joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to subsection (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Part-A: Subsidiaries (FY 2019-20)
Name of Subsidiary/Partnership |Reporting |Exchange Profit Provision |Profit after
S.No. Firm Currancy |Rate Equity Share Capital Other Equity |Total Asset Total Liabilities Turnover Before Tax |for Tax Tax
Professional Commodities
1[Services Private Limited* INR 1.00 60.00 170.33 883.99 653.66 0.43 12.04 33.15 7.97 25.18
2|Gokul Agri International Ltd. INR 1.00 5.00 12,890.67 42,378.92 29,483.25 85.09 214,444.29 1,432.92 106.44 | 1,326.48
Note:

i Proposed dividend is NIL in each subsidiary.

ii % of shareholding in all subsidiaries either directly or through its subsidiaries is 100%.

*Subsidiary of Gokul Agri International Limited

Part B : Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates /Jeint\Ventures

Gujarat Gokul Power Limited

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31st March, 2020

Shares of Associates / Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end

Number of Shares 24180
Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint Rs. 241800
Ventures

Extend of Holding % 48.36%

Description of how there is significant

Due to holding of 48.36 %

Reason why the associate / joint venture is

Holding is less than 50%.

Net worth attributable to shareholder as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

Rs. (-4591783.5)

Profit / Loss for the year

Rs.(3,70,596 )

Considered in Consolidation

Rs. NIL

Not considered in Consolidation

Rs.(3,70,596 )*

Gujarat Gokul Power Limited is yet to commence operations

As per accounting treatement suggested in Ind AS 28 - "Investments in Associates and Joint Venture", in case investor's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of investment, the investor

ordinarily discontinues recognizing its share of further losses and the investment is reported at nil value.

For and On Behalf of the Board

B. C. Rajput
Chairman and Managing Director

Ahmedabad, 16th June, 2020

Shaunak Mandalia
CFO & Director

Praveen Khandelwal
Chief Executive Officer

Abhinav Mathur
Company Secretary
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Gokul Refoils & Solvent Limited
(CIN : L15142GJ1992PLCO018745)
Registered Office: State Highway No. 41, Near Sujanpur patia, Sidhpur- 384151, Gujarat.
Telephone: +91 2767 222075 E-mail: abinav.mathur@gokulgroup.com Website: www.gokulgroup.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Monday, September 28, 2020 at State Highway No. 41, Near Sujanpur patia, Sidhpur- 384151,
Gujarat at 11.00 A.M.

Folio No. DPID Client ID No. Number of Shares

Name and address of Shareholder / Proxy holder

Shareholder / Proxy’s Signature

(Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the
attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)
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Proxy Form
Form No. MGT-11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014]

CIN : L15142GJ1992PLC018745
Name of the Company :Gokul Refoils and Solvent Limited
Registered Office : State Highway No. 41, Near Sujanpur patia, Sidhpur-384151, Gujarat.
Name of the Member (s):
Registered Address:
E-mail ID:
Folio No./ Client ID: DP
ID:
I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the Gokul Refoils and Solvent Ltd.,
hereby appoint;
(1) of having e-mail id
or failing him / her;
2) of having e-mail id
or failing him / her;
3) of having e-mail id

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 27™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Monday, September 28, 2020 at
11.00 A.M.at State Highway No. 41, Near Sujanpur patia, Sidhpur- 384151, Gujarat and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:-

Resolution Resolution
No.

Ordinary Business;

1 Ordinary Resolution for adoption of Standalone and Consolidated Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2020
2 Ordinary Resolution for appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dharmendrasinh Rajput
(DIN: 03050088), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.
Signed this ............... day of ...oooviiie 2020
Please affix Re
1/-Revenue
Stamp

Signature of shareholder
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than
10% of the share capital of the company carrying rights. a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders
should be stated.
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GOKUL
MISSION VISION
To reach every kitchen of Indian family by To become the most preferred and admired brand
delivering best quality products with delicious globally, through quality products and advanced
taste. technologies & processes, aimed at bringing immense
To become a true Indian MNC with pan India delight to all the stakeholders.
presence and operations across the globe.
To become most preferred and admired edible oil
brandsin India.
To create best value proposition to investors,
vendors & society.
To uphold the principles of Corporate Governance.
GREEN INITIATIVES
- Wind Power capacity of 3.75 MW for captive use. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
.- Using Castor de-oiled cake as a fuel to The Company is supporting the activities of Shree
generate steam. Bahuchar Jan Seva Trust which is providing healthcare

services to the General public at large. The Company
is also supporting the activities of educational

institutions of Gokul Foundation.
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If undelivered please return to:

GOKUL REFOILS & SOLVENT LTD.

GOKUL CIN: L15142GJ1992PLC018745

CORPORATE OFFICE : “Gokul House”, 43-Shreemali Co-op. Housing Society Ltd. Opp. Shikhar Building, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380 009.
Gujarat (India) Phone: +91-79-61905500, 66615253-54-55

REGISTERED OFFICE : State Highway No - 41, Nr. Sujanpur Patia, Sidhpur - 384 151, Dist.: Patan, State: Gujarat.(India)
Phone: +91-2767-222075, 225551, Fax : +91-2767-225475

WEBSITE: www.gokulgroup.com | E-MAIL: investor_relations@gokulgroup.com



